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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

To all shareholders,

Throughout the year 2020 of challenging global economic
environment, our Group's total revenue increased to approximately
USS$56.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, with a moderate
growth by approximately 12.4% as compared to the last year.
Meanwhile, the net profit of the Group for the year increased to
approximately US$8.6 million, showing an increase of approximately
43.3% as compared to the last year.

Our fleet increased to twelve vessels in operation with total capacity of
470,000 dwt since the purchase of two second-hand Capesize vessels
in late 2019, accordingly, we extended a new business segment of bulk
carrier chartering services. This new business contributed a fruitful
result to our Group, the revenue generated from these two vessels
carrying on bulk carrier time chartering was approximately US$10.6
million to our Group for the year ended 31 December 2020,
representing 18.9% of the total revenue. We have entered into time
charter agreements on a long-term basis with reputable customers for
these two vessels, and expects a steady income to our Group in the
coming years.

During the year, we faced both challenges and opportunities in the
asphalt tanker chartering market, including growing trade
protectionism, COVID-19 pandemic, oil market crisis, stringent
environmental requirements, high freight rate volatility and port
congestions etc. Our Group continues to provide high quality standard
of asphalt tanker chartering services to our customers.

Looking into 2021 and beyond, we believe the demand of asphalt as
well as the asphalt tanker chartering is expected to grow. Due to the
continuous development of China’s Belt and Road Initiative, the
infrastructure projects have been increasing by the developing
countries in these few years. In addition, many countries may consider
infrastructure investment as an important part of post-COVID-19
economic recovery strategy, in order to stimulate their own economic
development. We believe the growth of infrastructure projects or
investment would increase the growing demand of asphalt, and there
is good prospect of the asphalt tanker chartering market.
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Chairman’s Statement

e

Our Group's financial position and liquidity are healthier this year,
mainly attributable to profitable operations and the proceeds from the
subscriptions. In May 2020, our Group raised fund of approximately
USS$5.6 million by allotting and issuing new shares of the Company.
The net proceeds remain unutilised as at the end of 2020, and it is
intended that they will be applied for general working capital in the
next three years. Sufficient financial resources could support long-term
growth in our business.

We would like to express our gratitude to all of our employees for their
dedication and professionalism, and most of all, our shareholders,
customers, and suppliers for their continued support. Going forward,
we will continue to refine and optimize our business in order to further
enhance the long-term returns of our Group.

Mr. Wang Faqing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFEUBEREE

A summary of the results, and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interest of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements of the
Company is set out below.

RESULTS

Year ended 31 December

AIEEARAE EEERZMHRERAOAR
SEBEREMBFENZEAREE
BENMIERERBRLT o

¥E
HE12A31BILEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
2016%F 20174 20184F 20194 2020 F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTErT FTEr FT=Er TEr TEn
Revenue WA 15,457 33,727 42,716 49,751 55,973
Cost of sales HERA (9,043) (20459) (28,225) (35,762) (39,309)
Gross profit EFH 6,414 13,269 14,491 13,989 16,664
Other income H Ao as 666 332 8,222 1489 634
Administrative expenses TEB S (783) (2,095) (3,864) (2,535) (3,199)
Other operating expenses Hi&ERY (162) (350) (7,110) (634) (596)
Exchange gains/(losses)net  [& ¥ Uzt (E518)
et 299 (1,543) 343 (218) (89)
Profit from operations REFBRN 6,434 9613 12,082 12,091 13,414
Finance costs BB (1912) (3,581) (5,469) (6,087) (4,806)
Profit before tax BRI A 4522 6,032 6,613 6,004 8,608
Income tax expense FrisfimL - . _ _ (5)
Profit for the year FE A 4522 6,032 6,613 6,004 8,603
Attributable to: AT &IBRES
Owners of the Company ZA/NGIE 2N 4,390 5,489 6,613 6,004 8,603
Non-controlling interests e 132 543 - - =
4522 6,032 6,613 6,004 8,603
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFEUBEREE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

BE  BERFERES

INTERESTS
As at 31 December ®12A31H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
2016 2017 5 20185 20194 2020
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
FET FET FET F=ET FER
Total assets BERE 110,733 164,033 211,014 218,965 212,525
Total liabilities BfERE (96,932) (89,598) (111,910 (113,875) (93,218)
Non-controlling interests E i (431) - - - -
13,3370 74,435 99,104 105,090 119,307
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN W R DT

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Xin Yuan Enterprises Group
Limited (the "Company”) is pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020, together with the
comparative figures for the corresponding period in 2019 (the “Years
Under Review").

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

For the year ended 31 December 2020, our Group recorded revenue of
approximately US$56.0 million, representing an increase of 12.4%
compared with the last year, with three operating segments which
included asphalt tanker chartering services; bulk carrier chartering
services; and asphalt trading. Our Group principally provides asphalt
tanker chartering services under various types of charter agreements
comprising: (i) time charters; and (i) voyage charters and contracts of
Affreightment (“CoAs"). In late 2019, we acquired two second-hand
Capesize vessels, namely XYG Fortune and XYMG Noble, which have
been providing bulk carrier time chartering services to our customers,
and contributed new source of income to our Group.

Currently, we operate a fleet of twelve vessels with total capacity of
approximately 470,000 dwt, in which six vessels are operated under
asphalt tanker time charters, four vessels are operated under asphalt
tanker voyage charters or CoAs and the remaining two second-hand
Capesize vessels are operated under bulk carrier time charters. Most of
our vessel fleet are operated under time charters and are chartered to
customers with high performance capabilities on a long-term basis
ranging from one to five years, which generated steady income for our
Group.

We endeavour to provide high quality asphalt tanker and bulk carrier
chartering services. We have our own team of engineers and we are
actively involved in the design of our vessels. Our team works closely
with ship design experts, our customers, the shipyards, the
international classification societies and banks or finance lease
companies. Our major customers include global shipping and logistics
groups, global independent energy traders, and publicly traded energy
companies based in the United States. Our Group has diversified our
business and services and gradually developed our own customers
portfolio.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN W R D

With our Group’s experienced management team and competitive
strengths, our Directors believe that our Group is well-positioned to
further develop our presence in the asphalt tanker chartering services
market and bulk carrier time chartering services. Hence, our Group
maintains the variety of services types with a balanced approach to
meet different demands in the market.

Although the China’'s economy was affected by the outbreak of
COVID-19 in 2020, the imported asphalt has increased by
approximately 476.6 thousand tons or 11% year-on-year, as the
infrastructure investment still played a key role in China’s economy
during the year. During this tough period, basically new shipbuilding
orderbooks of asphalt carriers in the global market remain low, and
some shipowners disposed or upgraded their older vessels, rather than
merging or acquiring other competitors in order to expand their fleet,
which might lead to a reduction in the number of available vessels. In
addition, new environmental regulations on product tanker fleet could
experience a further reduction in supply. Accordingly, the short and
medium term outlook for asphalt tankers remains positive. Besides, the
market of asphalt tanker chartering services across the globe is well
developed and relatively mature and stable for many years, and this
market is expected to maintain stability and gradually develop in the
foreseeable future.

We believe the regions in Asia, Africa and South America have a higher
demand of asphalt tanker chartering, because the need of asphalt is
increasing for infrastructure and construction investments, including
Asian developing countries contracted for the infrastructure projects
under China’s Belt and Road Initiative, and countries in Africa and South
America with infrastructure plan to improve their nation’s
transportation network. In the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic, many
governments globally may consider the infrastructure investment as an
important part of post-COVID-19 economic recovery strategy in
coming years. Countries around the world, especially China, Europe
and the United States, may need to stimulate urgently their own
economic development, mainly through infrastructure investment,
such as the United States proposed a US$1.9 trillion dollars American
Rescue Plan amid the COVID-19 pandemic, will further increase the
demand for asphalt as well as the asphalt tanker chartering. In addition,
the asphalt market demand in China is expected to continue to grow,
driven by rising demand for downstream asphalt industries, especially
highway construction and maintenance, and a surge in investment in
infrastructure construction, may lead to the growth of demand in
asphalt tanker chartering.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN W R DT

The growth of the dry bulk carrier market has been dismal since the
outbreak of COVID-19, with almost every industry facing massive loss,
but market conditions have been rebounding since the middle of the
year. Therefore, we have a positive outlook on dry bulk carrier market
and expect a rebound in the coming year, as the global economy is
expected to grow once more after the COVID-19 pandemic and
effective vaccine on the greater population. Especially, the capesize
type can be the leading segment in the market as a result of the high
demand for transporting iron ore, commodity raw materials and coal
among Asia Pacific regions.

However, the global economy could be adversely affected by the
resurgence in COVID-19 infections and the appearance of new strains
of the virus in various countries. In addition, the US-Sino relationship
and the sanctions against Iran and Venezuela have no further progress
recently, our business may be challenged by these risk factors and
uncertainties.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, our revenue increased to
approximately US$56.0 million by approximately USS$6.2 million or
12.4% from approximately US$49.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. For the Years Under Review, such increase was mainly
due to the increase in revenue generated from the two second-hand
Capesize vessels for providing new bulk carrier time chartering services
since late 2019.

Since two second-hand Capesize vessels, namely XYG Fortune and
XYMG Noble, were delivered in late 2019, which contributed revenue
from bulk carrier time chartering services, amounting to approximately
US$10.6 million, to our Group for the year ended 31 December 2020,
while they only contributed an insignificant revenue from bulk carrier
time chartering services, amounting to approximately US$0.6 million,
to our Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R E il

Revenue generated from asphalt tanker time charter services
decreased by approximately US$3.8 million or 14.7% from
approximately US$25.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately US$22.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. Such decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the
combined effect of (i) lower contracted hire rate was concluded when
the time charters renewal with existing or new time charterparties by
reference to the then market spot rate for (a) two vessels in the second
half of 2019 and (b) a vessel in the first half of 2020, so that their
revenue dropped as compared to the same period last year, though
we maintained the similar level of time charter services for the Years
Under Review, but partially offset by (ii) the revenue from Baustella
increased by approximately US$2.1 million for the Years Under Review,
when it has been changed from voyage charter to time charter since
April 2020.

The increase of approximately US$1.6 million or 7.4% of revenue
generated from asphalt tanker voyage charter, and CoAs from
approximately US$21.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately US$23.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, was mainly due to (i) the increasing average daily hire rate for the
voyage charter, and CoAs market in 2020 mainly owing to the market
tightening in 2020 so that limiting the availability of vessels on the spot
market to rise the prevailing market rates, which was contributed by
the factors, including oil prices plummeted in the first half of 2020
resulting in a surge in demand for tanker which were used as floating
storages, logistical bottlenecks, trading inefficiencies, port congestions,
and contango trades; but such increase was partially offset by (ii) the
revenue from Baustella decreased by approximately US$2.7 million for
the Years Under Review, when the operation of our vessel Baustella has
been changed from voyage charter to time charter since April 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no revenue was generated
from trading of asphalt. While the trading of asphalt contributed an
insignificant revenue, amounting to approximately US$1.7 million, to
our Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWR D

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales increased by approximately US$3.5 million or 9.8%,
from approximately US$35.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately US$39.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. Such increase was in line with the increase in revenue,
mainly resulting from (i) a significant increase in operating costs for the
two second-hand Capesize vessels operated under bulk carrier time
charter, namely XYG Fortune and XYMG Noble, which were delivered
in late 2019, and were in full operation for the year ended 31 December
2020, but partially offset by (ii) none of asphalt trading transaction
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The increase of cost of sales was mainly due to the combined effect of
following factors:

(i) ourcrew expenses recorded an increase of approximately US$1.4
million or 12.7%, which was mainly due to the fact that our two
new Capesize vessels, XYG Fortune and XYMG Noble, were
delivered in late 2019 and put into full operation for the year
ended 31 December 2020, but relatively short period operation
for the year ended 31 December 2019,

(i) our depreciation recorded an increase of approximately US$1.7
million or 18.7%, which was mainly due to the fact that the two
Capesize vessels were depreciated in full for the year ended 31
December 2020, but an insignificant depreciation was charged
for the year ended 31 December 2019,

(i) other operating costs (other than crew expenses and
depreciation) such as insurance, inspection, spare parts and port
charges etc. incurred for the two Capesize vessels were
approximately US$2.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, while such costs were approximately USS$0.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019;

HERAK
HERABBE2019F12A31BIEEE
#9358 BB ETTEMAII5 B EFRITK I8
ZEHZE200F12A31B IEFE4393H
BT o ARG MBI A INE—B - *
EEAR)IZERBE T NELH M
= F 8 0B B HEXYG Fortune N2 XYMG Noble
TR E B A AIRIZ NN - sZ WA AR
019FER RREE2020F 12 A31H
IEFEE2FEL  BHGH)EE2020F 12
A3BLFEVEESEZIRFMEH
HiH o

HER AN IEMEEZRHRIA TEZREGE T
g

() MERIMNM4E B ETTH
12.7% + £ 22 BRI A AL G IR AU
fik XYG Fortune & XYMG Noble 22019
FRRZXNMN REZE2020F128318
IFEE2FEE  MREIZE2019F 12
A3 ALLFEEBELREERE

(i) FrEEMOI7TBEEETKI8T%  *
552 Fh 7 A A E IR A i A A = 2020
FRANBLEFEEZFHE MR
HZE2019F 12831 BItFEEIR
LEFE:

(i) B Z=2020F12A31BLEFEMEE
IR A M EE A AR B - R BR BB
DERSHEMEENA(BRMERS
MITEIINK25EEETT MEE
2019F 12 A3 BIEFERBRALY
BOITBEEET:

FREEEEGR AR /2020 FFHR 13



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN W R D

but partially offset by

(iv) our bunker fees recorded a decrease of approximately USS$0.7
million or 11.7%, which was mainly due to a significant price
decline of bunker market in 2020, though our Group has used
low Sulphur fuel oil with higher price when the new regulation of
IMO2020 was implemented in January 2020; and

(v)  no asphalt trading transaction was made for the year ended 31
December 2020, while the cost for asphalt trading business
amounted to approximately US$1.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately US$2.7 million or 19.3%,
from approximately US$14.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately US$16.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. Such increase was mainly due to (i) the gross profit of
approximately US$4.7 million generated from the aforementioned two
second-hand Capesize vessels operated under bulk carrier time charter
for the year ended 31 December 2020, (ii) the increase in the gross
profit generated from asphalt tanker voyage charters and CoAs, but
partially offset by (iii) the decrease in the gross profit generated from
asphalt tanker time charters services.

Besides, our overall gross profit margin increased from approximately
28.1% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately 29.8%
for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly attributable
to the new bulk carrier time chartering services having a relatively
higher profit margin of approximately 43.8% for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Our gross profit from asphalt tanker voyage charters and CoAs
increased by approximately US$2.6 million or 68.4% for the year ended
31 December 2020, which was in line with (i) the rise of revenue
generated from asphalt tanker voyage charters and CoAs of
approximately 7.4%, and (i) the higher gross profit margin from asphalt
tanker voyage charters and CoAs resulting from the increasing average
daily hire rate for the voyage charter, and CoAs market in 2020.
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BEEERWR D

Our gross profit generated from asphalt tanker time charters services
decreased by approximately US$4.4 million or 44.0% for the year ended
31 December 2020, and its gross profit margin dropped by
approximately 13.5 percentage point. Such decrease was in line with
the decline in revenue from asphalt tanker time chartering by
approximately 14.7%, and lower contracted hire rate when the time
charter renewal with existing or new time charterparties for two vessels
in the second half of 2019 and a vessel in the first half of 2020.

Other income

Our other income decreased by approximately US$0.9 million or 60.0%
from approximately US$1.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately US$0.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in non-recurring
insurance compensation income of approximately US$0.8 million in
relation to the repair costs of vessels for the Years Under Review.

Administrative expenses

Our Group's administrative expenses increased by approximately
USS0.7 million or 28.0% from approximately US$2.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately US$3.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, mainly due to the facts that (i) the loan
handling charges of approximately US$0.1 million in non-recurring
nature were incurred for loan arrangement for the two Capesize vessels
in the first quarter of 2020; and (ii) increase in staff costs (including
directors" emoluments) of approximately US$0.5 million.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses of our Group remained at approximately
US$0.6 million for each of the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2020, mainly included the fair value losses on interest rate swap
contracts, allowance for other receivables and vessels repair costs.
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Exchange gains/losses, net

Our Group’s net exchange losses decreased to approximately
US$89,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately
US$0.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019, which was
principally attributable to the exchange fluctuation of our Group'’s
borrowings denominated in Singapore Dollars (“SGD"). United States
dollars ("USD") depreciated against SGD by approximately 2.0% for the
year ended 31 December 2020, while USD depreciated against SGD by
approximately 1.0% for the year ended 31 December 2019, resulting in
exchange losses when translation of the borrowings denominated in
SGD in both financial years. Besides, our Group gradually decreased the
borrowings denominated in SGD during the Years Under Review by
approximately 21.0%, to approximately US$13.2 million as at 31
December 2020 as compared to the balance of approximately US$16.7
million as at 31 December 2019.

Finance costs

Our finance costs declined by approximately US$1.3 million, or 21.3%
for the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared to the last year.
The decrease was mainly due to gradual repayment of borrowings and
lease liabilities during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense of approximately US$5,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 mainly represented under-provision for Singapore
Corporate Income Tax in prior year. During the year ended 31
December 2020, Singapore Corporate Income Tax has been provided
at rate of 17%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC Corporate Income Tax

was made since our Group has no assessable profit for the Years Under
Review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN W R DT

Profit for the year

Our profit for the Years Under Review increased by approximately
US$2.6 million, or 43.3% to approximately US$8.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 as compared to approximately US$6.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, while our net profit
margin also increased to approximately 15.4% from approximately
12.0% for the respective years. Such increase in our profit for the Years
Under Review was primarily due to the increase in gross profits of
approximately US$2.7 million, mainly attributable to the contribution
from the two new Capesize vessels operated under bulk carrier time
charter.

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2020, our Group’s total assets amounted to
approximately US$212.5 million (2019: approximately US$219.0 million)
with net assets amounting to approximately US$119.3 million (2019:
approximately US$105.1 million). As at 31 December 2020, gearing
ratio (total debts divided by the total equity attributable to owners of
our Company) of our Group was 0.75, representing a decrease of 27.9
percentage points as compared to that of 1.04 as at the end of 2019.
Net debt to equity ratio (net debt, being our total debts net of bank
and cash balances and pledged bank deposits, by total equity
attributable to owners of our Company) of our Group was 0.66 as at 31
December 2020, representing a decrease of 34.0 percentage points as
compared to that of 1.0 as at the end of 2019. Current ratio of our
Group was 045, representing an increase of 95.7 percentage points as
compared to that of 0.23 as at the end of 2019, as a result of the net
operating inflows and net proceeds from new shares issued during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the liquidity position had an improvement as
compared to the end of 2019. Our Group adopts a balanced approach
to cash and financial management to ensure proper risk control and
lower the costs of funds, and seek to maintain optimal level of liquidity
that can meet our working capital needs while supporting a healthy
level of business and our various growth strategies. Our Group finances
our operations and growth primarily through cash generated from
operations, borrowing and finance lease arrangement, as well as the
net proceeds from the new shares issued.
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As at 31 December 2020, our Group had net current liabilities of
approximately US$17.4 million. Our Directors are confident that our
Group has ability to continue to attain profitable and positive cash
flows operations in the immediate and longer terms. In order to
strengthen our liquidity in the foreseeable future, our Group has taken
several measures, including but not limited to (i) a related company
has agreed to extend the repayment date of loans to our Group
amounted to approximately US$2.5 million from December 2021 to
December 2022. The aforesaid supplementary agreement with a
related company was signed on 2 March 2021; (i) our Group entered
into a finance lease with a financial institution for approximately
US$12.6 million with the pledge of a vessel of our Group for a period of
six years on 2 March 2021. Further on 8 March 2021, our Group received
US$12.4 million from the financial institution; (i) negotiating with
banks and other financial institutions in advance for renewal and
obtaining new banking facilities; (iv) our Group has been taking various
cost control measures to tighten the costs of operations; and (v) our
Group has been implementing various strategies to enhance our
Group’s revenue and profitability. Considering the current and
anticipated future liquidity of our Group and the above measures, our
Directors have concluded that our Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due and
accordingly the consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis.

As at 31 December 2020, our Group's borrowings and lease liabilities of
approximately US$88.9 million in aggregate decreased by
approximately US$20.8 million as compared to 31 December 2019,
which was primarily due to repayment of debts financing by the profits
generated from operations as well as the proceeds from issuance of
new shares during the year ended 31 December 2020. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, our Group obtained the proceeds from
borrowings with total amount of US$20.5 million, mainly including two
other loans and one loan from a related company; on the other hand,
our Group has repaid the aggregate borrowings and lease liabilities of
approximately US$41.6 million on a timely basis.
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As at 31 December 2020, our Group had pledged bank deposits and
bank and cash balances of approximately US$10.2 million in aggregate,
representing an increase of approximately US$6.0 million as compared
to approximately US$4.2 million as at 31 December 2019. Such increase
was mainly due to profits generated from operations as well as the
proceeds from issuance of new shares. Our pledged bank deposits are
denominated in USD and most of our bank and cash balances are
denominated in USD.

Treasury Policies

The primary objective of our Group's capital management is to
maintain its ability to continue as a going concern so that our Group
can constantly provide returns for shareholders of our Company (the
“Shareholders”) and benefits for other stakeholders by securing
access to financing at reasonable costs. Our Group actively and
regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and makes
adjustment by taking into consideration the changes in economic
conditions, its future capital requirements, prevailing and projected
profitability and operating cash flows, projected capital expenditures
and projected strategic investment opportunities.

INDEBTEDNESS

As at 31 December 2020, our Group's indebtedness mainly comprised
borrowings and lease liabilities of approximately US$43.5 million and
US$45.4 million respectively. Our borrowings are denominated in USD
and SGD, while lease liabilities are denominated in USD. All borrowings
and lease liabilities are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing our
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. During the year ended 31
December 2020, our Group used interest rate swaps in order to
mitigate its exposure associated with fluctuations relating to interest
cash flows.
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The maturity of borrowings and lease liabilities as at 31 December 2020

R2020F 128318 ERNEEAERN

is as follows: HERR AT :
Lease
Borrowings liabilities
B HEEE
Uss$'000 US$'000
FER FER
Within one year —FE PN 12,787 14,184
More than one year, but not exceeding —F A BT HEBRE
two years 15,087 17,022
More than two years, but not more than MEFEA B TBBRSF
five years 15,660 14,149
43534 45,355

As at 31 December 2020, our borrowings comprised of bank loans,
other loans and loans from a related company, amounting to
approximately US$25.2 million, US$15.8 million and USS$2.5 million,
respectively.

Bank loans were obtained for the sole purpose of the construction of
the vessels. As at 31 December 2020, the bank loans were secured by
the followings:

(@) mortgage over our Group's vessels;

(b) corporate guarantees provided by our Company and subsidiaries;
and

(c) pledged bank deposits and restricted bank balances.

Other loans were obtained for the additional working capital of our
Group. As at 31 December 2020, the other loans were secured by the
followings:

(@) mortgage over our Group's vessels;

(b)  corporate guarantees provided by our Company and subsidiaries;
and

(c) restricted bank balances.
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As at 31 December 2020, our lease liabilities of approximately US$45.3
million were secured by:

(@) charges over our Group's certain right-of-use assets;

(b) corporate guarantee provided by our Company and/or
subsidiaries;

(c) restricted bank balances; and
(d) shares of certain subsidiaries.

The remaining lease liabilities of approximately USS$0.1 million was in
relation to the office properties leases and no collateral was secured.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

Our Group has a certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of respective Group
entities such as SGD and Renminbi. Our Group also has adopted a
foreign exchange rate and interest rate risk control policy to manage
the foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. Our Group monitors the
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
transactions to mitigate significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise. Our Group has foreign currency forward contracts to
hedge the foreign currency risk in respect of borrowings denominated
in SGD.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of pledged bank
deposits, bank balances restricted from being used and vessels
pledged as securities for our Group's borrowings amounted to
approximately US$1.4 million, US$1.7 million and US$95.0 million
respectively. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of vessels
as right-of-use assets held by our Group and bank balances restricted
from being used under finance leases arrangement amounted to
approximately US$103.1 million and US$1.2 million, respectively.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENT
As at 31 December 2020, our Group did not have any material capital
commitment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2020, our Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

We value our employees and recognise the importance of a good
relationship with our employees. We recruit our employees based on
their work experience, education background and qualifications. To
maintain and ensure the quality of our employees, we provide our
personnel formal and on-the-job training to enhance their technical
skills as well as knowledge of industry quality standards and work place
safety standards. As at 31 December 2020, our Group had a total of 35
employees of which 30 were in the PRC, 2 were in Hong Kong and 3
were in Singapore. The remuneration to our employees includes
salaries and allowances. Employees are remunerated according to their
qualifications, experiences, job nature, performance and with reference
to market conditions.

Our Group's total employee benefit expenses (including Directors’
emoluments) for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 were
approximately US$1.8 million and US$1.3 million, respectively.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Our Group had not held any significant investments during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by
our Group.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no definite future plan for material investments or
acquisition of material capital assets as at 31 December 2020.
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USE OF PROCEED FROM SUBSCRIPTIONS

Pursuant to the subscription agreements dated 19 May 2020, the
Company allotted and issued, and the subscribers subscribed for, an
aggregate of 40,000,000 shares of the Company at HK$1.092 per share
for an aggregate cash consideration of HK$43,680,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$5,628,866) on 3 June 2020 (the “Subscriptions”).

The aggregate gross proceeds of the Subscriptions amounted to
HK$43,680,000 (equivalent to approximately US$5,628,866) and the
aggregate net proceeds, after the deduction of the related expenses,
was approximately HK$43,280,000 (equivalent to approximately
USS$5,577,320). As at 31 December 2020, the net proceeds from the
Subscriptions remained un-utilised and it is intended that they will be
applied for general working capital of the Group in the next three years,
as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19 May 2020
as follows:

AEEEMEREAR

BIEBH A 202055 A 19 B R ERE -
KN EH2020F 6 A3 HIZFIRAL 1.092
78 70 Bt 8% K 317 A $£40,000,000 AN A 7]
B R EE A LA AR IR £ (& 43,680,000
77T (BB 7 495,628,866 27T ) RIEZ E R
D ([REEHE]) -

REEFBEB 2 HMERBEEBEARA
43,680,000 7T (FHE 1A 495,628866 FE 7T )
MK EEAX % 2B FREAEN A
43,280,000 8 TT (M8 R 495,577,320 TT) °
R2020F 12318 REBEBHEZ BN
BEBIDABA  MARGEIZARRH
H3/& 2020 5 A 19 BRI A EFTIHER AR
“FBEAERER —REEES ' FF
BT :

Proposed use of

proceeds as
disclosed in the
announcement Un-utilised
of the Utilised up to up to
Company dated 31 December 31 December
19 May 2020 2020 2020
AT AR
20205 A 19H 8= Bz
MRS E 2020 F 2020 F
FRGRRIEHY 12H31H 12A31H
BERRZR =X REA
HKS HKS HKS
BT BIT BT
General working capital —fREEES 43,280,000 - 43,280,000

ERECEEEBRAF /2020 FFR 23



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN W R D

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
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After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and continued to
be implemented across the globe. Our Group is paying close
attention to the development of, and the disruption to business
and economic activities caused by, the COVID-19 outbreak and
evaluate its impact on the financial position, cash flows and
operating results of our Group. Given the dynamic nature of the
COVID-19 outbreak, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of its impacts on our Group's financial position, cash
flows and operating results at the date of this report.

On 2 March 2021, our Group entered into a supplementary
agreement with a related company for the extension of the
repayment term from December 2021 to December 2022.

On 2 March 2021, our Group entered into a finance lease
agreement of US$12,600,000 for the additional working capital of
our Group. The lease is repayable in six years, and secured by the
followings:

(i) charge over a vessel of our Group;

(i) corporate guarantee provided by our Company;

(iii)  restricted bank balance; and

(iv)  100% of the shares of a subsidiary

Further on 8 March 2021, our Group received approximately
US$12.4 million from the financial institution.

Mr. Chen Ming and Mr. Lin Shifeng was each appointed as an
executive Director on 25 March 2021. For details of Mr. Chen
Ming and Mr. Lin Shifeng, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 25 March 2021.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Wang Faqing

Mr. Wang Faging (EXB%4)
and the chairman of the Board. He is currently the chairman of the
board, legal representative and general manager of China MingShang
Commodity Exchange Center Limited * (R KRG mR 5+ LER
72 A]). Currently, he is a director of each member of our Group other
than Xin Yuan Ship Management (Hong Kong) Limited. Before joining

, aged 57, is our executive Director

the Group, he was a vice president at Weimin International Holdings
Limited* (bK R BIFR 1 AR &2 B B FR 2 A)) from July 2017 to July 2019.

Mr. Wang obtained the certificate of Fujian Province Administrative
Law Enforcement Qualification* (f& & 1 I E B &8 &) issued by
the Fujian Provincial People’s Government* ({8 & ARB/) in
December 2005. He obtained the certificate of Surveying and Mapping
Intermediate Engineer* (Al48 A 4 T#2AM) issued by the Fujian
Provincial Personnel Department* ({2724 A £ E2) in October 2005.
He obtained the Registered Quialification Certificate for Enterprise Legal
Adviser of The People’s Republic of China (2 AR MBI {5572
FEM £ B R FEE) issued by the Fujian Provincial Personnel
Department* (f&#2%& AFEEE) in December 2004. He obtained the
certificate of Land Management Assistant Engineer* (T #E IEBNIE T
F2A) issued by the Fuzhou Municipal Personnel Bureau* (&1 Th A 5
@) in July 1992.

Mr. Wang passed the Self-Taught Higher Education Examinations (f& %

# A BE%E) and obtained a bachelor of laws degree at Xiamen
University (B PIRE2) in December 1992.

* For identification only
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Xu Wenjun

Mr. Xu Wenjun (8 X9 % 4), aged 65, is our executive Director and
the chief executive officer of our Group. Mr. Xu has been a Director
since 28 June 2016, being the date of incorporation of our Company.
Mr. Xu has participated in the management of our Group since 1
February 2010 where he has been responsible for corporate strategic
planning, overseeing the overall operations and business development
and day-to-day business management of our Group. Mr. Xu is a director
of each member of our Group other than Xinlanhai.

Mr. Xu has approximately fourteen years of relevant experience in the
shipping industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Xu worked as the
deputy general manager at Fuzhou Dongfang Jinrong Shipping Co,,
Ltd. ((@ N R J7 $R ARG EFBR A F)), a company principally engaged in
international shipping management business, from November 2002 to
June 2006, where he was mainly responsible for international shipping
business. From May 2006 until now, Mr. Xu worked as the general
manager of Fujian Chuan Yuan, a company principally engaged in
investment, where he was mainly responsible for making investment.

Mr. Xu served as the chief executive officer and general manager of
Jincheng Hengtong from January 2010 to November 2017, where he
was mainly responsible for overseeing the overall operations.

Mr. Xu received the certificate of Adult Higher Education majoring in

economic management from Fujian Normal University (1& 2Rl &5 X
B in the PRC in September 2000.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management
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Ding Yuzhao

Mr. Ding Yuzhao (T E£I%t4), aged 66, is our executive Director. Mr.
Ding has been a Director since 28 June 2016, being the date of
incorporation of our Company. Mr. Ding has participated in the
management of our Group since 1 February 2010 where he has been
responsible for overseeing the overall operations and business
development of our Group.

Mr. Ding has approximately ten years of relevant experience in the
shipping industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Ding worked as a
deputy manager at Ningde District Power Company (B2{& 10 & A
7)), a company principally engaged in providing technical support and
construction for power systems from March 1990 to December 1991,
where he was mainly responsible for providing technical support for
power construction. From April 1994 to May 1997, Mr. Ding worked as
a director and general manager at Fujian Muyang Creek Hydropower
Development Co,, Ltd. ({224 BIF XK E R EEH R A7), a company
principally engaged in hydropower construction, where he was mainly
responsible for providing technical support for hydropower station
development and construction. From May 1997 to August 2006, Mr.
Ding served as the general manager of Mindong Power Investment
Company Limited (B R geJRIZ & B R 2 R]), which is principally
engaged the business of power investment, where he was mainly
responsible for overseeing investment in hydropower station and
fossil-fuel power station.
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From November 2003 to August 2006, Mr. Ding served as the general
manager of Ningde City State-owned Asset Investment Company
Limited (BETWE A EEREBRAF]), a company principally
engaged in investment, where he was mainly responsible for investment
and operation of state-owned asset. From August 2006 to March 2010,
Mr. Ding served as the chairman of Ningde City State-owned Properties
Investment & Management Co, Ltid. (BEME A BEERELEFRA
7)) and director of Ningde City State-owned Asset Supervision and
Management Committee (BEMREEEEEEIEEZE D), both of
which principally engaged the business of investment, where he was
mainly responsible for investment and operation of state-owned asset.
From July 2011 to September 2017, Mr. Ding served as the general
manager at Fujian Haodeyuan Investment Co, Ltd (fR 2 2ETTIRE S
FR 2 7)), a company principally engaged in investment, where he was
mainly responsible for investment in real estate business. From January
2016 until now, Mr. Ding served as the supervisor of Xiamen Tangram
Science and Technology Co., Ltd. (BEFIE AR MHBER A A), a
company principally engages in information technology.

Mr. Ding received the Bachelor's degree from the electric engineering
school of the Wuhan Institute of Hydraulic and Electric Engineering (.
EIKFIE S, currently known as School of Electrical Engineering
and Automation, Wu Han University (BUE X2 E R 5 80 Eb7)
majoring in High-voltage electricity technology and equipment in
September 1982. Mr. Ding was granted the qualification as a senior
engineer in hydropower by the Department of Personnel of Fujian
Province in July 1996.
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Chen Ming

Mr. Chen Ming (BR$4%C4E), aged 25, was appointed as our executive
director on 25 March 2021, who has approximately 2 years of
experience in corporate governance. From September 2018 to October
2020, Mr. Chen worked in Xinhua Fortune Group Company Limited*
(BIFEET = £ B AR A R]) (a company primarily engaged in Iron and
steel, e-commerce, agriculture, real estate, tourism and other industries
coordinated development) as the assistant to the chairman,
responsible for assisting the chairman of the board to call and preside
over the general meeting of the management, organising the
discussion of the company's development plan, operation policy,
annual plan and major issues in daily operation.

Mr. Chen is the son of Mr. Chen Mao Chun, who held in a total of
116,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company, representing
approximately 26.36% of the share interest in the Company through
his wholly owned company named UNIVERSAL INTERNATIONAL
TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) LIMITED (RFEIBREEHL (BB BR A
al).

Mr. Chen graduated from Beijing Sport University (1t 5 88 B A &3) and
received a bachelor's degree in Sports Economics And Management in
July 2018.

Lin Shifeng

Mr. Lin Shifeng (WK t:82 55 4E), aged 44, was appointed as our executive
director on 25 March 2021, has been serving as the financial controller
of the Company since July 2016. Mr. Lin has participated in the
management of the group since July 2016 where he has been primarily
responsible for overseeing the financial planning and accounting
management of the Group.

Mr. Lin has approximately twenty years of relevant experience in
accounting and finance management, where he has spent
approximately eighteen years in the shipping industry. Prior to joining
the group, Mr. Lin worked as a financial supervisor at Fujian Wanfeng
Shoes Co., Ltd* (@i B2 & B[R A 7)), a company principally
engaged in sports products production, from July 2000 to November
2003, where he was mainly responsible for cost accounting and
difference analysis, data statistics and financial statement preparation.
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From November 2003 to January 2006, Mr. Lin worked as an
accountant at P&O NEDLLOYD (CHINA) Ltd. Fuzhou Branch (#1778 %=

(RE) MEAERAEEM D A7), a company principally engaged
in shipping business, where he was mainly responsible for cost
accounting and cost control.

From February 2006 to November 2007, Mr. Lin worked as an assistant
accountant and cost manager at Maersk Logistics (China) Co., Ltd,, a
company principally engaged in container shipping, where he was
mainly responsible for registering and controlling operational cost and
assisting payment center to arrange operational payment.

From November 2007 to January 2015, Mr. Lin served as a financial
ofﬁcer at CMA CGM (China) Shlppmg Co,Ltd. Fuzhou Branch (Z¥m
N (P BB BR A BRI D A7), a company principally engaged in
container transportation, vvhere he was mainly responsible for
accounting management and accounting principal setting up.

Mr. Lin served as the finance manager of Jincheng Hengtong from
March 2015 until April 2016 and as the financial controller from July
2016 until November 2017, where he was mainly responsible for
accounting management.

From April 2016 to June 2016, Mr. Lin served as a ﬁnance manager at
Air Liquide (Fuzhou) Co,, Ltd* (RI1LZ=REEIMNBR A
principally engaged in the supplying of industrial gases and services,
where he was mainly responsible for accounting management and
accounting principal setting up.

, a company

Mr. Lin graduated from Changchun University of Science and
Technology (&I T KE), formerly known as Changchun Institute
of Optics and Precision Instruments (K& BB Z s 20t) and
received a bachelor 's degree in accounting in July 2000. Mr. Lin
obtained the certificate for passing all the required subjects of the
professional stage of the national uniform CPA Examination of P.R.
China GEftEEtENI 2 B4 —E A B XM EREH S & )issued by the
Certified Public Accountant Examination Committee of The Ministry of
Finance, PR. China (B E st ZEREE D)
2018.

in December
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Lai Guanrong

Dr. Lai Guanrong (F8#R£:818 1), aged 58, has been our independent
non-executive Director since 6 September 2018.

Dr. Lai has over thirty years of experience in finance industry. Dr. Lai is
currently the vice chairman of ABC Life Insurance Co, Ltd. (BiF A SR
@ AN B R A R]) since 2013. Dr Lai is also the chief economist of
Shenzhen CMAF Management Co, Ltd (R Z B = /HIREEIEHR
FR A 7)) since August 2018. Dr. Lai has also been serving as an
independent non-executive director of Chinasoft International Limited
(Stock Exchange stock code: 354), a company principally engaged in
system applications technology service business since June 2015,
Besides, Dr. Lai is also the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of
Beijing Zhongguancun Science City Construction Holding Co., Ltd and
the director of China Sciences Group (Holding) Co., Ltd since 2015. Dr.
Lai graduated from the School of Economics of Xiamen University in
July 1983 with a bachelor's degree, specialising in finance. He was
awarded a master's degree in currency and banking business by the
PBC School of Finance of Tsinghua University (formerly known as the
Graduate School of the People’s Bank of China) in June 1986. He was
awarded a doctor's degree majoring in finance by the School of
Economics of Xiamen University in December 2001. He also took part
in the 8-month special topic training “Dialogue between financial
capital and technological innovation” organised by Tsinghua University
in 2014.

Suen Chi Wai

Mr. Suen Chi Wai (FRE1Z FL4E), aged 56, has been our independent
non-executive Director since 6 September 2018. He is a practising
solicitor in Hong Kong and a partner of Withers. Mr. Suen has
approximately nineteen years’ experience in corporate finance and
with area of practice principally in initial public offerings on the Stock
Exchange, mergers and acquisitions, corporate reorganisations and
Listing Rules compliance.
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Before joining Withers, Mr. Suen was an associate and later a partner of
DLA Piper Hong Kong from June 2007 to May 2012 and May 2012 to
February 2018 respectively, and served as a manager in the investment
products department of the SFC between October 2005 and July 2006,
responsible for reviewing applications of collective investment
schemes and monitoring continuing compliance of authorized
schemes. Mr. Suen was an assistant solicitor at Woo Kwan Lee & Lo
from September 2000 to March 2005. Mr. Suen was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Da Yu Financial Holdings
Limited (Stock Exchange stock code: 01073), a company principally
engaged in provision of corporate finance advisory services and asset
management services on 26 July 2019; and Venus Medtech (Hangzhou)
Inc. (Stock Exchange stock code: 02500), a company principally
engaged in transcatheter heart valve medical device business on 8 July
2019 respectively.

Mr. Suen graduated from the University of East Anglia in July 1987 with
a Bachelor of Science Degree and the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
program in the University of Hong Kong in June 1998. Mr. Suen was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in October 2000 and in England
and Wales in December 2003. Mr. Suen is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since May 1998 and a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since April 1993.

Xu Jie
Mr. Xu Jie (fREESCHE), aged 66, has been our independent non-
executive Director since 6 September 2018.

Mr. Xu has accumulated over thirty-three years of experience in the
legal field. From June 1986 to July 1993, Mr. Xu was the deputy
president of the Maritime Commercial Tribunal of the Shanghai
Maritime Court (/883 AB7) of the PRC. From September 1993 to
October 1994, Mr. Xu was a teacher at the Shanghai Maritime College
(B8 /838 EBR), currently known as Shanghai Maritime University (=
B EKE) From October 1994 to December 2000, Mr. Xu worked as
a partner in Shanghai Duan & Duan Law Firm (_E/8EX FEX 2N E 75
FT). From January 2001 to May 2014, Mr. Xu served as the partner of
Shanghai Haoying Law Firm* (/8T &2 EHEAT). From May
2014 to November 2016, Mr. Xu served as the senior partner of CoEffort
Law Firm LLP (=781 15 772 R0 SE 75 ).

* For identification only
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Mr. Xu graduated from the Shanghai Maritime College (/& /5B
BT), currently known as Shanghai Maritime University (/885 K£2)
in January 1982 with a Bachelor's degree, majoring in ocean shipping
business, and obtained a Master’s degree majoring in international
economic law in January 1991. Mr. Xu has also been an arbitrator at the
China Maritime Arbitration Commission (P EBI/EE{HEZE 8 @) since
May 2017.

Senior management

Mr. Chen Chengmei (FR B8 55 4E), aged 58, is the vice president of
our Company since 28 June 2016. Mr. Chen has participated in the
management of our Group since 1 February 2010 where he has been
primarily responsible for supervising tanker chartering business of our
Group.

Mr. Chen has approximately nine years of relevant experience in the
shipping industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen served as the
general manager at Fuzhou South Pipeline Gas Technology
Development Co,, Ltd* (f&/NFE 5 BB R TG R A 7)) from
April 2002 to April 2004, a company principally engaged in gas
Technology Development pipeline provision, where he was mainly
responsible for overseeing the overall operations of gas pipeline
provision.

From May 2006 until April 2018, Mr. Chen served as the deputy general
manager at Fujian Chuan Yuan, a company principally engaged in
investment, where he was mainly responsible for supervising overall
operations.

Mr. Chen served as the deputy chief executive officer of Jincheng
Hengtong from January 2010 until November 2017, where he was
mainly responsible for supervening investment of Jincheng Hengtong.
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EENREREEERE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yim Lok Kwan (BZi&#9%4), was appointed as the company
secretary of our Company on 14 June 2018. Mr. Yim has over 7 years of
experience in the corporate services field. Mr. Yim currently serves as a
manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited
("SWCS"), formerly known as SW Corporate Services Group Limited, a
professional services provider specialising in corporate services. Mr. Yim
was nominated by SWCS to act as our company secretary pursuant to
an engagement letter entered into between our Company and SWCS.

Mr. Yim graduated from Hong Kong Shue Yan University and received
a Bachelor's Degree in accounting in July 2010. In September 2016, Mr.
Yim obtained a master’s degree in corporate governance from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Since December 2016, he has been
both an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are crucial to improving the efficiency and performance of the Group
and to safeguarding the interests of the shareholders. The Board
reviews the Company’s corporate governance practices from time to
time in order to meet the expectations of stakeholders and comply
with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance. Set out below are
the principles of corporate governance as adopted by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders, enhance
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code’) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own's
corporate governance code of practices and complied with all the
code provisions set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors of any non-
compliance with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December
2020, and they have all confirmed their full compliance with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and should take decisions objectively in the best interests
of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time in performing them.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

As at 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report, there
are five executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors of the Company. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Faqging (Chairman)

Mr. Xu Wenjun (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Ding Yuzhao

Mr. Chen Ming (appointed on 25 March 2021)
Mr. Lin Shifeng (appointed on 25 March 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Lai Guanrong

Mr. Suen Chi Wai

Mr. Xu Jie

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section
headed "Biography of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The independent non- executive Directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors do not have any other financial,

business, family or other material/relevant relationships with one
another.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company have been separated as required by code provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code. For the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Wang Faging
has served as the chairman of Company and Mr. Xu Wenjun has served
as the chief executive officer of the Company.

The chairman provides leadership and governance for the Board so as
to create the conditions for the effective performance of the Board as a
whole and effective contribution by individual Director and to ensure
that the Board performs its responsibilities and all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The chief
executive officer has the delegated power to manage the Company
and to oversee the activities of the Company on a day-to-day basis.

The division of responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive officer is defined and established in writing.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records
During the reporting period, the Company convened one annual

general meeting and four Board meetings.

The attendance of the above meetings by each Director is as follows:

FERTHEAR
AARFERFETHREZNABCEREBERE
EIASTRIR ST ANESCE A2 VIR TE F AR
D BIE2020F12A31BIEFE - £
BREBARRNGBINER @ MIFXHEBER
RIMTTIRABEL -

TFEOBREDRATRENERESTE - Ja
HEEFEERAMNKIRMERESIFL
ERBERARNRE  THEAREFSET
EEBELREFS MR RMAEEERR
EOREE - TRAKNCEERENEER
RAIMEEARARRNE B XL

TEETHARNBERERD - WAE
A HESL e

EXEERNESHELHE
RARE R - AR R — KR BF
R MBFERBTOAEEEEH -

SEEFHELEEZNBEREINWT

Number of meetings attended/
held during the Director’s
term of office
ESNEHRHE SITERRE

Annual general

Board meeting meeting
Name of Directors EEng EEg8E BRRBFAE
Mr. Wang Faqing (Chairman) EEBEEE(FE) 4/4 1
Mr. Xu Wenjun (Chief Executive Officer) B (7T AEE) 4/4 1/1
Mr. Ding Yuzhao TE&IEAE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Chen Ming BoR £ 4% A (i) N/A A~ N/A A~
Mr. Lin Shifeng ®ete D MR $% S A (i) N/A 38 N/A N
Dr. Lai Guanrong FEELERIE T 4/4 1/1
Mr. Suen Chi Wai BREBREAE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Xu Jie wEEE 4/4 1/1

Note: B

1. Mr. Chen Ming and Mr. Lin Shifeng was each appointed as an executive Director
on 25 March 2021.
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors during the reporting period.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the reporting period and up to the date of this annual report,
the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
outin Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance
with the independence requirement set out in the Listing Rules.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Directors is engaged on a service contract (in the case of
the executive Directors) or a letter of appointment (in the case of
independent non-executive Directors) for a specific term of three years.

The Articles of Association provides that all Directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall be subject to
election by shareholders at the next following general meeting of the
Company.

Every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall also
be subject to retirement and re-election by rotation at least once every
three years at the annual general meetings of the Company under the
Articles of Association of the Company.
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Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and
risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgment on
corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating the daily operation and management of the Company
are delegated to the management.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
they remain informed and relevant for their contribution to the Board.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and
reading material on relevant topics would be provided to Directors
where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company's expenses.

During the reporting period, all Directors had complied with the code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code through attending training courses or
reading materials relevant to the duties of Directors.

EENFAERER

EER TR KEE SRR IEBHNRINHE
S UBARETHERE  URREEET
EEemEMMIaMBENBR THES
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The table below summarises the participation of each of the Directors &Rl & & H 0k R &Ei$#ﬁ
in continuous professional development during the reporting period HEIZEFEHEREMNS)
and up to the date of this annual report:
Reading Legal
and Regulatory
Updates and
other Reference
Materials
B B B AT
EBIR R AR
Name of Director EEEE HittzZ&H8
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wang Faging FEBEE v
Mr. Xu Wenjun w3 EAE Vv
Mr. Ding Yuzhao TE8EA Vv
Mr. Chen Ming ®ete D PR 8% 5t A () v
Mr. Lin Shifeng ®ete M4 5 A (D \
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Dr. Lai Guanrong FEER R E T v
Mr. Suen Chi Wai REREE v
Mr. Xu Jie RELE v
Note: Pt 5

1. Mr. Chen Ming and Mr. Lin Shifeng was each appointed as an executive Director
on 25 March 2021.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with specific written terms
of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee are independent non-
executive Directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Lai Guanrong, Mr. Suen Chi Wai and Mr. Xu Jie, Mr.
Suen Chi Wai, being the chairman of the committee, is appropriately
qualified as required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting process,
risk management and internal controls system of the Group, assist the
Board to fulfill its responsibility over the audit, and review and approve
connected transactions and to advise the Board.
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The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the functions
set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. These include
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board,;
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management of the Company;
reviewing and monitoring the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors of the Company;
and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code from time
to time adopted by the Company and the disclosure in the corporate
governance report to be contained in the Company’s annual report.

During the reporting period, three Audit Committee meetings were
held. It had reviewed and discussed the interim and annual financial
statements, the interim report, annual results announcement and
report, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group and
recommended the re-appointment of auditor to the Board.

The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

EZZBeNAEBRTERERTRIE
D31 55T AR PrEt rO B BE - & B E
ERBEARBNERERABRRIRER -
FHEFSREILER B MERART
EENSREBABNEIINGEERE
B e RERARREETARRES
MESTHMBERMER © §IE - e RE&
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M ng) « R AR RE ST AR F A
RN EE AT RIMIER MR R R]F
WAAEEEE R RE NRBEE

RBEME CRT-ZREREZESE
& HeFEALIwmPHERFEEYHR
xR PHImE  FEEEQLTMRE K
SEFRAN G TR R BOIIARAREE
NED I B R - R E B IEEAD
RAEFSELEEER

BEZZEBEKEMHFRENT

Attendance/

Number of

Meeting(s)

Name of Members of the Audit Committee EREESHENR HER 3N
Mr. Suen Chi Wa (Chairman) BEBEE(EFE) 3/3
Dr. Lai Guanrong FRELSRIE T 3/3
Mr. Xu Jie wREEE 3/3

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Xu Jie and Mr. Suen Chi Wai, the independent
non-executive Directors, and Mr. Xu Wenjun, the chief executive officer
and executive Director. Mr. Xu Jie is the chairman of the committee.
The majority of the Remuneration Committee members are
independent non- executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of
the Remuneration Committee are to review and make
recommendations to the Board regarding the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to our Directors
and senior management.

During the reporting period, two meetings of the Remuneration
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Committee were held. It had reviewed the Company's remuneration 3% - AR BEH AL EHBESE RS RER
policy and restructure and the remuneration package for Directors and  [EH)FF BN SR M 2848 - LARE BN 22 - %
senior management. The attendance records of the members of the BHEZ B & B FEsrunT ¢
Remuneration Committee are as follows:
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting(s)
Name of Members of the Remuneration Committee FMEEEREHE HER EERE
Mr. Xu Jie (Chairman) BwESRE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Xu Wenjun wXHEE 2/2
Mr. Suen Chi Wai BRERTE 2/2
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
remuneration of the senior management (other than Directors) by
bands for the year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:

BIECEEATREBISIETANE » B
E20200F N2 ANHILEFE  BHMNER
EERENSREEAB (ESHRIN F T
BT :

Number of

employee(s)

(Note)

Remuneration bands N E EE A (FIEE)

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 =2 1,000,000 B JT 3
Note:  Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 14 to the consolidated {3} : BEHEH MM BH N A ERGE S B REN

financial statements in this annual report. 140
Nomination Committee REEFES

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely Mr.
Wang Faging, the chairman and executive Director, Mr. Suen Chi Wai
and Mr. Xu Jie, the independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Wang
Faging is the chairman of the committee. The majority of the
Nomination Committee members are independent non-executive
Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of
the Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to our
Board regarding the appointment of Directors and Board succession.
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The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (‘Board Diversity
Policy”). A summary of the Board Diversity Policy is set out below:

Purpose:

Board Diversity
Policy
statement:

Measurable
Objectives:

The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to
achieve diversity in the Company's Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board's composition, the
Nomination committee has primary responsibility for
identifying suitably qualified candidates to become
members of the Board and all Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. All appointments are based on
the principle of merit-based appointment and
comprehensive consideration of objective conditions, so as
to select leading talents with both ability and virtue.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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The Nomination Committee has adopted a nomination policy
(‘Nomination Policy”) which sets out a set of nomination procedures
and selection criteria for directors. The Nomination Committee shall
evaluate and select candidates based on the criteria by reference to
character and integrity, business experience relevant and beneficial to
the Company, qualifications including professional qualifications, skills
and knowledge that are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy, willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and other significant commitments,
present needs of the Board for particular expertise, skills or experience
and whether the candidates would satisfy those needs, requirement
for the Board to have independent directors in accordance with the
Listing Rules and whether the candidates for independent directors
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and the Board
Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted by the
Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the Board.

During the reporting period, one meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held. It had reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, made recommendations to the
Board on the re-appointment of Directors and reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the Nomination Policy. The
attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee are
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as follows:

Attendance/

Number of

Meeting(s)

Name of Members of the Nomination Committee REZESREMSR HER S3NH
Mr. Wang Faqing (Chairman) FERBEE(FE) 1
Mr. Suen Chi Wai BREELE 1/1
Mr. Xu Jie wREE /1
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an
ongoing basis. We evaluate and monitor key risks within our business
as follows:

Credit Risk. We select customers with good credit records and
preferably larger companies with long established records. For
further details, please refer to the section headed “Business —
Sales and Marketing” in the Prospectus.

Environmental Risk. We maintain a newer fleet of vessels with an
average age of less than three years old, with regular inspections
of equipment carried out and we rely on experienced and
professional ship management companies to minimise the
probability of environmental pollution. For further details, please
refer to the section headed “Business — Suppliers — Ship
Management Companies” in the Prospectus.

Market Risk. We are exposed to various types of market risks,
including changes in foreign exchange rate, interest rate and
fluctuations of any component of our operating costs during the
normal course of business.

For further details regarding our exposure to market risks, please
refer to the sections headed “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Our
Business” and “Financial Information — Principal Factors Affecting
Our Results of Operations” in the Prospectus.

Political Risk. As maritime safety will be affected by political
unrest, our marine department will closely monitor the maritime
safety of the route of our vessels to minimize the impact of local
conflicts or other political unrest.

During the reporting period, the Group has engaged an independent
internal control consultant to a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance as well as risk
management. The Board considers that the Group's risk management
and internal control are adequate and effective. The Group does not
have an internal audit function and will engage an external party to
review risk management and internal control systems annually.
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In addition, the procedures on disclosure of inside information were in
place to ensure that all relevant facts and circumstances that may have
material effect on the share price of the Company are promptly
assessed and that any material information which comes to the
knowledge of any one or more officers of the Group is promptly
identified, assessed and, if appropriate, escalated for the attention of
the Board to determine whether a disclosure is required.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Directors have taken into account the cash requirements of the
Group for the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period
and the measures disclosed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, and have concluded that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due
and accordingly the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend distribution ratio shall be determined by the Board from
time to time. The declaration and payment of dividends shall be
determined by the Board, which is also in the best interests of the
Group and shareholders of the Company. In addition, the final dividend
for any financial year is subject to shareholders’ approval. The
remaining net profit will be used for the operation and development of
the Group. When determining whether to propose dividends and
determining the amount of dividends, the Board should consider,
among other things, the following factors:

(A)  current and future business, actual and expected financial results
of the Company;

(B) any development plan of the Company;
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liquidity position, working capital and capital expenditure
requirements and future expected capital requirements of the
Group;

the debt-to-equity ratio, return-on-equity ratio and the level of
the relevant financial contracts of the Group;

any restrictions on the payment of dividends may be imposed by
the lenders of the Group or other third parties;

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group and
each member of the Group;

general economic conditions, the business cycle of the Group’s
business as well as other internal and external factors that may
affect the Company or financial results and position; and

any other factors that the Board considers appropriate and
relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends are subject to any
restrictions under the Cayman Islands Company Law, any applicable
laws, rules and regulations, including the Listing Rules of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the Articles of Association.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors

of the Company in respect of audit services and non- audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, external service provider, and Mr. Yim Lok Kwan has
been appointed as the Company’s company secretary. Its primary
contact person at the Company is Mr. Lin Shifeng, the executive
Director and the financial controller of the Company.

The company secretary attended sufficient professional training as
required under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2020
to update their skills and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Director. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of one or more members deposited at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that such requisitionist(s) held
as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Cayman
Islands Companies Law for shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. As regards
proposing a person for election as a director of the Company, please
refer to the “Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director” of the Company which is posted on the
Company'’s website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the Board as
mentioned above via the following channels:

Address Room 08-11A, 43rd Floor, Shenglong Financial Centre.
No. 1 South Guangming Road, Taijiang, Fuzhou, China
Email angelazhu@xysgroup.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on- going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the annual general meeting, directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and
answer their enquiries.

The Company maintains a website at www.xysgroup.com as a
communication platform with shareholders of the Company and
investors, where the financial information and other relevant
information of the Company are available for public access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the reporting period, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to present
their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in provision of asphalt tanker chartering services
and bulk carrier chartering services, and trading of asphalt. The
principal activities of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set forth
in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year ended 31
December 2020 by operating segments is set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 is set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set forth in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 132 to 135 of this
annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) issued in the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Save for the issuance of 40,000,000 Shares on 3 June 2020 pursuant to
the subscription agreements as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 19 May 2020, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders of the
Company entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting ("AGM") of the Company to be held on Thursday, 17
June 2021, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 11 June 2021 to Thursday, 17 June 2021, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfer of shares will be registered. All
transfers accompanied by the relevant certificates must be lodged with
the Company's transfer office and share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 10 June 2021.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2020,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
US$74.9 million (2019: US$69.7 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out on pages
7 to 8 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Faqging (Chairman)

Mr. Xu Wenjun (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Ding Yuzhao

Mr. Chen Ming (appointed on 25 March 2021)
Mr. Lin Shifeng (appointed on 25 March 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (The “INEDs”, each
an “INED"):

Dr. Lai Guanrong

Mr. Suen Chi Wai

Mr. Xu Jie

The Company has received written confirmations of independence
from each of the INEDs, namely Dr. Lai Guanrong, Mr. Suen Chi Wai and
Mr. Xu Jie, pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the date of
this report, the Company still considers the INEDs to be independent.

Retirement and re-election of Directors

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association, at each
AGM, one third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation. However, if the number of Directors is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third shall
be the number of retiring Directors. The Directors to retire in each year
shall be those who have been in office longest since their last re-
election or appointment but, as between persons who became or
were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those to retire shall
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.
Accordingly, Mr. Ding Yuzhao and Mr. Suen Chi Wai shall retire by
rotation. All the retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the AGM.
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According to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed under this
Article shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors or
the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at an AGM.
Accordingly, Mr. Chen Ming and Mr. Lin Shifeng, each being an
executive Director appointed by the Board on 25 March 2021, shall
retire from office and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors and INEDs, has entered into a service
contract or an appointment letter with the Company for a term of
three years. All of them are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the AGM in accordance with the Articles of Association.
Their emoluments were determined by the Board by reference to their
experience, responsibilities and duties with the Company and shall be
reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee. The details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors are revealed on note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company, which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY'’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this report, no other transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance to which the Company’s subsidiaries or its
parent company was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 25 to 34 of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The change in the information of the Director of the Company, which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules, is set out below:

EERSREERNEREFE

BEENSREERENBEFBIHNAFER
FEI5FE34F o

EEEREH
BIE EmRBE135IBMIEZRE BT
WEARREETERZEETHINT -

Name of Director  Detail of change BEEHR BEFE
Mr. Wang Faqing entitled to monthly salary increased from T &iE L4 H2021 41 A#8 - AJ&
RMB50,000 to RMB100,000 commencing SEAFcBEARK
from January 2021. 50,000 LI MNE AR
100,000 7T °
Save as disclosed above, there was no other change to any information B E X FRIREEIN REANRBEEARSE

required to be disclosed in relation to any Director pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules during
the year and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group having regard to the
Group's operating results, individual performance and comparable
market standard and practices. The Company has adopted a share
option scheme as an incentive to the Directors and eligible employees,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF OUR COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")
which will be required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or (b) to be entered into the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or (c) as otherwise to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules, are set out as follows:

EERRETHRAEREAQRTR
HAEB ZEH R - HERDH
EEIETNEZERKXR

2020F 128318 EFHARAHES
THRA B RAR Bl sk E T A A B (F
EREBEMENEBLE RS
(IBHFRBERME ) EXVI) G - 8
Bl MEEBTES @ IRIEES M
EIEBIEXVELE 7 8D I BME AR T
MR FTHRER SRR (BIERIE B SR
HE P BB ES W EIEREHES
WERIOKE) © 2 (b) BELRIRIEFES
NHAEIEPIZE 352G A R R AT ENER
e ERIORE - QBT ETHRAM
BT EMBEITAEFTETEFRHNIZE
SPRI([BESrR ) BAE AR A KB FT
RREZS SR BN T

(a) Our Company (a) A=A F]
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding in
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held” our Compan
NN
EENA RERME FrERGEE® BEA B RELL 51
Mr. Xu V\/er%un@ Interest of controlled corporation 34,079,000 Shares (L) 7.75%
X EED REAER R 34,079,000 A% B 19 (L) 7.75%
Mr. Ding Yuzhao® Interest of controlled corporation 14,898,000 Shares (L) 3.39%
TE&EE® Xy LEEER 14,898,000 B A% 17 (L) 3.39%
Mr. Wan Faqing® Interest of controlled corporation 5,023,000 Shares (L) 1.14%
FEEEE Xy EErER 5,023,000 J&A% 1D (L) 1.14%
Notes: M5t -
(1) Theletter “L" denotes our Directors’ long position in the Shares. N FEHLURRSZBERROPIFENTE -
(2)  Perfect Bliss Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Xu Wenjun, an executive (2)  Perfect Bliss Limited FR¥ATTE FH 5L

Director. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu Wenjun is deemed to be interested in
the 34,079,000 Shares held by Perfect Bliss Limited.

(3) Gigantic Path Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Ding Yuzhao, an
executive Director. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ding Yuzhao is deemed to be
interested in the 14,898,000 Shares held by Gigantic Path Limited.

4) Sunny Road HK Trading Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Wang Faging,
an executive Director. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wang Faqging is deemed to
be interested in the 5,023,000 Shares held by Sunny Road HK Trading
Limited.

SRR  BEEFRBER
B - 1 X35 % A ] AR B B Perfect Bliss
Limited 3 B &9 34,079,000 i i% {7 o ¥ B
TS o

(3)  Gigantic Path Limited HE11TEEE T £ 8l
LEHBEIRERS - RIBEEHFRBPEF
Bl - T & &1 58 A 318 & 7 Gigantic Path
Limited 3 B &9 14,898,000 i% i% {7 FF #E B

i -

@ EEBBESERARBNTER LA
BREBREENER BEBSFRHE
&P ERBREWBRREERHE
2?[{5&25%%5’9 5,023,000 B& A& 19 Fh

25 o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions in which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the
register required to be maintained pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2020 was the Company or its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or their spouses
or children under the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for
the share capital or debt securities of the Company or any other body
corporate, or had exercised any such right.

58 XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Br EXCPTHEEEE SN+ 7A20205F 12 A318 -
BEEFHIARARSTRABRERT
s H AR AR (ER REF MGG
BIEXVER) BB {n -~ R (D sk EREE
b REREBHFRBEGRMEXVEET
8D EAEME AR A LB TR K
RE (BREREESRIEKRYA B IEX
FEREESIRBEBNER AR ) K
BN IRIEE S B RO ZE 352 16ET
B M E M AR RS IOA R IR IBIREST
AIZEME RN E] MR EEIOAE °

EERERDNEERER

BRAAFEMATHEBEEI - RARIHEHN B
NAEIREE2020F12 A31 B IEFEWME
AR LA LB ES B
BARE AR EMEABBHRMNDKE
EEMERN  BYEBEEESFEE2RBNL
1858 A A F 2R TEM O] R A4 A
sk H At A A B BE A IR AR Sk (B 7R A 3
K EITEEMIZEREF)



Report of the Directors

EEGHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, so far as our Directors are aware, the persons
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who will
have or be deemed or taken to have interests and/or short positions in
the Shares or the underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
were recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or who were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the Company'’s issued share capital will be

FERRRROREBERDHH
BERRR

R20208F 128318 BESFHA AT
AL (BERARARESTERAERIN &
AR B S & 1ER IR 15 SR B AR 1D R
HEERBES RS KROEXVBE2RE
3D WK ATFTHEBORERT & HX
B RSN AR RREE S MAEIES
FREAFEZERM  KEESEE
WA AN RE BTN 5% sk A ERyfE LS

as follows:
Approximate
percentage of
Capacity/ Numberof  shareholdingin
Shareholders Nature of interest Shares held™ our Company
RAEQFH
R=R B REEHE FERAEE ™ BEAY B RE L 1
UNIVERSAL INTERNATIONAL Beneficial owner 116,000,000 Shares(L) 26.36%
TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG)
LIMITED®
RFEERE (BE)BRAR EnBEAA 116,000,000 3% 3% 17 (L) 26.36%
PROSPEROUS BRIGHT LIMITED® Interest of controlled 116,000,000 Shares (L) 26.36%
corporation
PROSPEROUS BRIGHT LIMITED? R EE R 116,000,000 % %17 (L) 26.36%
Mr. Chen Maochun® Interest of controlled 116,000,000 Shares (L) 26.36%
corporation
PRIXFELED ZEEE R 116,000,000 A% A% 17 (L) 26.36%
Ms. Ni Hualing®? Interest of spouse 116,000,000 Shares (L) 26.36%
REKR LT R 116,000,000 A% A% 153 (L) 26.36%
Well Grace Trading Co,, Limited® Beneficial owner 49,000,000 Shares (L) 11.14%
EREHERARAO EmBEA 49,000,000 BEPEAR (L) 11.14%
Mr. Lin Kaiquan® Interest of controlled 49,000,000 Shares (L) 11.14%
corporation
MAREED R LEER 49,000,000 B A7 (L) 11.14%
Ms. Yang Lihua® Interest of spouse 49,000,000 Shares (L) 11.14%
SR L0 feiBtE = 49,000,000 A& A&7 (L) 11.14%
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Approximate

percentage of

Capacity/ Number of shareholding in

Shareholders Nature of interest Shares held” our Company

RAEQFH

=R Bp, EEHE FrERGEE ™ BB AL B

HJ Technology Co., Limited® Beneficial owner 36,000,000 Shares (L) 8.18%

ESRBEAERARY EmBEA 36,000,000 F& A5 (L) 8.18%

Mr. Wu Kai® Interest of controlled 36,000,000 Shares (L) 8.18%
corporation

RELkEY R LEEE 36,000,000 A% A& 15 (L) 8.18%

Ms. Pang Min® Interest of spouse 36,000,000 Shares (L) 8.18%

Bz L feiBtE = 36,000,000 A% A& 15 (L) 8.18%

Perfect Bliss Limited® Beneficial owner 34,079,000 Shares (L) 7.75%

Perfect Bliss Limited® EmEB A 34,079,000 B% A% 17 (L) 7.75%

Ms. Zhu Zhen © Interest of spouse 34,079,000 Shares (L) 7.75%

Kzt © feiBtE = 34,079,000 B% A% 17 (L) 7.75%

Golden Boomer Limited® Beneficial owner 30,000,000 Shares (L) 6.82%

Golden Boomer Limited® ERBEAEA 30,000,000 B M 17 (L) 6.82%

Ms. Lan Shaoyun® Interest of controlled 30,000,000 Shares(L) 6.82%
corporation

BWBEL Lo X AE R 30,000,000 F& A& 15 (L) 6.82%

Mr. Hong Jianbin® Interest of spouse 30,000,000 Shares (L) 6.82%

HEER A © iRy 30,000,000 F& A& 15 (L) 6.82%

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd® Person having a security 30,000,000 Shares (L) 6.82%

interest in shares

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd® FERMOOFRIERDA 30,000,000 B 15 (L) 6.82%

Forever Win Asia Trading Limited” Beneficial owner 24,540,000 Shares (L) 5.58%

Forever Win Asia Trading Limited” EmBAA 24,540,000 A% A% 15 (L) 5.58%

Mr. Chen Chengmei” Interest of controlled 24,540,000 Shares (L) 5.58%
corporation

PRAXIBSC A O R EE 24,540,000 B2 (L) 5.58%
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Notes:

Save

The letter “L" denotes a person’s long position (as defined under Part XV of the
SFO) in our Shares.

UNIVERSAL INTERNATIONAL TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) LIMITED is owned as to
100% by PROSPEROUS BRIGHT LIMITED, which is in turn wholly owned by Mr.
Chen Maochun. As such, each of PROSPEROUS BRIGHT LIMITED and Mr. Chen
Maochun is deemed to be interested in the 116,000,000 Shares held by
UNIVERSAL INTERNATIONAL TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) LIMITED pursuant to
the SFO. Ms. Ni Hualing is the spouse of Mr. Chen Maochun.

Well Grace Trading Co., Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Lin Kaiquan. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. Lin Kaiquan is deemed to be interested in the 49,000,000 Shares
held by Well Grace Trading Co., Limited. Ms. Yang Lihua is the spouse of Mr. Lin
Kaiquan.

HJ Technology Co., Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Wu Kai. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Wu Kai is deemed to be interested in the 36,000,000 Shares held by HJ
Technology Co., Limited. Ms. Pang Min is the spouse of Mr. Wu Kai.

Perfect Bliss Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Xu Wenjun. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Xu Wenjun is deemed to be interested in the 34,079,000 Shares held by
Perfect Bliss Limited. Ms. Zhu Zhen is the spouse of Mr. Xu Wenjun.

Golden Boomer Limited is owned as to 100% by Ms. Lan Shaoyun. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Lan Shaoyun is deemed to be interested in the 30,000,000 Shares held by
Golden Boomer Limited. Mr. Hong Jianbin is the spouse of Ms. Lan Shaoyun.
Golden Boomer Limited provided an interest in the 30,000,000 Shares as security
to Industrial Bank Co,, Ltd, a person other than a qualified lender.

Forever Win Asia Trading Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Chen Chengmei. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chen Chengmei is deemed to be interested in the
24,540,000 Shares held by Forever Win Asia Trading Limited.

as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any person

who has, as at the date of this report (without taking into account any

options which may be granted under the share option scheme), an

interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares, which

would be required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock

Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or, directly or indirectly, be interested in 5% of the issued voting
shares of any other member of the Group.

1. FEEIUERRRBRGAEN FE] (E&
REBES RS KGIEXVED) -

2. RFBIER B (EB) B R A & B PROSPEROUS
BRIGHT LIMITED#E 5 2 S8 25 + if PROSPEROUS
BRGHT LMITEDEIFA R X E Rk E 2 EHE - A
It IRIEFE F K BRE {&{5) - PROSPEROUS BRIGHT
LIMITED K PR & ST & B AR AR IR F R R}
B (&HB) AR AT A /116000000 I A& (9
AR - (REXR T T AREHLEENRE -

3. EMESERRAFBAMNAREEER 2 I
o IRBEEFRBEGRD - MERTERR
BREMRE S HR A G4 #949,000,000 A% B
DHhEEEZ  BRELTAMARLEN
fig @ o

4, ESHREERAGIHRISCEHRE TR -
BREEFRBEED RV CEWRRBRE
S RHE AR A R A 36,000,000 A% B% 17 A #
iR - REL LT BRI ENES -

5. Perfect Bliss Limited F 5 3039 % A HE 5 2 5P 4
o REBEFRBEKRD - R EFER
A A Perfect Bliss Limited 3% 5 #9 34,079,000 A% %
DHRERED KERITAGRXIEENR
1o

6. Golden Boomer Limited A B4R 2 &+ A & &6
s o BIEBAFRBERY  BAELIHER
/51 Golden Boomer Limited ¥ /& 9 30,000,000 J&
DAL - REMEEABAERZLN
fid 48 ° Golden Boomer Limited & [A] B % R 17 X
NBERAB(AEREL ARG A) IRH#
30,000,000 & P& 17 #E 2R 1 IR FE ©

7. Forever Win Asia Trading Limited 3 BR A 4§ %t 4
R HER BREZISFLBEKRM
BER A 18 5T A 3 1R /& 74 Forever Win Asia Trading
Limited #57 24,540,000 A& R 15 = 5 %5 o

BRAXKEEI  BESMAA - RAR
& B CRFF RRE B 8RR
BV EI B ACHE ) - BB I A TR ek
R R A RERESF LR E GRS
XVEREE 2 B3 AR R AR A R A I
B PTIR B ERSOR R - SkE R EE
BEAAREEEMEMKE AR SHRERE
HE BTN 5% FRE AR ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Our Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 6 September 2018 which became
effective on 26 September 2018 (the “Listing Date"). Under the Share
Option Scheme, the eligible participants of the scheme may be
granted options which entitle them to subscribe for Shares, when
aggregated with options granted under any other scheme,
representing initially not more than 10% of the Shares in issue on the
Listing Date.

As at 31 December 2020 and to the date of this report, no option had
been granted or to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

(a) Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions the
Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below) have had
or may have made to our Group. The Share Option Scheme will
provide the Eligible Participants an opportunity to have a
personal stake in our Company with the view to achieving the
following objectives:

() motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of our Group; and

(i) attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going
business relationships with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of our Group.

62 XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020

iEIR ST S

KABER2018%F9 A6 BB IGHRME
IetERt 8| ([EBRAESTEIL) - W 201849
RA20B([ LT BH ) E5 - BIRERE
FHE - SR E B2 EE T ER A RE
Rin AR E - ERBEMEMAE SR
WEERES T - IREORN VL THEA
R ETHEBBEBEITRRMD 10% o

R2020F 12 ABREEARREBH -
BHERIBEERETE DR OSSR KR

-

T o

AT RERAEET S E R IRFTIRE

(@ BH#

B ERTE A — B R BT & -
RIBWMARARREAERSH
FE(EERTXOR) BAEEZLK
EH K ATREEE 2 E R - AR
EEmAERSEERERAA
ABEERAER I ®E  LERT
HIEZ -

i) HEBEENRSEEZELSAKEZ
MafemERBRUE -

(i) WIS RBEBEERD AHYHAR
SEZRBMERANZEER
SEEFRZEAERSRE
RSB RBERE -



Report of the Directors

EEGHRE

(b) Who may join
The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph (f) below to the following persons (“Eligible
Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including INEDs) of our Company or any of its
subsidiaries;

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents

to our Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iv)  such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to our Group, the
assessment criteria of which are:

(aa) contribution to the development and performance
of our Group;

(bb) quality of work performed for our Group;
(cc) initiative and commitment in performing his duties;
and

(dd) length of service or contribution to our Group.

(b) ABEAL
BEEEAMBEREAUATALIS
ERBEE |)FHBERE  WET
XNREFTHERBEESEST
BeiEE 2 RRARKE FT %D -

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

RRRHEEMHERRZE
B RBES  MITAR
HEBMAE

AR HEEFRMBRRZE
MEE(RIEBILIFNTES)

KRB K EAFMRFE QR ZE
R BRAL - HER -
EPERRE: Kk
EZgRAABEKREHAK
SEELEMNEMAL A
R IRENT -

(a) HAKEZRRERLKRANE
Ef

bb) MAKEETTHENE

=
(co BITHRE M X &)1 K&
TR

(dd) RASENRBFEHE

o

&
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(c)

64

Acceptance of an offer of options

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptance of the options duly signed by
the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of our Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by our Company on or before the relevant acceptance
date. Such payment shall in no circumstances be refundable. Any
offer for grant of an option to subscribe for Shares may be
accepted in respect of less than the number of Shares for which
it is offered provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot
for dealing in Shares on the Stock Exchange or an integral
multiple thereof and such number is clearly stated in the
duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of the option.
To the extent that the offer to grant an option is not accepted by
any prescribed acceptance date, it shall be deemed to have been
irrevocably declined.

Subject to paragraphs (I), (m), (n), (o) and (p), an option shall be
exercised in whole or in part and, other than where it is exercised
to the full extent outstanding, shall be exercised in integral
multiples of such number of Shares as shall represent one board
lot for dealing in Shares on the Stock Exchange for the time
being, by the grantee by giving notice in writing to our Company
stating that the option is thereby exercised and the number of
Shares in respect of which it is exercised. Each such notice must
be accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of the
exercise price for the Shares in respect of which the notice is
given.

Within 21 days after receipt of the notice and the remittance and,
where appropriate, receipt of the certificate by the auditors to
our Company or the independent financial adviser as the case
may be pursuant to paragraph (r), our Company shall allot and
issue the relevant number of Shares to the grantee credited as
fully paid and issue to the grantee share certificates in respect of
the Shares so allotted.

The exercise of any option shall be subject to our Shareholders in

general meeting approving any necessary increase in the
authorised share capital of our Company.
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d) ZERHOEE

(d) Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all option to be granted (including Shares in respect
of which options, whether exercised or still outstanding, have
already been granted) under the Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of our Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
on the Listing Date, being 40,000,000 Shares (the “Scheme
Limit"), excluding for this purpose Shares which would have
been issuable pursuant to options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme (or any
other share option schemes of our Company). Subject to the
issue of a circular by our Company and the approval of our
Shareholders in general meeting and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time, the Board
may:

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the Shares in issue (the
“New Scheme Limit’) as at the date of the approval by our
Shareholders in general meeting; and/or

(i) grant options beyond the Scheme Limit or New Scheme
Limit to Eligible Participants specifically identified by the
Board. The circular issued by our Company to our
Shareholders shall contain a generic description of the
specified Eligible Participants who may be granted such
options, the number and terms of the options to be
granted, the purpose of granting options to the specified
Eligible Participants with an explanation as to how the
options serve such purpose, the information required under
Rule 17.02(2) (d) and the disclaimer required under Rule
17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.

REBERER S AR AR EAM
BREEK TRENZEERE
BITEEATEITORNEE LR
(BREFZHNEITEHHARITER
IREEFT S RHIIRD) - & T GEA
LT REIE BTN BER 10% - B
40,000,000 I& i 7 ([ s+ EIPREE L) - 3L
s - TEEREERERTE (X
ANA B E A B AR i AT BY) A I6ER
BERUAERERERN TEITHR
19 o FEARA A I3 pk I R R R
REXGHE R HRIE TR A
TRIETHEMBRE  EFEA -

() BEREFUERERRAERR
Reg LitgEE BB BTG
10% ([#rEt BIRREE]) : &2
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EER H BB EIR B
EIRFEHIEARE - XA T MR
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(e)

66

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of our Company at any time shall not exceed
30% of the Shares in issue from time to time (the "Maximum
Limit"). No options shall be granted under any schemes of our
Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if this will result
in the Maximum Limit being exceeded. The maximum number of
Shares in respect of which options may be granted shall be
adjusted, in such manner as the auditors of our Company or an
approved independent financial adviser shall certify to be
appropriate, fair and reasonable in the event of any alteration in
the capital structure of our Company in accordance with
paragraph (r) below whether by way of capitalisation issue, rights
issue, consolidation, sub-division of shares or reduction of the
share capital of our Company but in no event shall exceed the
limit prescribed in this paragraph.

Maximum number of options to any one individual

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company (including both exercised, outstanding options and
Shares which were the subject of options which have been
granted and accepted under the Share Option Scheme or any
other scheme of our Company but subsequently cancelled (the
“Cancelled Shares”)) to each Eligible Participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of
options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to:

() the issue of a circular by our Company containing the
identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers of and
terms of the options to be granted (and options previously
granted to such participant) the information as required
under Rule 17.02(2)(d) and the disclaimer required under
Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules; and
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(i)

the approval of our Shareholders in general meeting and/or
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time with such Eligible Participant and his close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or his/her
associates if the participant is a connected person)
abstaining from voting. The numbers and terms (including
the exercise price) of options to be granted to such
participant must be fixed before our Shareholders’ approval
and the date of the Board meeting at which the Board
proposes to grant the options to such Eligible Participant
shall be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of
calculating the subscription price of the Shares. The Board
shall forward to such Eligible Participant an offer document
in such form as the Board may from time to time determine
or, alternatively, documents accompanying the offer
document which state, among other things:

(@aa) the Eligible Participant’s name, address and
occupation;

(bb) the date on which an option is offered to an Eligible
Participant which must be a date on which the Stock
Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities;

(co) the date upon which an offer for an option must be
accepted;

(dd) the date upon which an option is deemed to be
granted and accepted in accordance with paragraph

()

(ee) the number of Shares in respect of which the option
is offered;

(ff)  the subscription price and the manner of payment of
such price for the Shares on and in consequence of
the exercise of the option;

(gg) the date of the notice given by the grantee in respect
of the exercise of the option; and

(hh) the method of acceptance of the option which shall,
unless the Board otherwise determines, be as set out
in paragraph (c).
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(f)

(9)

68

Price of shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save
that such price will not be less than the highest of:

() the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open
for the business of dealing in securities;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

Granting options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of our Company or
any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
is required to be approved by the INEDs (excluding any INED who
is the grantee of the options). If the Board proposes to grant
options to a substantial shareholder or any INED or their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) which will
result in the number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue;
and
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(i)

having an aggregate value in excess of HKS5 million or such
other sum as may be from time to time provided under the
Listing Rules, based on the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
at the date of each grant, such further grant of options will
be subject to the approval of our INEDs as referred to in this
paragraph, the issue of a circular by our Company and the
approval of our Shareholders in general meeting on a poll
at which the grantee, his associates and all core connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of our Company
shall abstain from voting in favour, and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time
to time. Any vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant
of such options shall be taken as a poll.

The circular to be issued by our Company to our Shareholders
pursuant to the above paragraph shall contain the following
information:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

the details of the number and terms (including the exercise
price) of the options to be granted to each selected Eligible
Participant, which must be fixed before our Shareholders’
meeting and the date of the Board meeting for proposing
such further grant shall be taken as the date of grant for the

purpose of calculating the exercise price of such options;

a recommendation from our INEDs (excluding any INED
who is the grantee of the options) to the independent
Shareholders as to voting;

the information required under Rule 17.02(2)(c) and (d) and
the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing
Rules; and

the information required under Rule 2.17 of the Listing
Rules.
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(h) Restrictions on the times of grant of options

(i)

70

A grant of options may not be made after inside information has
come to our Company's knowledge until such information has
been announced pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules and the Inside Information Provisions of Part XIVA of the
SFO. In particular, no options may be granted during the period
commencing one month immediately preceding the earlier of:

(i) the date of the Board meeting (such date to first be notified
to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules)
for the approval of our Company’s results for any year, half-
year, quarterly or any other interim period (whether or not
required under the Listing Rules); and

(i) the deadline for our Company to publish an announcement
of the results for any year, or half-year, or quarterly or any
other interim period (whether or not required under the
Listing Rules); and ending on the date of actual publication
of the results announcement.

Rights are personal to grantee

An option is personal to the grantee. No grantee shall in any way
sell, transfer, assign, charge, mortgage, encumber or otherwise
dispose of or create any interest whatsoever in favour of any third
party over or in relation to any option or attempt so to do (save
that the grantee may nominate a nominee in whose name the
Shares issued pursuant to the Share Option Scheme may be
registered). Any breach of the foregoing by a grantee shall entitle
our Company to cancel any outstanding options or any part
thereof granted to such grantee.
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(4)

(k)

()]

Time of exercise of option and duration of the share
option scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the
expiry of ten years from that date. The minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than ten years after it has been
granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme by the Shareholders
of our Company (the “Adoption Date"). Subject to earlier
termination by our Company in general meeting or by the Board,
the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from the Adoption Date.

Performance target

A grantee may be required to achieve any performance targets as
the Board may then specify in the grant before any options
granted under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

Rights on ceasing employment/death
If the grantee of an option ceases to be an Eligible Participant:

() by any reason other than death, ill-health, injury, disability
or termination of his/her relationship with our Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries on one or more of the grounds
specified in paragraph (m) below, the grantee may exercise
the option up to the entitlement of the grantee as at the
date of cessation (to the extent not already exercised) in
whole or in part within a period of one month (or such
longer period as the Board may determine) from such
cessation which date shall be the last actual working day
with our Company or the relevant subsidiary whether salary
is paid in lieu of notice or not, failing which it will lapse (or
such longer period as our Company may determine); or
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(i) by reason of death, ill-health, injury or disability (all
evidenced to the satisfaction of the Board) and none of the
events which would be a ground for termination of his
relationship with our Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
under paragraph (m
appropriate, his personal representative(s) may exercise the
option in full (to the extent not already exercised) within a
period of 12 months (or such longer period as the Board
may determine) from the date of cessation of being an
Eligible Participant or death.

) has occurred, the grantee or, as

(m) Rights on dismissal

(n)

72

If the grantee of an option ceases to be an Eligible Participant on
the grounds that he has been guilty of serious misconduct, or has
committed any act of bankruptcy or has become insolvent or has
made any arrangements or composition with his/her creditors
generally, or has been convicted of any criminal offence involving
his/her integrity or honesty, his/her option will lapse and not be
exercisable after the date of termination of his/her employment.

Rights on takeover

If a general offer is made to all our Shareholders (or all such
Shareholders other than the offeror and/or any person controlled
by the offeror and/or any person acting in concert with the
offeror (as defined in the Takeovers Code)) and such offer
becomes or is declared unconditional during the option period
of the relevant option, the grantee of an option shall be entitled
to exercise the option in full (to the extent not already exercised)
at any time within 14 days after the date on which the offer
becomes or is declared unconditional.
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(o)

(p)

Rights on winding-up

In the event that a notice is given by our Company to its
members to convene a general meeting for the purposes of
considering, and if thought fit, approving a resolution to
voluntarily wind-up our Company, our Company shall forthwith
give notice thereof to all grantees and thereupon, each grantee
(or his legal personal representative(s)) shall be entitled to
exercise all or any of his options (to the extent not already
exercised) at any time not later than two business days prior to
the proposed general meeting of our Company referred to above
by giving notice in writing to our Company, accompanied by a
remittance for the full amount of the aggregate subscription
price for the Shares in respect of which the notice is given,
whereupon our Company shall as soon as possible and, in any
event, no later than the business day immediately prior to the
date of the proposed general meeting, allot the relevant Shares
to the grantee credited as fully paid.

Rights on compromise or arrangement between our
company and its members or creditors

If a compromise or arrangement between our Company and its
members or creditors is proposed for the purposes of a scheme
for the reconstruction of our Company or its amalgamation with
any other companies pursuant to the laws of the jurisdiction in
which our Company was incorporated, our Company shall give
notice to all the grantees of the options on the same day as it
gives notice of the meeting to its members or creditors
summoning the meeting to consider such a compromise or
arrangement and any grantee may by notice in writing to our
Company accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of
the aggregate subscription price for our Shares in respect of
which the notice is given (such notice to be received by our
Company no later than two business days prior to the proposed
meeting), exercise the option to its full extent or to the extent
specified in the notice and our Company shall as soon as possible
and in any event no later than the business day immediately prior
to the date of the proposed meeting, allot and issue such
number of Shares to the grantee which falls to be issued on such
exercise of the option credited as fully paid and register the
grantee as holder thereof.
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(a)

(r)

74

With effect from the date of such meeting, the rights of all
grantees to exercise their respective options shall forthwith be
suspended. Upon such compromise or arrangement becoming
effective, all options shall, to the extent that they have not been
exercised, lapse and determine. If for any reason such
compromise or arrangement does not become effective and is
terminated or lapses, the rights of grantees to exercise their
respective options shall with effect from such termination be
restored in full but only upon the extent not already exercised
and shall become exercisable.

Ranking of shares

Our Shares to be allotted upon the exercise of an option will not
carry voting rights until completion of the registration of the
grantee (or any other person) as the holder thereof. Subject to
the aforesaid, Shares allotted and issued on the exercise of
options will rank pari passu and shall have the same voting,
dividend, transfer and other rights (including those arising on
liquidation) as at attached to the other fully-paid Shares in issue
on the date of exercise, save that they will not rank for any
dividend or other distribution declared or recommended or
resolved to be paid or made by reference to a record date falling
on or before the date of exercise.

Effect of alterations to capital

In the event of any alteration in the capital structure of our
Company whilst any option may become or remains exercisable,
whether by way of capitalisation issue, rights issue, consolidation,
subdivision or reduction of share capital of our Company, such
corresponding alterations (if any) shall be made in the number of
Shares subject to any outstanding options and/or the
subscription price per Share of each outstanding option as the
auditors of our Company or an independent financial adviser
shall certify in writing to the Board to be in their/his opinion fair
and reasonable in compliance with Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing
Rules and the note thereto and the supplementary guidance
attached to the letter from the Stock Exchange dated 5
September 2005 to all issuers relating to share option schemes.
The capacity of the auditors of our Company or the approved
independent financial adviser, as the case may be, in this
paragraph is that of experts and not arbitrators and their
certificate shall, in the absence of manifest error, be final and
conclusive and binding on our Company and the grantees.

XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020

(a)

(r)

BERME®EA MR  MAEARATT
& B B RE R BRI 5 32 BIAR I -
EEMMBARHEERER  IERE
PR (AR ARITEE BR) 55 KK
R &1k o 17 BE AN AR S B R E (]
JR A A AR AR IR SRR
BATTESEBRENEN /A
Bz B2 ERTE (RN
ARATEEARERAAE) I Al TAT1E -

= 43 By e £z

DR 77 {66 %8 P T o5 7 i 3% O B0 78
FEREA(REREMAL)EKE
B IR BRI M HERR
o E EMMERRT  RITER
P T A % Ko B AT O B B2 1T R B
HERTHEMBERNZEERFE
iz BREHERNEZORE KB - &
ENMEMEN(BERNBRRELD
A ETEAREBEHAITEHR
HEBRHZANEERIEZIOR
&R S ERBRB S E b
I °

EXGBHTE

fid 2 22 B B B 7 A A 0 M 1) B M
AJ X A% SRAT) A% BT 1T 450 B 38 AR AT ) 22
8 TwedBEMNMEET - ik
B FASKBIRARBRATTR -
BT Aa] () R 7T {62 1O 8 ASCHE TR T B A
BRER/RBORTEBRENS
R REBE  HAEHEREE
(E)  BAHARBZEAENSE
VM BERAEENAMNESETSHE
RERREHEEBAFSERRT
& EmARRIE 17.03013) R E M FEIA
KBk A2 AT B R R 2005 65 9 A 5 B BLFR
B BT AR KT A BB A
AHEIM TR Bl ° AN B A BRED
RAE %R (GRIF S  E ) 1
ABENEDRERMIEMEA - &
FHRHMBENILE L IRARE R
HBERT - ARENEREMEL
BARBRARABRLRS



Report of the Directors

EEGHRE

(s)

Any such alterations will be made on the basis that a grantee
shall have the same proportion of the equity capital of our
Company (as interpreted in accordance with the supplementary
guidance attached to the letter from the Stock Exchange dated 5
September 2005 to all issuers relating to share option schemes)
for which any grantee of an option is entitled to subscribe
pursuant to the options held by him before such alteration
provided that no such alteration shall be made if the effect of
which would be to enable a Share to be issued at less than its
nominal value. The issue of securities as consideration in a
transaction is not to be regarded as a circumstance requiring any
such alterations.

Expiry of option
An option shall lapse automatically and shall not be exercisable
(to the extent not already exercised) on the earliest of:

(i) the date of expiry of the option as may be determined by
the Board;

(i) the expiry of any of the periods referred to in paragraphs (l),
(m), (n); or

(i) the date upon which the scheme of arrangement of our
Company referred to in paragraph (p) becomes effective;

(iv)  subject to paragraph (o), the date of commencement of the
winding-up of our Company;

(v)  the date upon which the grantee ceases to be an Eligible
Participant by reason of such grantee’s resignation from the
employment of our Company or any of its subsidiaries or
the termination of his or her employment or contract on
the grounds that he or she has been guilty of serious
misconduct, or has committed any act of bankruptcy or is
unable to pay his or her debts or has become insolvent or
has made any arrangement or has compromised with his or
her creditors generally, or has been convicted of any
criminal offence involving his or her integrity or honesty or
has been in breach of contract. A resolution of the Board to
the effect that the employment of a grantee has or has not
been terminated on one or more of the grounds specified
in this paragraph shall be conclusive; or
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(t)

(vi) the date upon which the Board shall exercise our
Company'’s right to cancel the option at any time after the
grantee commits a breach of paragraph (i) above or the
options are cancelled in accordance with paragraph (u)
below.

Alteration of the share option scheme
The Share Option Scheme may be altered in any respect by
resolution of the Board except that:

() any alteration to the advantage of the grantees or the
Eligible Participants (as the case may be) in respect of the
matters contained in Rule 17.03 of the Listing Rules; and

(i) any material alteration to the terms and conditions of the
Share Option Scheme or any change to the terms of
options granted, shall first be approved by our Shareholders
in general meeting provided that if the proposed alteration
shall adversely affect any option granted or agreed to be
granted prior to the date of alteration, such alteration shall
be further subject to the grantees’ approval in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme. The amended
terms and any adjustment to be made to the exercise price
of the Share Option Scheme shall still comply with Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules, the supplemental guidance of 5
September 2005 and any future guidance or interpretation
of the Listing Rules from time to time and any change to
the authority of the Board in relation to any alteration to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme must be approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting.

(u) Cancellation of options

76

Any cancellation of options granted but not exercised must be
approved by the grantees of the relevant options in writing. For
the avoidance of doubt, such approval is not required in the
event that any option is cancelled pursuant to paragraph (i).
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(v) Termination of the share option scheme

Our Company may by resolution in general meeting or the Board
may at any time terminate the Share Option Scheme and in such
event no further option shall be offered but the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme shall remain in force to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any option granted
prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in accordance with
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

Options granted prior to such termination but not yet exercised
at the time of termination shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Our Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and the development of the society. Details of the
Group’'s development, performance and operation in the
environmental aspect will be set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Our Group has adopted internal control and risk management policies
to monitor the on-going compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. As far as the Board is concerned, our Group has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries in
all material aspects.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, AND KEY
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Our Group is in good relationship with its employees and we have
policies in place to ensure our employees’ remuneration, and welfare
package as competitive among other players in the industry and they
receive adequate continuous professional training. Our Group also
maintains a good relationship with its customers and suppliers, without
whom the production and operation success will not be guaranteed.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 33.8%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 70.8%
Sales

— the largest customer 27.0%
— five largest customers in aggregate 67.4%

Save as Bilsea International disclosed in the sections headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” and “Connected Transaction”
below, none of the Directors, their respective close associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company's share capital) had any interest in the five largest
suppliers or customers.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions:

TERFRHEER
AEBTEHERREFERFEORE
BRHERESLLMT :

REgEE

— RAHER 33.8%
— AR EEEH 70.8%
— RARP 27.0%
—hAREFPAH# 67.4%

BRI FEBRERS I M BERXS] &
0 PT #% 55 AV Bilsea International 4) » B &
E BFERZENEEBREBANBESAA
BB RNRAIS% A ERAEMBRE - B
AARBERNIEFPHER E R -

BFERERS
REZE2000F 128431 LEFEE  RNEFH
BUTHERERS

Annual actual
transaction

Annual cap amount
for the year for the year
ended ended
Name of relevant Connected relationship 31 December 31 December
connected persons with the Group Nature of transactions 2020 2020
BZ2020 % BZ2020 %
12A31H 12A31H
IEFER LLFER
ERREALER EAKENHERE REHE FELR BBRXZEH
US$'000 US$'000
TET TET

Exempt

3357
Bilsea International Holdings Note Property leasing N/a N/a
Pte Ltd (‘Bilsea Holdings")

Bilsea Holdings ot MERE TER TER
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Annual actual
transaction
Annual cap amount
for the year for the year
ended ended
Name of relevant Connected relationship 31 December 31 December
connected persons with the Group Nature of transactions 2020 2020
BZ2020% BZ2020%
12A31H 12A31H
LLFEH LEFEMN
BRREALER HEAKENHERE XHME FELR BEBRXZEE
US$'000 US$'000
TET FET

Non-exempt

TE#H%
Bilsea International Pte. Ltd. Note Provision of asphalt tanker 19,500 15,125
(‘Bilsea International’) chartering services

Bilsea International BisE RALE S MM R 19,500 15,125

Note: Bilsea Holdings, which is in turn wholly owned by Bilsea International (mainly
engages in asphalt trading and provision of transportation services), which is in
turn owned as to 64%, 34%, 2% by Ms. Liu Weipeng, Mr. Yan Xiankai (the spouse
of Ms. Liu Weipeng) and Ms. Gao Chuan, respectively. As Ms. Liu Weipeng and Mr.
Yan Xiankai are both the directors of some of our subsidiaries, Bilsea Holdings and
Bilsea International are associates of each of Ms. Liu Weipeng and Mr. Yan Xiankai,
and are connected persons of our Group at the subsidiary level. As at the date of
this report, our Company is owned as to 3.41% by Bilsea International.

Bilxin Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement (the "Bilxin Tenancy Agreement’) was entered
into between Bilsea Holdings as landlord and the Company's subsidiary
Bilxin Shipping Group Pte Ltd ("Bilxin Shipping”) as tenant, under
which Bilsea Holdings agreed to lease a property located in Singapore
to Bilxin Shipping, for a term of 12 months commencing from 1 January
2020 and ending on 31 December 2020 for office use. Pursuant to the
Bilxin Tenancy Agreement, the monthly rental payable to Bilsea
Holdings shall be in the sum of US$2,000 (exclusive of the relevant
goods and services tax in Singapore). The monthly rental under the
Bilxin Tenancy Agreement was determined on an arm'’s length basis
between Bilsea Holdings and Bilxin Shipping. Total rental payable by
the Group under the Bilxin Tenancy Agreement amounted to
US$24,000 (equivalent to HK$187,000) for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Bff7E : Bilsea Holdings FA Bilsea International ( = 2 ¢ =&
BEBEIRIBHEGRE) 2ERA M
Bilsea International F Liu Weipeng 22 3= + Liu Weipeng
27+ K BL 48 Yan Xiankai 55 4 BA & Gao Chuan 2
15 B 64% ~ 34% K 2% ° FIFA Liu Weipeng
224 [ Yan Xiankai £ 439 B EAPE T E A A
#J)E = - Bilsea Holdings K& Bilsea International £
Liu Weipeng 2 &= & Yan Xiankai 5t 4 & B RO 2
A WAREERMEARERNEAEAL -
N4 B A - XA R Bilsea International #
H341% °

Bilxin T & 1 &

Bilsea Holdings (1E A& 5 #8 A ) B2 7K 2 &) Bf
J& 2 AlBilxin Shipping Group Pte Ltd ([ Bilxin
Shipping ) ({E&FEBA) G —HHEER
#([Bilxinfl & 1% &; |) - &t - Bilsea
Holdings [&) & [A Bilxin Shipping i 8 i2 7 #
MEH—IBYE - ERARE - 82020
F1A1H B E2020F12A31H I A& 8
+ @A - BFEBIXnTHE R & AR
15 Bilsea Holdings & 7 <& 48 %8 F& /5 2,000 3
(T BERFINEEEE @ &RE
) BixntHEWZRE TS AMESIH
Bilsea Holdings £ Bilxin Shipping £ A ¥ =
BET - HE2020F12A3ALEFE -
REBERBXnHEHEE TENHESE
#8/% 24,000 F 7T (HHE 1 187,000,887 ) °
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The transactions under the Bilxin Tenancy Agreement constitute de
minimis continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Rule 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Bilxin Tenancy
Agreement and the transactions thereunder are exempted from the
reporting, announcement, annual review, circular and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The related party transactions for the year as disclosed in note
35(a) to the consolidated financial statements also constituted
exempted connected transactions as defined under the Listing Rules.

Bilsea Master Service Agreement

On 6 September 2018, the Company’s subsidiary, Shun Yuen Group
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Shun Yuen HK"), as service provider, entered
into a master service agreement (the “Existing Bilsea Master Service
Agreement’) with Bilsea International, for a term ended on 31
December 2020, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
asphalt tanker chartering services to Bilsea International and/or its
subsidiaries (the "Bilsea Group”). In light of the increasing demand for
the asphalt tanker chartering services and the increase in freight rate
level for voyage charter for the asphalt tanker chartering services of the
Group in 2020, the Board anticipated that the existing annual cap for
the year ended 31 December 2020 would not be sufficient to meet the
expected transaction amounts for the provision of asphalt tanker
chartering services by Shun Yuen HK to Bilsea International under the
Existing Bilsea Master Service Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2020. Accordingly, on 28 October 2020, the Board approved
to revise the existing annual cap of US$12.5 million to the revised
annual cap of US$19.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 in
order to satisfy the daily operational needs.
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The service fees payable by Bilsea Group to the Group were
determined after arm’s length negotiation between the parties thereto
with reference to (i) reputation of the customer; (i) duration of charter
period; (i) the prevailing market circumstances; (iv) past business
relationship with the customer; (v) the financing cost of our vessel; (vi)
cost of shipbuilding and operation; and (vii) cargo quantity. Taking into
account that the Group has already provided asphalt tanker chartering
services to Bilsea Group in the past and that provision of such services
has offered stable and considerable profits to the Group historically,
the Directors consider that it is in the Group’s interests to continue the
relationship with Bilsea Group and to provide the asphalt tanker
chartering services under the Existing Bilsea Master Service Agreement
to Bilsea Group. As the Existing Bilsea Master Service Agreement
expired on 31 December 2020, the Company intended to continue the
transactions contemplated thereunder, on 28 October 2020, Shun
Yuen HK entered into a renewed master service agreement (the
“2021-2023 Bilsea Master Service Agreement”) with Bilsea
International based on substantially the same terms and conditions as
the Existing Bilsea Master Service Agreement.

For details of the increasing annual cap of Existing Bilsea Master Service
Agreement and renewal of 2021-2023 Bilsea Master Service Agreement
above of these continuing connected transactions, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 28 October 2020.

As for the sales amount, for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
revised annual cap for these continuing connected transactions in total
was US$19.5 million, and the actual transaction amount for the year
was approximately US$15.1 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, our INEDs have reviewed
the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions and have
confirmed that such transactions were entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal or better commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the agreements for such transactions, the

terms of which are fair and reasonable, and are in the interest of
the shareholders as a whole.
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The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of all of its
non-exempt continuing connected transactions.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s non-
exempt continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions disclosed above.

The Directors confirm that the auditor has confirmed the matter set
out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended 31
December 2020, there were no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which are required to be disclosed by the
Company in accordance with the provisions concerning the disclosure
of connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is
sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued shares
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 and to the date of this
annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to the “Share Option
Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors
or the controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company nor any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) that competed or might compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interest which any such person had or might have with the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which any controlling shareholders
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2020.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
our Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by RSM Hong
Kong who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Mr. Wang Faqing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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About This Report
Reporting Scope and Period
Basis for Reporting
Feedback on the Report

Our Approach to Sustainable Development
Stakeholder Engagement
Materiality Assessment

Living with the Environment
Green Operation
Green Procurement
Green Office

Walking Along with Employees
Protecting Rights and Welfare of Employees
Engaging with Employees
Safeguarding Health and Safety of Employees
Promoting Learning and Development of Employees

Operating Our Business Responsibly
Managing Our Supply Chain
Improving Our Service Quality
Anti-corruption

Walking Along with the Community
Caring for the Society

Key Performance Summary
Environmental Performance

Social Performance

Content Index of the ESG Guide of the Stock Exchange
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Xin Yuan Enterprises Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”
and “We") are delighted to issue the third Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") report (the “report”) to highlight our ESG strategy,
measures and achievements.

Reporting Scope and Period

Covering the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the
“reporting period”), this report comprises performance of the
operations of our offices in the People’s Republic of China ("PRC"),
Hong Kong and Singapore, our asphalt tanker chartering business, bulk
carrier chartering business and asphalt trading business.

Basis for Reporting

This report is prepared in accordance with the Appendix 27
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (2016 edition)
(the “ESG Guide") of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). This report strictly complies with all the “comply or
explain” provisions in the ESG Guide, and has included most of the
social key performance indicators categorised as “recommended
disclosures” in the ESG Guide.

The Board has reviewed and approved this report before publication.

Feedback on the Report

Your support is the motivating force for our continuous improvement.
We appreciate your comments or suggestions regarding this report
and our overall sustainability practices. Please feel free to contact us
through the following channels:

Address: Room 08-11A,
43rd floor, Shenglong Financial Centre,
No.T South Guangming Road,
Taijiang, Fuzhou, China

Telephone: + 86-591-87573330

Email: angelazhu@xysgroup.com

Website: WWW.XySgroup.com
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OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
As a socially responsible corporate, we proactively manage ESG matters
and promote sustainability. In addition to pursuing prosperous
business development, we assume our social responsibility by actively
connecting with our stakeholders and paying attention to the
environment and the society, thus contributing to the sustainable
development of the society.

The Board has overall responsibility for our ESG strategy and reporting,
as well as the monitoring of our sustainability-related policies, measures
and performances. The Board is also held responsible for evaluating
and determining ESG-related risks and ensuring that appropriate
and effective ESG risk management and internal control systems
are in place.

Stakeholder Engagement

We strive to create long-term value for our stakeholders. To better
understand the views and expectations in the interests of our
stakeholders, we engage with stakeholders regularly through meetings,
surveys and our company website, etc. We maintain open dialogues
and build trusted relationships with our stakeholders through ongoing
and structured engagement, thereby continuously improving our
sustainability strategy.

The table below summarises the key stakeholder groups, their main
concerns and the engagement channels embedded in our operations.
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Engagement Channels
BERE

Key Stakeholders Issues of Main Concerns
FEFHHE TEMIHE
Government and regulators Compliance with laws and
BT I BE T i regulations
SCASDZREING AL
Corporate governance
TEER
Suppliers Increasing production scale
R WAREERR
Open and fair purchases
NGNS
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Abiding by laws and regulations
RSO EINTAL]l

Implementing relevant policies and
measures according to the laws
and regulations

BOEMRHIR B AR R R S A5 e

Tendering

it

Regular communication
EHIAR

Inspection and evaluation

BRI
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Key Stakeholders Issues of Main Concerns Engagement Channels
FERFHE FEBTRE BERE
Shareholders and investors . Financial and operating . Shareholders’ meeting
PRERNIEEE performances . RERE
- BB REERR . Roadshow

Growth strategies and business . iz

prospect . Investor presentation

RRERREBR - REEWES

Risk management

N rgp

Information disclosure

BRIRE
Trade and industry associations - Labour issues . Abiding by relevant laws and
TEthe . AT RRE regulations

Safety - ESTHEBEENRG

oge . Business communication

Sharing of operation best practices -« XBER
DEHEEEED

Customers and potential clients -« Pricing . Company website
EENBERF - EE - AR
Quiality of products and services . Email
EmMiRBEE - EH
Compliance with laws and . Satisfaction survey
regulations - MEERE
EAS PP REINE AL
Employees . Salaries and welfare . Regular meetings
8T - HERER - EHEH
Career development . Training
BERER . =l
Staff activities
8 1%
Local communities . Community involvement . Company website
=p:ikad A - HRZ2HE S /NSTE
Environmental compliances
RIEAR
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Materiality Assessment

Evaluations on ESG matters have been regularly performed to ensure
our material ESG issues align with stakeholders’ expectations, market
trend and latest laws and regulations. By referencing the ESG Guide of
the Listing Rules and issues related to the shipping industry, we
reviewed and determined the material ESG issues during the
reporting period.

After reviewing the ESG issues, we identified the following 9 material
ESG issues. Aiming to accurately respond to stakeholders’ expectations,
we focus on disclosing the following material ESG issues in this report.

BEEMFIME

HPERERE e kEaEERRT
il AERBFNEZMRE HERE
REAEFDENHE - MSEE M
EREROIET - REHRBA - ZMA22
ZEMRAUNNCRE - L@ RERES]D
MEFEXRBNZE  RETETER

HRE - HENREGEE -

ERRIRE - g hEaEER - K
EATOREEZHRE L KERE
o REMEBREBOHENHE  RMEAR
WMEPEHFEBEUATEERRE LK

SO BE

B /AR

Key Areas Material ESG Issues Identified
TEHE EREEEMRE HERELREE
Environmental protection . Energy efficiency and energy-saving
RFRE - BERAME N EfRE

Marine pollution

A
Employee management . Occupational health and safety
BEITER - BREREZ

Employees’ nghts and care

B THEFIR B

Employees’ development and training

B TR &E

Product responsibility . Service quality and safety

EmAT - BRBEERLZE

Governance . Compliance management
RAEVAE - AREHR
Risk management
el =gt
Corporate governance
TEER
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LIVING WITH THE ENVIRONMENT

Steered by our commitment to protecting the environment, we have
been stepping up our efforts to enhance our sustainability
performances across all business units. Devoted to minimising adverse
impacts arising from our operation, we are committed to complying
with relevant international, regional and local environmental
regulations at the sea and port, including but not limited to the Marpol
Convention, the International Management Code for the Safe
Operation of Ships and for Pollution Prevention (“ISM Code"), the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC and the Atmospheric Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC, and have been implementing
a wide variety of sustainable policies and measures to advocate
environmental awareness of customers and suppliers.

During the reporting period, there were no reported prosecution cases
for violation of laws and regulations related to environmental
protection.

Green Operation

Recognising ship energy and fuel consumption as the primary sources
of atmospheric emissions, our ship engineering professionals seize
every opportunity to incorporate green features and measures during
the design and construction processes to mitigate potential
environmental impacts throughout the business cycle. The adaptation
of advanced and innovative technology, along with the introduction of
environmental protection concepts during the ship designing process
have allowed us to significantly reduce the energy and fuel
consumption during our stages in design, construction, operation and
maintenance.

The International Maritime Organization (“IMO”) has announced the
energy efficiency and greenhouse gas reduction requirements by 2025,
where the energy efficiency of all new ships shall be 30% higher than
those built in 2014. Also, the IMO announced a new limit on the
sulphur content in the fuel oil used on board ships that came into force
on 1 January 2020, where the sulphur content in the fuel oil used on
board ships operating outside designated emission control areas
should be limited to 0.50% mass by mass. With the aim to fulfil the
requirements of the IMO and contribute to the combat against climate
change, we have significantly enhanced the Energy Efficiency Design
Index (EEDI) of all the newly commissioned ships with their fuel
consumption well below international standards. In addition, low
sulphur fuel oil is used in all ships owned by us.
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Shore power system

!
|

T LED lighting
Monitor and alarm
system and power

RRAAE R
management system

FAEEREREENE

Low Sulphur Oil tank and Marine Gas Oil system
1K A8 AN 88 5 R A%

Eco-friendly refrigerant
RIRELSH

Bigger black and grey water tank
EAMBIOKER

Stern tube SW. cooling system
Ny SIS

Low speed and long stroke M/E
R R BROTTIRMEMRE

Ballast Water Management system

EHKERIERE

Coating system (sea mate NB)
(REYT5%) ZRER

Hydraulic system uses plant-based oil (VGP compliant)

B R iR AERR

Halogen-free cable
ERES

Cargo oil pump converter driver control system

HARB AT RS

Enhancing Energy Efficiency

Incorporating skeg stern, fin stabiliser, streamline style and other
advanced vessel designs to reduce water resistance and improve
vessel efficiency.

Advanced energy management systems are in place to allow
efficient energy allocation. The systems are monitored and
adjusted continuously during sailing to enable high energy
efficiency at all times.

Variable-frequency control system and energy-efficiency light
fixtures are applied and installed to reduce energy consumption.

Onshore power systems are used during berthing to reduce the
energy consumption on ships and emissions at dock.

Preventing Pollution

20

Ballast water treatment devices are installed to prevent microbial
growth in ballast water and avoid biological water pollution
during sailing.

Stern tubes alongside the seawater cooling system are fully
concealed to minimise the risk of oil leakage in the case of stern
tube failure.

Green materials such as halogen-free cable, fluorine-free
refrigerant, plant-based biodegradable hydraulic oil and asbestos-
free binder are used to avoid pollution during vessel construction
and operation.

Low sulphur fuel systems are installed to reduce sulphur
emissions.
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Copolymer antifouling paint is used in the coating of the entire
vessel to avoid potential marine contamination and prevent
marine species from attaching themselves to the ship hull,
thereby minimising the disruption of the marine ecosystem.

Managing Waste
Hull-mounted incinerators are installed to treat solid waste and
oil waste at high temperatures.

A large volume storage tank is equipped for black water and grey
water to store oil waste generated.

On top of introducing green features into our vessels' design, we are
dedicated to minimising the environmental impact through all-
inclusive management. In terms of the vessel management business,
we acknowledge the potential emissions generated by the 2 Capesize
ships, and have established the Ship Energy Efficiency Management
Plan ("SEEMP") to specify the methodology of data collection for
parameters such as fuel oil consumption, travel distance and underway
hours, thus managing the environmental pollution and safety
operation. The vessels have obtained the Statement of Compliance,
which states that fuel oil consumption data are collected and reported
in accordance with the methodology stated in the SEEMP. Additionally,
all ships owned by us have received the Engine International Air
Pollution Prevention Certificate, which certified that the vessels had
met the international standards in terms of air emissions.

In order to further reduce the adverse impact posed by hazardous
materials and wastes, we entrust qualified professionals to handle
hazardous wastes collected on vessels during sailing. Inspections and
sampling on all possible hazardous materials at vessels are arranged for
the ships owned by us, allowing us to develop a more far-reaching
management plan in the future.
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Aside from ships managed by us, we also own 10 vessels that are being
managed by outsourced third-party shipping companies. Intending to
further minimise potential environmental impact, we not only put
effort in managing environmental impact during the design,
production and maintenance stage of the vessels managed by third
parties, but are also dedicated to maintaining close communications
with them and closely monitoring their environmental performance to
ensure the operations are in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and fulfil our environmental protection requirements. For
instance, we arrange hazardous material inspections to develop an
inventory of hazardous materials at vessels whenever necessary, and
have developed ballast water management plans specific for each
vessel, thereby minimising the environmental impact of all vessels
owned by us during operations.

Green Procurement

We are actively searching for opportunities to improve our overall
environmental performance by identifying environmental risks along
the value chain. When procuring vessels, not only do we considered
the market rent level, price of second-hand vessels and vessel recycling
as well as pricing trends of second-hand vessels and vessel recycling,
we also take environmental factors as procurement criteria, such as
environmental-related technology certifications, whether the vessels
comply with emissions and energy efficiency standards by the IMO and
other international organisations and whether the vessel has higher
energy efficiency than other suppliers.

We have developed the Green Procurement Standard to allow more
comprehensive management of environmental risks in the supply
chain. All suppliers are expected to abide by the green procurement
policies and requirements stated in the Green Procurement Standard,
such as supplier assessment procedures, requirements for suppliers’
operation practice and the use of materials during production.

To ensure proper management of environmental risks by suppliers, we
evaluate the environmental performance of our parts and materials
suppliers annually following the requirements stipulated in the Green
Procurement Standard. Suppliers are required to declare their status in
obtaining certification bodies, such as ISO 14001 Environmental
management systems and 1SO 9001 Quality management system.
Those suppliers who are unable to obtain satisfactory results in the
environmental performance evaluation should set out an improvement
plan and report the status of enhancement and relevant evidence from
time to time.
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To minimise adverse environmental and health impacts arising from
the improper use of chemicals, the raw materials and parts used by
suppliers are also being assessed. We have formulated the
Environmental Load Material Management Standard with reference to
the Green Procurement Standard, specifying substances with potential
environmental impacts that required extra attention, such as paint,
foam concentrate and hydraulic oil. Submission of the Material Safety
Data Sheet for each material listed in the Environmental Load Material
Management Standard is expected of all suppliers to ensure the
materials they used are following the safety limit. On top of fulfilling
the requirement of quality, performance and price, priority will be
given to suppliers that have met the Environmental Load Material
Management Standard when selecting new suppliers.

Green Office

We have a strong dedication to reducing carbon footprint and waste
within the office premises. We have established guidelines to layout
our green office policies for employees, including the Measures of
Energy Saving and Environmental Protection in Offices, the Principles
and Measures of Environmental Protection in Offices and the Waste
Management System.

A variety of measures have been implemented to conserve energy and
reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Employees are encouraged to use
natural lighting as much as possible, while the office’s lighting system
has been replaced with LED lights to enhance energy efficiency.
Computers, printers, scanners and other electrical appliances are
switched off when not in use and outside office hours to prevent
unnecessary energy consumption. Additionally, employees are
reminded to avoid opening windows when using air conditioning and
to adjust the temperature of air conditioners to a reasonable level
according to the weather conditions. To further reduce energy
consumption and greenhouse gas emissions, models with higher
energy efficiency and awarded with energy label are prioritised when
acquiring new electrical appliances.

While we only owned one company vehicle during the reporting
period, we spare no effort to minimise emissions arising from the use
of vehicles. We encourage employees to carpool with co-workers or
switch to public transport as much as possible. If the use of vehicles is
unavoidable, employees are required to file an application before using
the vehicle to avoid exploitation.
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Although we do not operate in water-stressed regions and face no
issues of sourcing water, we are highly committed to advocate water
conservation during daily operations. The use of tap water for car
washing is forbidden to reduce water consumption. In addition, water-
saving appliances are used in the office, and water taps and pipelines
are being carefully managed and maintained to avoid unnecessary
water wastage and enhance water efficiency.

Adopting a paperless culture, we have established an electronic filing
system and used the OA office system, allowing employees to review
and transfer documents through electronic devices. Employees are
also encouraged to use double-sided paper when printing is
unavoidable.

In order to minimise the environmental impact arising from waste
generation, we have specified the handling and management
approach for non-recyclable general wastes, electronic wastes and
other hazardous wastes. To ensure proper waste disposal, we have
entrusted qualified professionals to handle the office’s waste,
Employees are also encouraged to reduce resource consumption and
recycle materials as much as possible, where materials with recycling
values are collected and sent to recyclers to extend their life cycle and
reduce waste generation.
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WALKING ALONG WITH EMPLOYEES

We believe employees are the most valuable assets and an integral
part of our success. With this in mind, we put great attention on our
human resources with an aim to attract and retain talents. Through
supporting employees with attractive remuneration packages,
diversified training and development opportunities and
comprehensive health and safety measures, we endeavour to create a
welcoming and safe workplace for all employees.

Protecting Rights and Welfare of Employees

Strictly abiding by the Labour Law of the PRC, the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57) of Hong Kong, the Employment Act of Singapore
and other relevant laws and regulations of the places where it operates,
we stipulate our employment policies related to remuneration and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunities, anti-discrimination, training and development,
and other benefits of employees in our Personnel Management System
and the Employees’ Handbook. All employees are entitled to the rights
and obligations outlined in the aforementioned internal measures.

To accommodate our continuous development, we outline the annual
human resources plan based on the needs of each department and
develop a recruitment plan to invite suitable candidates for interviews.
Throughout the recruitment processes, we adhere to the employment
principle of “Appointing employees according to their merits and using
their talents according to their ability”, thereby promoting a fair,
diversified and inclusive workplace. All recruitments are conducted
transparently and fairly, where equal opportunities for recruitment,
promotion and salary adjustment are offered to all employees and
potential candidates only based on their abilities. Regardless of their
nationality, ethnic group, race, gender, religion and cultural
background, our employees are protected from any form of
discrimination.
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We strictly prohibit the use of child labour or forced labour. We abide
by relevant laws and regulations and have formulated the Child Labour
Prevention and Remedial Procedures to avoid hiring anyone under the
age of 16. Apart from a thorough background check during the
recruitment process, we will also conduct a general investigation on
the new employees within one month after joining us, thus preventing
omissions and preventing someone from impersonating and replacing
employees who have completed the entry procedures to work. In case
of discovering anyone under 16 has been wrongly recruited, we will
settle their salaries immediately and take remedial measures in
accordance with the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labour and other laws and regulations relating to preventing child and
forced labour. Also, we sign employment contracts with all employees
to ensure that they understand and agree with our employment
policies.

To further protect the rights and interests of employees, we set out the
conditions for the termination of the employment contract by both
parties, the resignation procedures and the settlement of salaries and
compensation. We also stipulate the requirement on working hours in
the Employees’ Handbook, where compensatory leaves are offered to
employees who work overtime to ensure that their efforts are
reasonably rewarded.

To attract and retain talents, we provide employees with competitive
compensation and benefits as well as a clear promotion ladder to
recognise their contributions. Our Salary System stipulates the principle
and structure of the salary policies, with standardised salaries for each
rank and promotion and career development structure. We offer a
competitive remuneration package with basic salary, performance
bonus, year-end bonus and allowances to employees based on their
performance, responsibilities, experience and market salary level.
Attractive fringe benefits such as marriage allowance, maternity
allowance, holiday allowance and consolation money are provided to
employees. On top of statutory holidays, we also provide annual leave,
sick leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, bereavement leave and
breast-feeding leave, thus accompanying their needs. In line with
statutory regulations, we provide our staff in the PRC with an insurance
package including pension insurance, unemployment insurance,
occupational injury insurance, medical insurance, maternity insurance
and housing provident fund.
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Throughout the reporting period, there were neither reported cases of
prosecution for violation of employment laws and regulations as well
as employee’s rights and interests, nor have we received any relevant
complaints.

As at the end of the reporting period, we had 35 employees in Hong
Kong, PRC and Singapore.

Employee Distribution

BInf

As of 31 December 2020
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Distribution by
Geographical

Locations
HHIR LB D

Singapore

PRC HK
® o Handg
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Engaging with Employees

We encourage employees to have unrestrained communications with
us, which allows us to easily acknowledge their needs. Our Employee
Feedback System sets out the details of our complaint channel, such as
the engagement channels and the scope and procedures of complaint
handling. Employees are welcomed to file complaints in case their
rights and interests have been violated, or express their opinions and
suggestions through various channels, including face-to-face daily
communications, emails, the OA system, WeChat or by letter. Upon
receiving complaints or opinions from employees, our management
team will arrange a face-to-face meeting with the complainant and
seek to provide feasible solutions. We strongly value the feedback from
employees and look to resolve their concerns by maintaining
communications and providing as much assistance as possible.

We attach great importance to the well-being of employees and strives
to establish a friendly and caring workplace. We promote work-life
balance and encourage them to maintain close relationships and
communications with family, friends and colleagues outside of work.
We organised team-building events with the theme of “Joining Forces
and Recreating Glory” to visit Sanya and Jiuzhaigou during the
reporting period to encourage communications between employees
and foster team spirits.
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Safeguarding Health and Safety of Employees

Employees are our greatest asset. Therefore, safeguarding their health
and safety is always our foremost concern. We stringently comply with
the Law of the PRC on Work Safety, the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases and other laws and
regulations relevant to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards. We have also
established the Occupational Health and Safety Management Measures
("Health and Safety Measures”’) to manage and mitigate
occupational health and safety risks across business units.

Our Health and Safety Measures set out detailed guidance for the
management and usage of safety products and equipment, as well as
the procedures in the event of any potential occupational health and
safety hazards and preventive measures for various occupational
diseases such as pneumoconiosis, eye diseases and occupational
deafness. We require all employees to strictly comply with the Health
and Safety Measures to avoid accidents. Pre-job training are delivered
to new joiners on the aforesaid measures to enhance their emergency
preparedness, while regular training related to fire safety, electronic
safety and the usage of safety equipment are also provided to all
employees.

Our employees participating in the
team-building event
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We strictly abide by the regulation set out by the Maritime Safety
Administration of the PRC (“China MSA"), where all Chinese crews
engaged in international navigations must possess the seaman’s book
issued by the Harbour Superintendence Administration of the PRC and
other relevant certificates. All employees with crew qualifications are
required to attend training to assure the validity of their seaman’s book
and vessel operation-related certificates on safety, firefighting, first aid,
security awareness and other aspects, thereby ensuring they are
allowed to get on board to ships chartered by us for repairs and
maintenance. For vessels managed by us, we organise safety meetings
and contingency drills and training, so as to enhance the crews’
preparedness regarding emergencies such as oil spill, abandon ship,
fire, collision and communication blackout, as well as to ensure
stringent compliance with the ISM Code.

Ouremployees participating in the escape and oil spill drill
BT 2k 4 Rw b fE= a2

In addition to the health and safety of employees and crew members
on our vessels, we also pay attention to the health and safety of
employees in the office premises. We provide adequate fire safety, first
aid and sanitation equipment as well as emergency medicines in the
workplace. To ensure workplace sanitation, we regularly arrange
dedicated personnel to clean carpets, water dispensers, air-
conditioning systems and other equipment, and arrange body check
for employees.

During the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, we developed the
Guidelines of COVID-19 Prevention and Control Onboard and the
Office Pandemic Prevention and Control Policy to combat the
epidemic and ensure the safe operation of the ship and the safety and
health of employees.
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For our employees at offices onshore, employees returning from
overseas must undergo a 14-day home quarantine, and those returning
from medium and high-risk areas must conduct COVID-19 testing. Only
those with negative test results would be permitted to return to the
office. Also, business trips outside of the province were limited as much
as possible, while employees must wear face masks, maintain social
distance and measure body temperatures daily to minimise the
infection risks at the office premises. Anti-epidemic items were
equipped in the offices, where face masks were distributed to
employees every day during the pandemic.

For the offshore employees and crew members, we formulated the
Guidelines of COVID-19 Prevention and Control Onboard with
reference to relevant documents developed by the World Health
Organization ("WHO") and the IMO and recommendations and
guidelines promulgated by the China MSA, which set out the
management responsibilities, screening system, training system,
response drills system, prevention and control measures and personal
protection measures that should be taken on board. All vessels are
expected to develop management plans for the prevention and
control of COVID-19 with an on-board quarantine plan and the
establishment of COVID-19 prevention and control taskforce. The
emergency response when suspected COVID-19 case(s) are identified
on board, as well as the reporting procedures of suspected case(s) are
also set out in the aforementioned guidelines.

During the reporting period, there were no accidents in which we
suffered any injuries or death due to work, nor were there any cases in
which we were materially affected by non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to occupational health and safety.

Promoting Learning and Development of Employees

The development and growth of employees is an indispensable part of
the continuous development of our business. Therefore, we
continuously invest in resources and provide employees with extensive
vocational training to nurture their career advancement, thus achieving
the aim of “One post, multiple functions”.
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We follow the Employee Training System to design and formulate
annual training plans according to the employees’ level, position and
needs, as well as our development requirement. With reference to the
annual training plan, a wide variety of training programmes are
arranged for employees. All newcomers must attend the induction
training to learn our culture and organisational structure and details of
our Employees’ Handbook, as well as the responsibilities and working
procedures of their positions. Vocational training and professional
training are also provided to allow employees enhancing knowledge
relating to their job positions.

To ensure the training quality, employees are required to complete an
Internal Training Evaluation Form and a Post-training Review Report to
reflect their opinions on the course content, competence of trainers
and their learning outcome upon receiving training. Evaluation of the
training outcome will also be arranged for employees in the form of
on-site assessment, examinations or experience sharing. To encourage
employees actively participating in training programmes, the results of
the training evaluation will be used as part of the assessment and
promotion criteria of employees.

During the reporting period, we provided training on accounting,
human resources, management and maritime safety to strengthen
employees’ professional knowledge. The Board and senior
management team also attended online lectures on subjects related to
the latest market and regulatory trends, such as the details and
requirements of the updated ESG Guide and case studies on the
outcomes of incompliance in relevant laws and regulations. A total of
49 employees had participated in the training sessions, with an average
of 5.06 hours of training hours per employee.

OPERATING OUR BUSINESS RESPONSIBLY

Operating responsibly and with integrity is the key to our long-term
success. We adhere to our commitment to responsible and sustainable
operations, and continuously communicate and collaborate with
stakeholders along the value chain to ensure our expectations are
aligned and met, thereby promoting the sustainable development of
our business.
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Managing Our Supply Chain

A practical and comprehensive supply chain management is the
foundation of our success in providing quality services. We strive to
maintain close relationships with our major suppliers through constant
engagement, ranging from shipbroking companies, ship management
companies, ship manufacturers to parts and materials suppliers.

In order to manage environmental and social risks of suppliers, we
apply the most stringent rules when selecting new suppliers. Apart
from the suppliers’ price, product quality, delivery speed, service and
ability in technical development as well as the implementation of
environmental protection activities are also key criteria to be
considered. In addition, the Purchasing Department conducts annual
quality assessments on our current suppliers to evaluate their quality,
documentation accuracy and rectification efficiency.

We have also developed the Provisions on the Management of Spare
Ship Parts and Material Supply, the Instruction for Vessel Asbestos
Control, the Instruction for Management of Medicines and First-aid
Equipment on Ships and other internal guidelines to further mitigate
environmental and social risks of suppliers. In the Instruction for Vessel
Asbestos Control, it is specified that all purchases of parts and materials
with asbestos are prohibited, at the same time suppliers are required to
submit an Asbestos Free Declaration Report or relevant laboratory
assessment report. If the supplier fails to provide appropriate
documents, the parts and materials will be rejected.

In terms of tendering and bidding, we are devoted to providing all
parties with an open, fair, just and transparent platform, and have
established the Supplier Bidding Procedures to specify the format of
tendering notice, criteria for suppliers to enter the bidding, contract
management and bidding process.

During the reporting period, we have maintained close collaboration
with 20 suppliers.
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Improving Our Service Quality
With the aim to uphold our mission of “Safeguarding personnel health,
ensuring ship safety, and protecting marine environment” and sustain
our business, we are devoted to continuously improving the quality
and reliability of the ships we owned.

On top of strictly complying with relevant domestic and international
laws and regulations such as the ISM Code to secure navigational
safety and protect the marine environment, we have established a
comprehensive quality control system to monitor the vessel
production process closely, and have set forth the management
policies, targets and assurance measures regarding safety,
environmental protection and quality in our Product and Service
Health and Safety Policy.

We believe that comments and suggestions from customers are one of
the keys to allow continuous improvement of our product and service
quality. As such, we have developed the Complaint Handling
Procedure to stipulate the actions required upon receiving complaints
and the handling approaches for different types of complaints. Our
complaint channels are in place to welcome all customers providing
feedbacks through mail, telephone hotline or visit in person. During
the reporting period, we did not receive any complaints regarding the
quality of our products and services.

We attach great importance to maintaining a high level of integrity and
professional ethics. Apart from strictly complying with laws and
regulations related to intellectual property rights and privacy such as
the Specifications for the Administration of Intellectual Property Rights
of Enterprises and the Contract Law of the PRC, we have registered
patents for the company logo and domain to protect intellectual
properties. To avoid data breaches and other information security
incidents, we have formulated the Company’s Confidential Information
Security System with reference to the aforementioned laws and
regulations to guide our management of confidential information by
hierarchies.

During the reporting period, we have no non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations concerning health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy issues.
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Anti-corruption

Dedicating to deliver a fair, open and just business environment, we
strive to uphold the highest ethics and governance standards in our
business operations. We strictly abide by the Company Law of the PRC,
the Criminal Law of the PRC, the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the
PRC, Hong Kong's Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201) and other
laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

We take a stand against any behaviour related to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering, and have set out the standards of
behaviour we expect of employees and details of the anti-corruption
mechanism in our Anti-corruption and Anti-bribery Code of Conduct
("CoC") and the Integrity and Self-disciplinary Regulations (Provisional).

We are devoted to promoting integrity and preventing unethical
pursuits and have implemented various preventive measures. All
employees must sign the statement in the CoC as a declaration that
they acknowledge and comply with all relevant requirements to strictly
uphold business ethics. As stated explicitly in the CoC, fraud and
corruption-related risks should be included in the scope of annual
corporate risk assessment. The Audit Department is assigned as the
dedicated business unit to manage any relevant matters. Reports
should be made regularly to the Board and the Audit Committee to
ensure the risks are managed systematically. To enhance the anti-
corruption awareness within the Group, we provide anti-corruption
training for all newcomers, with all related requirements and standards
set out in the Employees’ Handbook for employees to take reference
whenever necessary.

With the aim to eliminate all irregularities within the Group, a whistle-
blowing policy has been imitated to report cases of fraud and
corruption. We encourage our employees and any parties related to us
to raise concerns about possible impropriety in any matter by mail,
telephone or email. All reported cases will be kept confidential to
protect the whistle-blowers. The reported cases will be carefully
investigated by the Audit Committee and reported to the Board when
necessary. Once the suspected cases are confirmed, the parties
involved will be subjected to disciplinary action or immediate dismissal.

During the reporting period, there were no cases of bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering involving our employee or us, nor were
there any cases in which we were materially affected by any breach of
anti-corruption related laws and regulations.
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WALKING ALONG WITH THE COMMUNITY

Caring for the Society

Apart from solely operating our businesses, we are well aware of the
importance of developing a close relationship with the community. We
strive to create long-term value for the community to support the
sustainable development of the society, and have developed the
Management Measures for the administration of Charity and Public
Welfare Activities to guide our work in community investment, such as
the management of charity funds and the requirements for organising
community activities. Apart from continually engaging with
community, we also encourage all business units and employees to
participate in community welfare and voluntary work. In the future, we
will continue to seek opportunities to further carry out community
engagement projects and contribute to the sustainable development
of the society.
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KEY PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

FRRENRE

Environmental Performance BIEEN
Indicator Unit 2020 2019
EBE B 2020 £ 20194
Air Pollutant Emissions’2
ERISRYBER 2
NO, Emissions Tonnes 1,646.98 127.37
RENLDBER i1
SO, Emissions Tonnes 419.61 3245
RE L e g
CO Emissions Tonnes 155.27 12.02
— & bR A

! Air pollutant emission comes from vehicles owned and managed by us in PRC

and Hong Kong, as well as ships managed by us. The emission data was
calculated in accordance with the Technical Guidelines for the Preparation of Air
Pollutants Emission Inventory for Road Vehicles (Trial) and the Technical
Guidelines for the Preparation of Air Pollutants Emission Inventory for Non-road
Mobile Source (Trial) published by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of
PRC and the EMEP/EEA air pollutant emission inventory guidebook 2019 of the
European Environment Agency. As the emissions of air pollutants caused by the
use of natural gas are limited, the environmental impact is not significant and
thus is not disclosed.

During the reporting period, we further refined the data collection and analysis
approach and included emissions from diesel generator into the report scope,
coupled with the corresponding increase in environmental data due to business
development, leading to a significant increase in the air pollutant emission data.
The measurement units of air pollutant emissions are adjusted to tonnes, and the
2019 air emission data has been restated to improve data comparability. We will
continue to implement more green measures in the future to minimise our
environmental impact.
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Indicator Unit 2020 2019
BR B 2020 F 20194F
Resource Consumption and Intensity
EREEREE
Electricity Consumption? kWh 26,383.00 13,207.87
REE: TFRE
Electricity Consumption Intensity kWh/person 753.80 377.37
AERE FEE/A
Petrol Consumption Litre 2,113.00 255.97
AmIERE 7+
Petrol Consumption Intensity Litre/person 60.37 7.31
fHERTE FAPIN
Marine Gas Oil and Very Low Sulphur Fuel ~ Tonnes
Oil Consumption® 20,980.55 1,622.59
e R ER S MR E A E 7
Marine Gas Oil and Very Low Sulphur Fuel  Tonnes/nautical mile
Oil Consumption Intensity 0.14 0.16
M REsh R ERERAERE Wi, 88
Natural Gas Consumption® Cubic Metres 326.00 421.00
RARAE® SR
Natural Gas Consumption Intensity Cubic Metres per person 9.31 12.03
RARAEZE SMFKSAN
Water Consumption® Tonnes 180.02 260.00
FKEs 07
Water Consumption Intensity Tonnes/person 5.14 743
RKEE LEYIN
3 The electricity consumption data comes from our offices at PRC and Hong Kong. AEEHEREPEREENMNERE -
4 The marine gas oil consumption data comes from the ships owned and managed MARLHAEHEREBRMEETREREN

sl e RERBAA - HAE - FTEBRK
ERDWHE BHRAEHAENGEE
f7FEE RN - LANSR BUREY AT LLIE -

by us. During the reporting period, we further refined the data collection and
analysis approach and have adjusted the measurement units of marine gas oil
consumption to tonnes to improve the comparability of data.

5 The natural gas consumption data comes from our kitchen at PRC office. 5 AAREAEEBERETENSENEHF °
E The water consumption data comes from our office at PRC. K FAKEHEREFBIBER
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Indicator Unit 2020 2019
B B 2020 F 20194
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Intensity’
BERBHEREREE’

Scope 1 Emissions (Direct Emissions)®? Tonnes 65,339.58 5,054.29
HEN PR (EERER)® g

Scope 1 Emissions Intensity Tonnes/person 1,866.85 144.41
HE1BEREE PN

Scope 2 Emissions (Indirect Emissions)'? Tonnes 17.88 9.30
& [E 2 B (R © WA

Scope 2 Emissions Intensity Tonnes/person 0.51 0.27
HE2BEMEE LEYN

Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions Tonnes 65,357.46 5,063.59
mERBEHENEE 07}

Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions Intensity ~ Tonnes/person 1,867.36 144.67
RERBHREEEE PN

NEHRMA - HPVE—FZEBRBEERD

During the reporting period, we further refined the data collection and analysis 7

approach and have restated the 2019 Scope 1 emission and total greenhouse gas
emission data to improve data comparability.

Scope 1 emissions refer to direct emissions from vehicles owned and managed by
us, the ships and the diesel generator on ships managed by us and the natural
gas combustion at PRC. The emission data was calculated in accordance with the
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs of SEHK, the Guidelines for
Accounting and Reporting Greenhouse Gas Emissions by China Land
Transportation Enterprises (Trial) of and the Guide for Calculating Methods and
Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Enterprises in Other Industries (Trial)
issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of PRC, the Reduction of GHG
Emissions from Ships: Fourth IMO GHG Study 2020 — Final report, and the
Greenhouse Gas Inventory Guidance — Direct Emissions from Mobile
Combustion Sources by the United States Environmental Protection Agency. The
greenhouse gas emissions arising from fuel usage during sailing was calculated
based on the assumption that all fuel used was Very Low Sulphur Fuel Oil.

During the reporting period, we further refined the data collection and analysis
approach and included emissions from diesel generator into the report scope,
coupled with the corresponding increase in environmental data due to business
development, leading to a significant increase in the Scope 1 emissions. We will
continue to implement more green measures in the future to minimise our
environmental impact.

Scope 2 emissions refer to indirect emissions resulting from electricity generation
that is purchased by us. The emission data was calculated in accordance with the
2019 emission factors of CLP Group and 2011 and 2012 China Regional Power
Grid Average Carbon Dioxide Emission Factor published by the National
Development and Reform Commission of PRC.

W% WEEHZE 2019FEE 1 SRR
EREVIEEEE - RS/ A L -
HENHEREERMES REERNER - FHM
BIEAMMALREM EOLEREERA RN
Bl R ARG E £ EZE P - BER B
TR EE BB R CREBRBEIIRZEREE
g1 PRIAEREREIB(h B ERERKERR
EREBEMZERBKEES (AT R(ITE
HMTEMEATREHENZE HARRE
B (A7) - (AR EREERBE - 20204F
IMO BN RERESATTIRE ) REFIRER
ERNCAEREEEER — BHRVES
ROBEEFERDTE - MAMMTHMARES
VREREERBREME A RS BERER
HEITRTE -

REESREAN - TP — P RSB WE RS
W% - BEas BRI A RS EE -
MZ¥BERETMAERREREER B
BEE 1 HERCRIRIG N o RGBT
BZRRER  BOERRFERERE -

HEHBIERMATEENE NELENRBEE
B e BERREUE ThiR S h EEE 2019 F HEM A
FYRBIRENRZ FIEERI 2011 FF2012F(F
B[ 18 A — AL F R T ) AT E -
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wE

Indicator Unit 2020 2019
BR B 2020 20194F
Non-hazardous Waste Generation and Intensity
BERRYELEREE"
Household Waste Tonnes 0.41 0.50
AR R g
Household Waste Intensity Tonnes/person 0.012 0.014
HEENIREE LEYIN
Wastepaper Tonnes 0.003 0.002
REAR g
Wastepaper Intensity Tonnes/person 0.0001 0.0001
ERTE LEYON
Wastepaper Recycled Tonnes 0.0009 -
(] L7 /& 4 WA
Food Waste Tonnes 0.18 0.19
I gRbr K g
Food Waste Intensity Tonnes/person 0.0051 0.0053
Ef s o LEYON
Hazardous Waste Generation and Intensity'?
EEREYELEREE"™

Waste Batteries Pieces 34 36
EEEM &
Waste Batteries Intensity Pieces/person 0.97 1.03
BREENTE (PN
Waste Ink Cartridges Pieces 9 -
EERS 1&
Waste Ink Cartridges Intensity Pieces/person 0.26 -
BERERRITE (VN
Waste Fluorescent Tubes Pieces 12 -
BEEERBE &
Waste Fluorescent Tubes Intensity Pieces/person 0.34 -

BERELANBERE &,/ A

1" The non-hazardous waste generation data comes from our office in PRC.
2 The hazardous waste generation data comes from our office in PRC and Hong

Kong.
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Social Performance HEEN
Indicator Unit 2020 2019
BE B 2020 F 20194

Employee Distribution?
EESf"

Total Number of Employee Person 35 35
BB A
By Gender
=IERIZ 7
Male Person 20 24
S A
Female Person 15 11
g A
By Employment Type
RIEIEREE| 7
Full-time Person 35 -
a7 A
Part-time Person 0 -
FeH A
By Employee Categories
ZIE B FIZI 5
The Board and senior management Person 8 10
EEghaRER A
Department managers Person 6 7
BRI A
Other employees Person 21 18
HET A
By Geographical Locations
el 1 77
PRC Person 30 30
# A
HK Person 2 2
BB A
Singapore Person 3 3
T N3 A
By Age Groups
B FHe A B E 575
30 or below Person 7 5
30BRIA T A
31-40 Person 10 10
31-40 5% A
41-50 Person 11 11
41-50 5% A
51 or above Person 7 9
51pRE A+ A

s As of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 respectively. h 2 RIEE 2019912 A31 HR2020F12 8318 °
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Indicator 2020 2019
BE 2020 20194
Employee Turnover
EERK
Total Number of Employee Turnover Person 4 6
EEEMEAR A
Total Turnover Rate™ % 1143 17.14
B & %
By Gender
171152 55
Male Number of Turnover Person 3 6
Eegis R AL A
Turnover Rate % 15.00 25.00
N = %
Female Number of Turnover Person 1 0
e Mk ANEL A
Turnover Rate % 6.67 0
MK b 2 %
By Geographical Locations
7% 2 5
PRC Number of Turnover Person 4 -
fE MR ANEL A
Turnover Rate % 13.33 -
MR b 2 %
HK Number of Turnover Person 0 -
&5 A X
Turnover Rate % 0 -
MK L= %
Singapore Number of Turnover Person 0 -
I MRAE A
Turnover Rate % 0 -
N =S %
1 The turnover rate is calculated based on “Total Number of Employee Turnover/ 14 7=

Total Number of Employee”.
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Indicator Unit 2020 2019
=R B 2020 F 20194
By Age Groups
1B F Bt Bl 2] 575
30 or below Number of Turnover Person 1 0
30ARIA T R ABL A

Turnover Rate % 14.29 0

MRt 2 %
31-40 Number of Turnover Person 1 5
31-40% MR ANE A

Turnover Rate % 10.00 50.00

MK L= %
41-50 Number of Turnover Person 0 0
41-50 5% R ANBL A

Turnover Rate % 0 0

N =S %
51 or above Number of Turnover Person 2 1
515R3 A | mEANE A

Turnover Rate % 28.57 11.11

MK b 2 %

Employee Health and Safety
EEREHEZZ
Number of Work-related Fatalities Person 0 0
EITTHEAR A
Rate of Work-related Fatalities % 0 0
ETT#AtE = %
Number of Work-related Injuries Person 0 -
E IR G A A
Lost Days Due to Work Injury Day 0 -
EILEEAIIERE =|
BEREEEBERAR /2020 FFH 113
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Indicator Unit 2020 2019
B& By 2020 20194F
Number of Employees Participated in Trainings
ZIEEAR
Total Number of Employees Participated in Trainings Person time 49 42
XlfE & B8 AR
By Gender
71t 52 75
Male Person time 30 -
SMm AR
Female Person time 19 -
ey AR
By Employee Categories
1% 1E S 25512 5
The Board and senior management Person time 14 -
E=ZghEREEE AR
Department managers Person time 4 -
EBPIAIE AR
Other employees Person time 31 -
HET AR
Average Training Hours Completed per Employee
BEEETAZINFERE
Average Training Hours Completed per Employee' Hour 5.06 6.9
BEEETHRZ N TR aNis
By Gender
#7152 75
Male Hour 1.86 -
St aN:
Female Hour 12.32 -
g N
By Employee Categories
1% 1E S 25512 5
The Board and senior management Hour 5.50 -
EEEhaRERE /N
Department managers Hour 29.50 -
BRI /N
Other employees Hour 4.13 -
Hith8T N

" The average training hours completed per employee are calculated based on 15 FLEBTRZINTFHEEIR [EE T
“Total employee training hours/Total Number of Employees Participated in BE TR Mg HE o
Trainings”.

114 XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Report

Supply Chain Management

HEEER
No. of Suppliers by Geographical Location
1 1% &) 75 A R E B 2 S
Northern China Number -
£t ER
Eastern China Number 2
ER ES
Northeast China Number 1
&k =
Southern China Number -
=] ES
Hong Kong and Macao Number 1
B8 KRR =
Overseas Region Number 6

SN ES
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RIE -HERERBHRE

CONTENT INDEX OF THE ESG GUIDE OF THE STOCK BRXMCRR - 8 RERIES)
EXCHANGE A
Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
[EmE BREVIEER BE HEER B
A. Environment
RIB
A1 Emissions General Information on: Living with the Environment
B Disclosure ﬁfﬂfﬁ&ﬁlﬁﬁ%?ﬁﬁi MK R H, BEIRIBHGFHE
— R S BEMBEBEBREEVNESSH - Green Operation
(@) the policies; and R IEE
B & Green Office
(b) compliance with relevant laws and RPN

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BTHETABEAZENERE
eI T Al
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

B o

A1 The types of emissions and respective Key Performance Summary
emissions data. ARSI E
PR iE iR M AR RE B BUE -

Al1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in Key Performance Summary
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity FRENREE
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
BERBERE CANEETE) & (2@

R EZE (NABESEN - FIBERMERT
H) o

A13 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)  Key Performance Summary
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per FRENRE
unit of production volume, per facility).
FREAXBEEEMEE (LEETE) k(1
R BE (MAGEEEN - BHERM
AE) -
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Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
=g HRENERE KB MEES, Ha
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in Key Performance Summary
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity FRENREE
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
FTEAREZEEYESE (LAME) R (11
BR)BE(MASESEN - BIERG
FTHE) -
A15 Description of measures to mitigate Green Operation
emissions and results achieved. FeEE
RUREHE B BV 5 b M PSR R - Green Office
QRN
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Green Operation
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction EES
initiatives and results achieved. Green Office
HMAEIERENEEREZYNITE B ZERAQ
BREAENHEBMAEHRER -

A2 Use of General Policies on the efficient use of resources, Green Operation
Resources Disclosure including energy, water and other raw REEE
BiRfEA —RRIREE materials. Green Office

BRERER(BIERIR - KREMERM HekHA
) BIBUE -
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption Key Performance Summary
by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total AN E
(kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
RERE SN EE R JEEER (0
B REoh) BREE(UTETREE
REE (MABES SN - §IEFREE
B
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity Key Performance Summary

(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BFKEMEE (WMAGESEN - B8
RiEEE) -

FREEEEBR AR /2020 FFHR
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Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
=g EREANER KB MBEES, B

A23 Description of energy use efficiency Green Operation
initiatives and results achieved. LR EEE
ft ge R e AR AT B R F 1B AR © Green Office

QRN

A24 Description of whether there is any issue in Green Office
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water  4x @B A
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

i SKEGE A /KR _ E R B AR - A
KRBT K st 8l RIS R -

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished The use of packaging
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with materials is not material to
reference to per unit produced. the Group due to our
N mPTARRMENEE (AEETE business nature.

K (ER) BEESU(hE - HREMNEBILE - BEM
KHERYAREEMS I E
Koo
A3 The General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant ~ Green Operation
Environment Disclosure impact on the environment and natural REE S
and Natural —RHEE resources. Green Procurement
Resources BIRBTAHRBERRAERENER HEEE
RIB R KRR FEE ° Green Office
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of Green Operation
activities on the environment and natural FeEE
resources and the actions taken to manage  Green Procurement
them. FERE
XS EIRIFERARARERNEKR  Green Office
FERDENEEBHETENITE - SQ=RIEYN
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Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
EHE ARENER KB MR, fHa
B. Social
HE
Employment and Labour Practices
BN S T H#
B1 Employment  General Information on: Protecting Rights and Welfare
Ef® Disclosure  BEAEBN K iR - HBEERE T - TIER of Employees
—MRIKFE 2 RE- TEHKE 2t RER REEINOENKRERN
AR B S @ AR Engaging with Employees
(@ the policies; and HETHE)
B R
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BTHBETABERTENEBRE
eV TR
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
HYE RS o
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment Key Performance Summary
type, age group and geographical region. FARERRE
RIS - EIRER - FicE R K= Sl
DHEEBE -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age Key Performance Summary
group and geographical region. AR E
RIER - Fhedl Rl Ktz &5 B E BR
K& o
B2 Health and General Information on: Safeguarding Health and
Safety Disclosure ~ BRARELZE2TERERRERER R Safety of Employees
fEEEZE  —MRIKE BEMteER RIEE THRERLT 2
(@) the policies; and
BER M

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BITHBETABERZENHEBE
=SR]

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

tER o
FREEEEBR AR /2020 FFHR
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Disclosure

wE

Section/Remarks

HREE

Aspect KPI
EHE BARENER
B2.1
B2.2
B23
B3 Development  General
and Training Disclosure
ERMEI —RIKE
B3.1
B3.2

120

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

RIEBEMLTHABBLLE -

Lost days due to work injury.

AITSERIIERSE -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

P ER AN BV B R R B e 245 5t - DA
RAABBMITRERTE -

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging duties
at work. Description of training activities.
BRRITEEB BT TIERE RN AMB N
BEEVIRSR - HHIMIEFES

The percentage of employees trained by

gender and employee category (e.g. senior
management, middle management).
BRI LR BRI (NS RERE

EEEFZ)ETNTIREEDL

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee
category.

IR REEERMNE D BREBTK
FHIR TR -
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Key Performance Summary

BRSO E

Key Performance Summary

BARERRE

Safeguarding Health and
Safety of Employees
REETIHRERZ S

Promoting Learning and

Development of Employees

REETHEE RER

Key Performance Summary

BRSO &

Key Performance Summary
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Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
EHE ARENER KB MR, fHa
B4 Labour General Information on: Protecting Rights and Welfare
Standards Disclosure BB 1EE T a@ %125 THY of Employees
AL T AEH| — RN (@ the policies; and REE B T AR & AEF
K R
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BTHETABERZENERE
2 NAR B
relating to preventing child and forced
labour.
HYEFY

B4.1 Description of measures to review Protecting Rights and Welfare
employment practices to avoid child and of Employees
forced labour. {RIZ B THREF R AEH)
R R B NEREARSET K
SRHE T .

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such  Protecting Rights and Welfare
practices when discovered. of Employees
MMEZRIRER SN ERBABERN  RIEE IR KB
PRERH) 8% -

Operating Practices
EEED
B5 Supply Chain  General Policies on managing environmental and Green Procurement
Management Disclosure  social risks of the supply chain. FERE
HEFEEE —REE ERMHEENREIESRBBUR Managing Our Supply Chain
BBt REGE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.  Key Performance Summary

wiREI DN HEREE -

RGN E

FREEEEBR AR /2020 FFHR
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Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
EHE EREANER KB MBEES, B
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging ~ Green Procurement
suppliers, number of suppliers where the ERE
practices are being implemented, how they ~ Managing Our Supply Chain
are implemented and monitored. BIRMH e
i E AEREEENES - ERT
BRAEBOHERSEE - URBBIES
VEIT M EEER A »
B6 Product General Information on: Improving Our Service Quality
Responsibility Disclosure  BEAFTIRMEmMRBHEERZ S - IEARKES
EmAF — MR BE - FELRILBEEARFERITER © Due to the business nature of
(@) the policies; and the Group, matters related
BE Rk to advertising and labelling
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and of products and services
regulations that have a significant provided are not covered
impact on the issuer in this Report.
BTHBETABERZENERE BARAEENEBME KR
eI T K o M A4 R B E o S AR TS B
relating to health and safety, advertising, ERBREEHENEE -
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and
methods of redress.
BB o
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped  Not relevant to the Group's
subject to recalls for safety and health business.
reasons. HARE B T AER -
EEXCEXREMBHTRAL T HEE
EBHmARKNBE DL
B6.2 Number of products and service related Improving Our Service Quality

122

complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

R EmMRIGHIRFEE AN E
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RIE -HERERRS

Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
EHE EREEANER KB MRS, B
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing  Improving Our Service Quality
and protecting intellectual property rights. RARBESZ
il R A o S AR PR AN EE R B AR IE D
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and ~ The Group will consider
recall procedures. disclosing relevant
HilE ERTEBRENERBIKERF information in the future.
REBBRARKE BB FEEH
BH o
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection Improving Our Service Quality

B7 Anti-corruption General
RES Disclosure
— MR EE

B7.1

B7.2

and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.
ftOH B E ERMRE RALBBGR -
HEARITRERTE -

AR

Information on:

BANILRHRE 9% - BEFERER

(@) the policies; and
BR R

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BIHBETABERZENHEBE
ENSEAY

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.

B R o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.
RERHANHETARHESRELE
BRNETHARTHEE LFAER

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

f B & e M B WmAZ - LA NMAERE#
TTRERTE -

RITRGEE

Anti-corruption
k&S

Anti-corruption
k&S

Anti-corruption
k&S
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Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
=g EREANER KB MBEES, B
Community
an
B8 Community General Policies on community engagement to Caring for the Society
Investment Disclosure  understand the needs of the communities AEtE
HERE — R where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BURLHERBER T REEMTEHLERT
ZENRREAXBEHSERLRN R
R e
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, The Group will consider
environmental concerns, labour needs, disclosing relevant
health, culture, sport). information in the future.
ETERERE(WHE - RESFE BT ASEERRKREREEEH
ok b BE) o Bkt o
B8.2 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, The Group will consider

124

environmental concerns, labour needs,
health, culture, sport).

EFEIRBMHAER(NEENERE) -
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RSM Hong Kong

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

T +852 2598 5123
F +852 2598 7230

www.rsmhk.com

RSM

LRS- B ES S

EBREE R TE -+ \5E
FEZH-t+hT&

EE +852 2598 5123
EH +852 2598 7230

www.rsmhk.com

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xin Yuan
Enterprises Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 132 to 212, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BERCEREARQTDRR
(RAEEHEZMKLZ BRAF])

=R
BMEEBFTIERFI1RNE2RENEIR
PESEERAR(TERR] RENBEA
AI([EEE])WiFEMBSRE  EREE
R2020F 12 A31 B ERE BRI E K&
HEZHLEFEMNGEERR  KeExs
NMEMEEWEER  GEEREBRKER
EREMNERUARGEETBRENT - &
RIEeBEME -

BMRE  ZERAUBEBRREREES
A ((EESHIMAE ) BHNE
B BmEER (BB BHRELER ) B
EMPstRET ESBEMN20205F12
A3BWEE B REBEZA L
FENGAEUBRAMMIERESRE I
EEREABRAGHNEEREZBE
1 o
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B 3 A% BLED R &

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2 in the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates the Group had net current liabilities of US$17,364,000
as at 31 December 2020. As stated in Note 2, this condition indicates
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matter
we identified is the impairment assessment of vessels:
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B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BFREEFTEE ()

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRESSEE BN ES DM EEBRREET SR
Impairment assessment of vessels

fh AR E R A

Refer to Notes 17 & 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

TR e IR 17 K218 °

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's vessels amounted
to US$198,385,000, representing 93% of the Group's total
assets. They are key assets held by the Group and drive its
significant cash flows from the asphalt tanker chartering
services and bulk carrier chartering services. The Group
reviews the carrying amount of its vessels at the end of
each reporting period if impairment indicators are
present.

M2020612831H EEEMMERE
198385000k 7T * 1h EEBEELRE 3% ° ZFM
Mm BEEERAENIEZEEE  URESMEMR
BRAEMEMBREEAERRERE . BEEE
& E R E H AR 80 BR E1E = & 7 1 RUE B
xR o

The impairment assessment requires management to
consider both internal and external sources of
information, in determining whether there is any
indication that any vessel may have been impaired. The
assessment of whether impairment indicators are present
requires significant management judgement.
Accordingly, we considered this area as a key audit
matter.
BEFAEFEEEBEET RS ANRB R EMIM
FARTRE B RERSZ B A R INBE IR o FH A=
BFRERETRFTEZEANEIERE HIE - Bt - &
MRBLEEEERETFE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

ZMBEREEEREMIHIEF B

— Understand management'’s impairment assessment
process;

— THREERBRENGBIE

—  Review profitability analysis for each vessel, current
vessel price and any changes in time and voyage
charter and rates; and

— EHEEMMOBNEED SN REHMER
AN EATE R A2 78 e B R e E R 2 E) : &

— Challenge management’s assessment of whether
indicators of impairment are present.

— HEREEBUHRLFERETRHE
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B 3 A% BLED R &

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

B E RS M B |RAEN
B
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ms. Liu Fung Yi.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E{ZE 20205 12 A31 BIEFE

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

Note US$’000 US$'000

B 5 FExx FET

Revenue '@N 8 55,973 49,751
Cost of sales SHER R (39,309) (35,762)
Gross profit EX 16,664 13,989
Other income b= 9 634 1,489
Administrative expenses THHX (3,199) (2,535)
Other operating expenses HmgEmx (596) (634)
Exchange losses, net M X B85 58 (89) (218)
Profit from operations KEREERN 13,414 12,091
Finance costs R E AR 1 (4,806) (6,087)
Profit before tax BRE A% F 8,608 6,004
Income tax expense Fristim s 12 (5) -
Profit for the year FEREF 13 8,603 6,004

Earnings per share BREF 16

Basic (cents per share) EAR (ML) 2.03 150
Diluted (cents per share) B (mhal) N/A 7 iE A N/A 7T A
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEmkEtEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194F
USss$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Profit for the year FERAN 8,603 6,004
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2 mEUKE :
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AJRER EFT AR B ) HE -
Fxchange differences on translating MEBINERER Z58
foreign operations (15) (18)
Other comprehensive income RRENFEHEM2ENE
for the year, net of tax (15) (18)
Total comprehensive income FEXHWNRHAEE
for the year 8,588 5,986
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MR &

At 31 December 2020 72020 12 A31 H

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Note US$’000 US$'000
P 5T FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R NERE 17 95,383 100,014
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 18 103,206 108,918
Total non-current assets FREBEELE 198,589 208,932
Current assets REEE
Derivative financial instruments TTHEER T A 19 230 -
Inventories 7E 20 1,409 1,508
Trade receivables Z ZrElsaa 21 1,462 2,313
Other receivables, deposits and Hip ez IE « e &
prepayments TEfTFIE 22 586 1,643
Contract assets BREE 29 76 373
Pledged bank deposits BRI ER 23(a) 1,398 1,379
Bank and cash balances RIT IR 2 4 ek 23(b) 8,775 2,817
Total current assets REEELE 13,936 10,033
TOTAL ASSETS EEHE 212,525 218,965
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EakaE
Share capital [N 24 4,400 4,000
Reserves i 26 114,907 101,090
Total equity R 119,307 105,090
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings B 27 30,747 24938
Lease liabilities MEaE 28 31,171 45265
Total non-current liabilities FREBBERE 61,918 70,203
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma MR R &

At 31 December 2020 72020512 A31 H

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Note US$’000 US$'000
B 5 FEx FET
Current liabilities RBEE
Derivative financial instruments PTHEemT A 19 508 286
Contract liabilities aHEE 29 532 187
Borrowings Bz 27 12,787 27831
Lease liabilities HEaE 28 14,184 11,635
Trade payables B 5 EMFIE 30 1,909 1,920
Other payables and accruals Hip et Ia Kk Est B B 31 1,380 1,813
Total current liabilities REBAEAE 31,300 43,672
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEkEERE 212,525 218,965
Net current liabilities BB EFE (17,364) (33,639)
Total assets less current liabilities JEAZABERASHERS 181,225 175,293

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2021 and are signed
on its behalf by:

Xu Wenjun

R339

R2021F3 A HESESSHE - AT
TIATREESE -

Wang Faqing
%R

ERECEEEBRAF /2020 FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E{ZE 20205 12 A31 BIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARHEE AER
Foreign
currency
Share Share  Capital  Merger translation Retained
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
HMEBE
kE ROEE ExRE AHREE e REERN act
US$'000 US§'000 US§'000 USS'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000
TEr TEr TEr TEr TER O TER TER
At January 2019 20191 A1 H 4,000 69,063 9310 833 (4) 15,302 99,104
Total comprehensive income FEREYNEEER
for the yearand changes FEELE
in equity for the year - - - - (18) 6,004 5,986
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 124318 4,000 69,003 9310 833 (22) 21,306 105,090
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1A1H 4,000 69,663 9,310 833 (22) 21,306 105,090
Issue of shares (Note 24) e OIGEYD) 400 5229 - - - - 5629
Total comprehensive income FERANGES
for the year - - - - (15) 8,603 8,588
Changes in equity for the year EEERE 400 5,229 - - (15 8603 14217
At 31 December 2020 R2020F 12A31H 4,400 74,892 9,310 833 (37) 29,909 119,307

136 XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

2020 2019
2020 £ 2019%F
Note USss$’000 USS$'000
B aE FEx FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax MR B % 8,608 6,004
Adjustments for: BT SIBEL AR -
Allowance for other receivables H b fE W GRIB B 13 204 -
Bank interest income HRITA B M= 9 (26) (227)
Depreciation of property, Y - B MEREITE
plant and equipment 13 5,079 3,117
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREESERTE 13 5,858 6,065
(Gain)/loss on disposal of derivative HEfTEerT A
financial instrument (Wzs),/ B8 13 (9) 5
Fair value (gains)/losses on derivative ~ $74 48t T AN FE
financial instruments, net (Wezk),/E518 558 13 (8) 201
Finance costs B R AR A 4,806 6,087
Unrealised exchange losses REAIRPE o 58 144 211
Write-off of trade receivables 5 WG IE R 13 38 -
Write-off of other receivables H b pE G IB R 5y 13 183 -
Operating profit before working LEBEESEHALLE N
capital changes 24,877 21,463
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL(Ehn) 99 (559)
Decrease/(increase) in B S EWGIER L, (3E0)
trade receivables 813 (361)
Decrease in other receivables, Hi e IR - 8 &
deposits and prepayments BN RIER L 670 2,556
Decrease/(increase) in SHEERD (3EH)
contract assets 297 (373)
Increase/(decrease) in BHEEEMN(RD)
contract liabilities 345 (682)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B 5 B 318 G4 ) /&N 11) 447
(Decrease)/increase in other HihfEf B N EET B B
payables and accruals CRA),/ i (433) 164
Cash generated from operations KETSIRE S 26,657 22,655
Income tax paid BEREH (5) 2
Interest and bank charges paid BENFMERIBITFESE (2,206) (1,868)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERE (2,573) (4,194)
Net cash generated from LEEFEIRE FE
operating activities 21,873 16,593
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(ZE 2020 12 A31 BLEFE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Note US$’000 US$'000
B 5 FEx FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETEBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Increase in pledged bank deposits B RITIFFIE M (19) (34)
Decrease in time deposit TEETF SR = 6,000
(Increase)/decrease in restricted SERHISRITAESR (3B ), E D
bank balances 23(b) (1,160) 105
Interest received 2 U F B 26 227
Net proceeds from disposal of HETESRITA
derivative financial instruments FT1S R IB 558 9 32
Purchases of property, BEYE - WENKEE
plant and equipment (446) (33,726)
Net cash used in investing activities S EEBFTRIR 255 (1,590) (27,396)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRENRE
ACTIVITIES
Principal elements of lease payments ~ FAE AL I H 32(b) (11,717) (11,649)
Borrowings raised EYNEE 32(b) 20,500 22,752
Repayment of borrowings ESt=E N 32(b) (29,879) (9,625)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRD TS 5R08 5,629 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from BB ES(FTA),/ 8
financing activities e FHE (15,467) 1,478
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReERBESEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®in, CRa) B 4,816 (9,325)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 4N [ R & ha) g2 2 (18) (13)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS M1AT1HNRER
AT 1 JANUARY HEZEY 1,083 10,421
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R12A31BNRER
AT 31 DECEMBER ReEEY 5,881 1,083
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND RERBSEEYIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIIRE &S 8,775 2,817
Less: Restricted bank balances B ZRBIRTTAS 23(b) (2,894) (1,734)
5,881 1,083
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Xin Yuan Enterprises Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 28 June
2016. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 31119, Grand
Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman KY1-
1205, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business in Hong Kong is 40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre,
No. 248 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s
share are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”"); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKAS"); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately US$17,364,000. This condition indicates the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore, it may be unable to realise its assets and discharges its
liabilities in the normal course of business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E{ZE 20205 12 A31 BIEFE

2.

140

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration to the
current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group and the
ability of the Group to continue to attain profitable and positive
cash flows from operations in the immediate and longer terms. In
order to strengthen the Group’s liquidity in the foreseeable
future, the directors of the Company have taken the following

measures:

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

A related company has agreed to extend the repayment
date of loans to the Group amounted to approximately
US$2,500,000 from December 2021 to December 2022. The
aforesaid supplementary agreement with a related
company was signed on 2 March 2021;

On 2 March 2021, the Group entered into a finance lease
with a financial institution for US$12,600,000 with the
pledge of a vessel of the Group for a period of six years.
Further on 8 March 2021, the Group received US$12,411,000
from the financial institution:;

negotiating with banks and other financial institutions in
advance for renewal and obtaining new banking facilities;

the directors of the Company have been taking various cost
control measures to tighten the costs of operations; and

the Group has been implementing various strategies to
enhance the Group's revenue and profitability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. WREEE)
The directors of the Company have taken into account the cash ARAEEECEEAEENREH
requirements of the Group for the next twelve months from the KAEFARKR T -_BEAZEESFT XK
end of the reporting period and the above measures, and have LtiEg TEHERRRAEE
concluded that the Group will have sufficient working capital to BHETEZSEESURHETH
meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due and PR EE Bt 526 BB IW
accordingly the consolidated financial statements have been RERBECEELERE - A%
prepared on a going concern basis. Should the Group be unable R EERBELE  AYES
to continue as a going concern, adjustments would have to be IEmMERELALE  UFABRKEEF
made to the consolidated financial statements to adjust the value ZEEBEBENUNGAIGEEE Z#E—
of the Group's assets and to provide for any further liabilities SEBIELERBRELRBIERBEE L
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and EEDREMOYBARDEERE
liabilities as current assets and liabilities, respectively. & o
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are BEESTMATEEME THRASE
first effective or available for early adoption for the current B 7N 2 51 HA RS & X A ek AT R AT ER
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on MEFT ] MBI BB B REE
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial Al o Y385 2 R 474 BT Rk
application of these developments to the extent that they are AR ZEHEXNERRE R NG
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting AestMEAREEAEB  EEM
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements. B, @A HREE B -

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. M REEITERBMBER

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the Amendments to Reference to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. IR RIEITH B ER
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Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements,
which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify that
materiality depends on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements taken
as a whole.

The application of the amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide further guidance on how to determine whether a
transaction represents a business combination. In addition,
the amendments introduce an optional “concentration
test” that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is an asset rather than
business acquisition, when substantially all of the fair value
of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.

The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions for which the acquisition date is on or after 1
January 2020. The application of the amendments had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective
The Group has not applied any new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2020. These new and
revised HKFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

R el RE&IEE] BB M KR

FHER (&)

(b) EEMERERERVFHITR
RIETTE B KHREER
AEBWEEAEBEHERER
202051 A1 BB ZBFEF
[EAEREFE] REIERT BB
B EER o ZFHET LB
R BB KRG LR BIER R
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Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUAT B

Z BB
EREEES:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

AV BHRELRNE O - HBASTERIE 95 - BEMBHREER
75 BEMBREERE 47 NBBW KRS LN

165 (EFTA) FIREENE — FEE

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BB B E LR 35 (BETA) B ESR LS

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment:
proceeds before intended use

BEAGFEAFE 165 (BRI R) W - WFE L&
YERE R RI 2 RIS TR

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

BERGERE7RERIR)BRAN —BITAKNZAA

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
2018 F 2 2020 F BB B B IME L] 2 FEIE

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
BEAGEERF1RUBEIR) BEDEAREHIERE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

1 January 2021

2021% 1 A1H

1 January 2022
2022F1A1H
1 January 2022

202F1H1H

1 January 2022
20221 H1H
1 January 2022
2022%F 1318
1 January 2023
20231 H1H
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared

4. EEBTTEER

It EREE M BEmMKRIIIRE LKA L
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise BE . ETYEtHESAHMLE
in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial (METEAFES=ENERIE)
instruments that are measured at fair value). BRAN o

RIFFBM GRS ERNREEYT B R
ABEERAE TG G- H
NEEEEERERAAEE S
RBREFELHIE - RE NG Y
REMBHRRBEANBBEREN

consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 5. fizEs o

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

LIS A BT RS A 0 E
BERHBERIOT -

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation (a) #ZEEEB

144

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statements of financial position and
consolidated statements of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

146

(b)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
United States dollars (“US$"), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the
end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in
profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company's presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

148

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

Vessels

Vessels, other than vessels under leases which were
classified as right-of-use assets (Note 4(d)(i)), are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

Vessels (other than the abovementioned vessels
under lease and the dry-docking component) are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of 10-25 years, after taking into account
the estimated residual values. Depreciation method,
estimated useful lives and estimated residual values
are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

Upon acquisition of a vessel, the components of the
vessel which are required to be replaced at the next
dry-docking are identified and their costs are
depreciated over the period to the next estimated
dry-docking date. Costs incurred on subsequent dry-
docking of the vessels are capitalised and depreciated
over the period to the next estimated dry-docking
date. When significant dry-docking costs incurred
prior to the expiry of the depreciation period, the
remaining costs of the previous dry-docking are
written off immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(c)

(ii)

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

Office equipment & motor vehicle 20%-33%
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of

any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Leases

150

4. FESFEEGE)
(d) *Hl%i

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

() The Group as lessee
Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus
any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

4, FTEETEEE)

d) #HE
(i)

EREEEE

(#&)
FEBMEREBA(E)
WHEEARL  HERE
VRN RN EERN
RH R EMR - WERE
EREMER(HmH A X
BERESMWETE  BlRA
BRI E B EK) | -
RINBEREK - HERE
B SHR AT E - FIE R
X RIE A BB A RORF
B o FEURRHE B X
FY AT B A B AR T ET A
HEREMNTE Atk
EEM S BENIEEN
B o

HEE MR HERH B
REENRRKATE -
EREEREVREEN
Fia B HE RSz AT
MERBEENR WEE
HEMTMGERK
Ko @R ERREEE
AN, B FE IR R B BR 4R
EENREHRBEESR
HEEEMES A
RAR(FTREZERE) B
T2 RHEES - £
BEERERBKAR R
IrERREREYIEK -

AEBEREEENHBE
RFESHBEEEEMN
B EREEERRR
B HHE = A £ 1 4 2

FEARITE - TRl £
BEENEMGAERF
HEEBAAREER
B)REREFE o

BRAR /2020 FF3F 151



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E{ZE 20205 12 A31 BIEFE

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Leases (Continued)

152

(i)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in the
Group's estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is a
change arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of HKFRS 16. In such cases, the Group took
advantage of the practical expedient set out in
paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the
change in consideration as if it were not a lease
modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Leases (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(ii) The Group as lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.

Inventories

Inventories comprise bunker and lubricant oil for vessels
remaining on board at the end of the reporting period.
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out basis.
Net realisable value is the expected amount to be realised
from use as estimated by the directors/management.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECL") in accordance with the policy set out in Note
4(v) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

154

(f)

(9)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)
When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

156

1)

(k)

)

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group'’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
Costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from voyage charter and contract of affreightment
("CoA") is recognised over time when the asphalt tanker
chartering services are performed.

Revenue from vessel management services is recognised
over time when the management services are performed.

Revenue from asphalt trading is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred, being when the goods have
been shipped to the customer’s specific location (delivery).
Following delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the
primary responsibility when on selling the goods and bears
the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the customer as this represents the point in
time at which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is required
before payment is due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(p)

(a)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Rental income from time charter and bulk carrier charter is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of each
charter, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
(ii) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q) Employee benefits (Continued)

(r)

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group
that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset. Any specific borrowing that remain
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool for
calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(s)

(t)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

162

(t)

(u)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the
case, recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value less
costs of disposal of the individual asset or the cash-
generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values
are computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-
generating unit whose impairment is being measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused by
changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the
extent that they reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
receivables and contract assets. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

164

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained
from economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information that
relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

() The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(I The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

() Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

166

(v)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating is not available, the asset
has an internal rating of “performing”. Performing means
that the counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

168

(v)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the exposure
at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the
assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. For a lease receivable, the
cash flows used for determining the expected credit losses
is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the
lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was
used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(x)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgement that has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements (apart from those involving estimates, which are dealt
with below).

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on

a going concern basis, the Group meets its day-to-day working
capital requirements through its continuous positive operating
cashflow and the bank and other facilities. Details are explained
in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.
(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
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The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value
in use, the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assets belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amounts.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2020 were
approximately US$95,383,000 (2019: US$100,014,000) and
approximately US$103,206,000 (2019: US$108,918,000)
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. During the
year, approximately US$5,000 (2019: USSNil) of Singapore
Corporate Income Tax was charged to profit or loss based
on the estimated profit from operations. No provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax and the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") Enterprise Income Tax was made since the
Group had no assessable profit for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets
The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables and contract
assets based on the credit risk of trade receivables and
contract assets. The amount of the impairment loss based
on ECL model is measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of trade
receivables and contract assets was approximately
US$1,538,000 (2019: US$2,686,000) and no allowance of
doubtful debts was made (2019: Nil).

5.

B8 iR T | = E A S ()
CEEEESES:VESE -2 YA )

(b)

(c)

FREEEEBR AR /2020 FFHR

Frig®t

REEMSHEBHERHELE
At e REBREBFREFER
ZHREMIBET THEBENR S
RetE - WZEEFENRET
HHEIEBIRITZAEN S
B AZEEZEErEETH
B PT 1S B0 KR RE B TE 1 4 -
RAFE  EEFEEME
i I P18 25 AR HIBR B h s 1 2
T 1§ B #95,0003 7T (20194
TET) HRASEREE
2020 F K2 2019F 12 H31 HIEF
BEUWEERT GF  UERE
BAHERMEPEAREMEA
(TR E)) I SEFTSBIE L B -

EZRBRERENEERE
AEEEEEREE S EUHK
ERAHNEENEERRMGE
BHRWFERAHNEENTE
HEEBENRERESE -
EREHEEBREREAER
MEBRESENERIES QR
NAKENFFAEANRERE
EAREEBEHEINMERE
MEBZBENEZREAE - AR
T I6 TE RS EE E M B BRI R 47
BemMAKXKREREBRRE
H kREFENMBRE T
- BIFT e EE EARMERE ©

e
OH]

R2020F12A31H ' E5EW
HENEGHEENEEELN A
1,538,000% 7T (20194 :
2,686,000 7)) + I FEAE H R AR
B (20194 < 48) o

171



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E{ZE 20205 12 A31 BIEFE

6.

172

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of respective Group entities such as Singapore
dollars ("SGD”) and Renminbi ("RMB”). During the year, the
Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts to
hedge the foreign currency risk in respect of bank loans
denominated in SGD. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider further its
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

At 31 December 2020, if USS$ had strengthened/weakened
5 per cent against SGD with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been approximately US$651,000 (2019: US$833,000)
higher/lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gains/losses on other loans denominated in SGD.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents and derivative financial assets is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial institutions with
high credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies, for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk.

XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020

6. TRIAMER

AREENEHAIESBRTIENS
R SMNERRR - EERR - RBE
TR EAEER - AEBEREE
R E R RHEEATENN S
BT 5 0 0 B R AN & [ B 7S
RIRWBETZE -

(a) SMEE Pz
AEBERERLOEBHRLS &
ENBBEAEESEEERIE
B AN B (A3 N T
(F#rmsTl) MARBTAR
B EHE - MASE TINER
o FAN - AKBERILINER
HI & 4 DA S 0 B DA N3 JT At
B/ R 1T E KA B # S E R
o NEE T EE HIMNER
R WHRFERERE—F
HmERINERR

MR2020F12A318 » REETT
HE M T HE B E5% ™
FREREMESHSIE  FE
AR EFEE MR
#9651,000% 7T (20194F :
833,000%7T) * EEEFEAFTM
¥ oT R E & E A B FRAMNE K
=,/ R -

(b) EEREMR
EERRERARZHFRER
TERERIAREFPAHEA
TEEMEFYBIREINE
B o AEEmEEREZE LR (X
ERESRUGIR) RERER
B (BRRITESBEBETH
SNER S REMERTR)EE
MEERR AEERRE K
ReSBOENETREEM
EENEERBRER  AAA
AR ZE T REREEFRHE
BRTEREEFAMAEE
RAEEERARBEMNRITLS
RS o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables and contracts assets

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group's established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables, for voyage
charter, generally are due within five business days
after completion of cargo loading. For CoA, the
balances generally are due within three business days
after completion of cargo discharging. For demurrage
claims, the balances normally are due within 30 days
after the finalisation. For asphalt trading, the balance
is normally paid within 30 days after the invoice date.
Debtors with balances that are more than 3 months
past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases. The
ECL rate of current trade receivables and contract
assets is assessed to be 0% (2019: 0%). No loss
allowance provision was recognised during the year.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. TREMEEH)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERB(E)
(ii) Other receivables (iiy HbEuwsE
The Group assessed that the ECL for other receivables AREBFTERE  HifE
are not material under 12-month expected losses WHIBTEEEEEZ 12
method. Allowance provision of approximately EABEEEEATIT T E
US$204,000 (2019: USSNIl) was recognised during the Ko NAREERERBEL

year. 204,000 JT(2019%F : &
ET) e
(c) Liquidity risk () REBESEMR

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements

AEENERSEHRERBA
RIEHHREESFH K - AHE
RAGEEFERR S FHIERE
NEERLEMRSESHK -

in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted

AEEFTESRABRAR

cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities WS REE2Y MR H S0

174

is as follows: T
On demand Between Between
or within 1and 2and Over
1year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
M1ER 1228 2E5% SENE )
US§'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET FE FET
At 31 December 2020 72020512 A31H
Borrowings EE 13,672 15,494 19,835 - 49,001
Lease liabilities HEBRE 15,620 18,208 14,486 = 48,314
Trade and other payables ESREMmENTIR 2,570 - - - 2,570
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A318
Borrowings EE 30,285 8311 18121 - 56,717
Finance lease payables BMERERNFE 14411 16523 33,244 - 64,178
Trade and other payables B Z N E M ENZIE 12,113 - - - 12,113
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Interestraterisk

6. TRIEAMERE®)

(d) FZRE Rk

(e)

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk mainly arises from
its bank deposits, bank loans, loans from a related company
and other loans. Bank deposits of approximately
USS$2,148,000 (2019: USS$2,129,000) bear interests at fixed
interest rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest
rate risk. Bank deposits of approximately US$6,115,000
(2019: US$357,000). bank loans, loans from a related
company and other loans bear interests at variable rates
varied with the then prevailing market condition.

The Group used interest rate swaps in order to mitigate its
exposure associated with fluctuations relating to interest
cash flows.

At 31 December 2020, if interest rates had been 100 basis
points (2019: 100 basis points) lower/higher with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the
year would have been approximately US$828,000 (2019:
US$1,093,000) higher/lower, arising mainly as a result of
lower/higher interest expenses.

Categories of financial instruments

ﬁ‘ilE’JﬂT’HAIEXEE
RITER B kB —
Fﬂﬁ% ﬁ’“‘?ﬂ’]?ﬁfﬂ&ﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁ

o 3R 17 17 FX 492,148,000 & J©
(2019%@129000%7‘3)#22!

E%M%Jr lltt%r‘/w?@
FIERE P o RITFHEI6,115,000

%m(zomi :357,000% 7T )
RITE - ke —E@EEB QA
BB R & H A E R T B FI
(BEERRITTRER) TS -

RNEE R R LR D E
ﬁﬁnn E)‘]E-Eiﬂ Eﬁﬁium%*a F’E‘J El']
N

2020512 A31H @ AR
k%, F+ 10018 & 25 (2019 F -
100182 METEEMES
HEFETE - AFELR Aliﬂfué
i A 3L A0, R > %9 828,000 3
7T (20194F : 1,093,000% JT ) °
FERERMBMAL TR, EF
FITEX °

(e) &RT AR

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
US$’000 US$'000
FERx FET
Financial assets: SRMEE
Financial assets mandatorily BHEIE AT EFABETEDN
measured at FVTPL THMEE—TESMITA
— derivative financial instruments 230 -
Financial assets measured at REHEKAGTENERMEE
amortised cost 12,119 8,069
Financial liabilities: £ 3=L
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BEAFEFTAERD
— derivative financial instruments TRBE—TEemIT A 508 286
Financial liabilities at amortised cost ~ IREE$EK At EN SR A G 46,104 56,166
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6.

176

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(f) Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statements of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out

of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. QFEFEE
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy: (a) APFEEBRKE :
At
Fair value measurements using: 31 December
EATHERNATETE 2020
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level3 20205
it £-% -t £=4# 12A3H

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TXR TXR TXR e

Recurring fair value KEMATETE:
measurement:
Financial assets SREE
Foreign currency forward INERHIA L
contracts - 230 - 230
Recurring fair value KEMATETE:
measurement:
Financial liabilities A=
Interest rate swap contracts FEEEBREL = 508 = 508
At
Fair value measurements using: 31 December
ERTIERNATETE 2019
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 20194
fast R F_MH F=H  12AnNH
US$'000 US$'000 USS'000 USS'000
TET TEx TET TET
Recurring fair value KEMATETE
measurement:
Financial liabilities tREE
Interest rate swap contracts FEREEBEL - 286 - 286
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7. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVERE#E)

(b) Disclosure of valuation process used by (b) AEBEFFEAGEEREFUAR
the Group and valuation techniques and inputs NEEFERFERAGERE
used in fair value measurements: R ABIERE
Level 2 fair value measurements E_RAFEFE

Assets/(liabilities)

BE (&8
Description Valuation technique Inputs 2020 2019
i fRER % WA S 20204 20194
US$’000 US$'000
FTERx FET
Foreign currency Discounted cash flows ~ Comparable 230 -
forward contracts exchange rate
HMEREIE Y FHRBERE ] £ 2
Interest rate swap Discounted cash flows  Interest rate (508) (286)
contracts Discount rate
M= H & 4 FRRERE M AR =
During the two years, there were no changes in the RAEEE - FTAGES AL
valuation techniques used. mEgE -
8. REVENUE 8. WA
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by F NIRRT B WA T 3R B 1 2 5 9
services and the timing of revenue recognition for the year are as REEPEHHBALT
follow:
2020 2019
2020 20194
US$’000 US$'000
FERx FET
Revenue from contracts with ERUVBBREERE 155
customers within the scope EEARBEEFEHNHKRA
of HKFRS 15
— Voyage charter and CoA, — RRAKMBESY  DERER
recognised over time 23,332 21,661
— Trading of asphalt, recognised —EEES  REREEER
ata pointin time - 1,710
Revenue from other sources REHMRFEHBA
— Time charter — HiFE 32,641 26,380
55,973 49,751
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9.

10‘

OTHER INCOME 9. Hfttrs
2020 2019
2020 20194
US$’000 US$'000
FERx FET
Bank interest income RITH B M s 26 227
Compensation income BEkR 426 1212
Net fair value gains on derivative TESRTARTFERSFRE
financial instruments 8 -
Gain on disposal of derivative HEMES T ARz
financial instruments 9 -
Government grants (Note) BT B (B aE) 45 3
Sundry income B S 120 47
634 1,489
Note: During the year, the Group recognised government grants in respect of MizE : FR - NEBWERE S KN BT

COVID-19 related subsidies provided by the government of Hong Kong
and Singapore.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has three operating segments as follows:

Provision of asphalt tanker
chartering services

Asphalt tanker
chartering services

Bulk carrier Provision of bulk carrier

chartering services chartering services

Asphalt trading Trading of asphalt

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include unallocated
interest revenue, unallocated interest expenses, unallocated
corporate income and unallocated corporate expenses.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the
sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market prices.

10.

IREACOVID-1948 B 7 Bk Z AT 7
B o

SEE B
REBMAUNT=ZELEDEL

ESMAEMRE — TET LS MY

GER e
HEMmEMRYE — RHAEM

GER e
EEE — EFH
AEBEATEFRN DA REHEAS

B ey

AL =T

?%&%%Mﬁ%%ﬁiﬁo

DEOHER FRRASERSE

TRIB By [ & S B o

EDE NS BER RS M FR

KUIFE4 T E AR - 2% ﬂi)&ﬁ

BIABEERDEMNBEWA - KD
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 0. 7EER (&)
Information about operating segment profit or loss, FBARE D ﬁB mANEBE - EE
assets and liabilities: BREBEHNESR :
Asphalt
tanker Bulk carrier
chartering chartering Asphalt
services services trading Total
EE M BEm
A e B % LAY BE5E5 @t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 USS'000
TET TEn TET T=rn
Year ended 31 December 2020: %= 2020512 F31H
LEE:
Revenue from external customers R B MBEF A 45,329 10,644 - 55,973
Segment profit/(oss) AEREH,/(E518) 7,662 3,577 (3) 11,236
Interest expenses MBS 3,846 929 - 4,775
Depreciation nE 8,963 1,819 - 10,782
Income tax expense FIEERS 5 - - 5
Additions to segment REDHERDEE
non-current assets 442 - - 442
As at 31 December 2020: 20205128318 :
Segment assets NHEE 175,774 31,895 7 207,676
Segment liabilities AHERE 73,738 16,253 - 89,991
Year ended 31 December 2019; B Z 2019 12 A31 H
IEFE -
Revenue from external customers 3R BMNIFE B HIUA 47 464 577 1710 49,751
Segment profit DEE A 8057 168 82 8307
Interest expense AR 5,969 93 - 6,062
Depreciation and amortisation TELEE 8929 160 - 9,089
Additions to segment REDHERBDEE
non-current assets 664 32,994 - 33,658
As at 31 December 2019; M2019F 124318 :
Segment assets DEEE 185,200 33277 7 218484
Segment liabilities AR 92,204 248 - 92472
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) Aﬁllﬁ*# &)
Reconciliations of segment profit or loss: ‘Eﬂbﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ?ﬁ :
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Revenue WA
Total revenue of reportable segments AT E2EWmDEBRALLEE 55,973 49,751
Profit or loss %*UEEE? B
Total profit or loss of reportable segments 78 F 2 ¥k 21 A1 sk B 18 44 % 11,236 8,307
Unallocated interest revenue KD @Eﬂ A 1 1
Unallocated interest expenses PN @Eﬂ SHX (31) (25)
Unallocated corporate income E N NS 62 1
Unallocated corporate expenses PN @E G52 (2,665) (2,280)
Consolidated profit for the year FEEEE TN 8,603 6,004
Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities: PTHEERBBEHER :
2020 2019
2020 2019%F
Uss$’000 US$'000
FEx T3
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments ATE2 ifﬁ ‘E‘B & ERE 207,676 218484
Unallocated amounts: ROBEK
Other corporate assets HMA T éf = 4,849 481
Consolidated total assets MEBERE 212,525 218,965
Liabilities 88
Total liabilities of reportable segments BTE2 i& ‘E‘B | (H48%8 89,991 92,472
Unallocated amounts: RoBL
Other corporate liabilities H@" ﬁj =L 3,227 21,403
Consolidated total liabilities ire BEERE 93,218 113,875
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10‘

182

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information:

Revenue

The Group's business is managed on a worldwide basis. The
revenue generated from provision of asphalt tanker chartering
services and provision of bulk carrier chartering services which
are carried out internationally, and the way in which costs are
allocated, preclude a meaningful presentation of geographical
information.

The revenue from asphalt trading is mainly generated from
customers based in Hong Kong.

Non-current assets
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, over 99% of the Group’s non-
current assets are vessels.

The vessels are primarily utilised across geographical markets for
shipment of liquid asphalt and bulk carrier throughout the world.
Accordingly, it is impractical to present the locations of the
vessels by geographical areas and thus no segment analysis is
presented.

7 EBE R ()

wEER

A

AEENEBEMEZK - REES
s L o R 75 B 42 A AR S v 7 i BR 75
(EeXBEARRER) EXMHBRA KR
DEAARET AT HE5HE E R

BEEESHZBAETZREFTENET
ﬁ o

FRBEE
R20205%F 2019 12 A31H » A&
%80 99% M FE BN B EE AT o

MMEZRREERESHWET IS
BEERBES LIEREM - Eit -
IR E 2SI E L B
M A 2 5 5 FEOAT ©

Revenue from major customers: REETEEFHBA :
2020 2019
2020 20194
Us$’000 USS$'000
FTEx FET
Provision of asphalt tanker RME S M8 M R A%
chartering services
Customer A EFPA 15,125 12,179
Customer B (Note (a)) EPB(MFE @) 6,644 N/A T3 A
Customer C (Note (b)) P C (kb)) N/A 38 A 11,417
Customer D (Note (b)) EPD (M5 (b)) N/A 38 A 6,352
Customer E (Note (b)) EPE(FiEE®) N/A 73 A 5,648
Notes: M5E -
(a) Revenue from Customer B represented less than 10% of the Group's (@) KEZFPBHWAEREEHZ 2019F
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019. 12431 BIEEERATRZ10% °
(b) Revenue from Customer C, Customer D and Customer E represented less (b) KEARFC BFDEEFEMW AL

than 10% of the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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11. FINANCE COSTS 11. BE KA
2020 2019
2020 20194
USs$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Interest expenses on lease liabilities MEREZN B (H5E18)
(Note 18) 2,600 4,219
Interest rate swap expenses F =42 BRI 2 304 67
Interests on borrowings B E 1,902 1,801
4,806 6,087
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FiIfEHAX
Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as following: REZAERHFIEHROT :
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
USs$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Current tax — Singapore Corporate BVERRR I — AN (b RS
Income Tax
Underprovision in prior year FEEREBTR 5 -
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC and KEEBFELEES  PEEF MK

Singapore. During the year ended 31 December 2020, Singapore
Corporate Income Tax has been provided at a rate of 17%. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC Enterprise Income
Tax was made since the Group has no assessable profit for the
year ended 31 December 2020. During the year ended 31
December 2019, no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax, PRC
Enterprise Income Tax and Singapore Corporate Income Tax was
made since the Group has no assessable profit for the year ended
31 December 2019.

TR o PAEIZE 202012 A31H
LEFE - B3R 17% MR EFHRF I
PERMER WETIREBFEM
RPBREEMREY  EBARNEEE
E200F 12 A3 B ILFEWEER
Fiom A o REZE 2019128318 1E
FE  UEARBAENEN +EH
EREH R ME S EER
HAeKEEHE2019F12 83181
FEWERRTRF o
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2. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12.
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate is as follows:

Fﬁ ST X (&
%ﬂﬁaﬁsiéﬁiﬁfﬁmﬁl i A T’ AR B
ﬂ ST RS ERMERNT ¢

2020 2019

2020 £ 20194

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Profit before tax BRA% AT A1 8,608 6,004
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of BEBMFHHRE16.5%

16.5% (2019: 16.5%) (20194F : 16.5%) st E BT 1A 1,420 991
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BARBWEOHETE (9,379) (8,531)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 7~ A] F17% B Sk #) i 165 57 £ 7,715 7,309
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBIEEBNHNEE 361 327
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries  Fff B2 B TR Fi K 1) 5/ £ (117) (96)
Underprovision in prior year FFEREBETRE 5 -
Income tax expense PSHFA 5 -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately US$3,277,000 (2019: US$2,938,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax assets have been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams
from those loss making subsidiaries. The aforesaid unused tax
losses of the Group have not yet been agreed by respective tax
authorities. The expiry date of unrecognised tax losses are
summarised as follows:

2020128318 KEBA XD
FAFTE B 18 493,277,000 7T (20194F -
2,938,000 % 7T ) A it FHJJ‘ATEE%?EXm
Fle BRZEHSEENHEA

B 2R B S i S | TR Eﬁlfﬂiﬁﬁ
REEMBEE - L AEEKRE
FA 74 TE 5 18 1A AR A AR B8 B T K 8 R
B RERBEEEMNE A
U

184

On 31 December 2022
On 31 December 2023
On 31 December 2024
On 31 December 2025

Carried forward indefinitely

202212 A31H
R2023F 12 A318
R2024F 12 A31H
2025F 12 A31H
mRH A

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
43 43

789 789
1,003 1,003
1,442 -

= 1,103

3,277 2,938

XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

13. PROFIT FORTHE YEAR

13. FE&F

The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting)

AEBFEEMNDERR,(GEA)

the following: Ty &BEIEZS
2020 2019
2020 20194
USs$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B 7 B 154 160
Allowance for other receivables o fE IR B 204 -
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA = 1,600
Depreciation of property, Y - BB MEETE
plant and equipment 5,079 3117
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 5,858 6,065
Exchange losses, net P& B85 58 89 218
Fair value (gains)/losses on derivative TSR T ANFEE
financial instruments, net (M=), E518F5 (8) 201
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HETESHTA
derivative financial instruments (Wz8),/ B8 (9) 5
Write-off of trade receivables B 5 FE W IE R 8 38 -
Write-off of other receivables H fth FE USRI 88 183 -
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) B TR AN (B 15 EH )
— Salaries, bonuses and allowances —¥& ~ TEAT N EBL 1,589 1,048
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions — 3R /R 4& F| 5121 3¢ 34 109
— Other benefits — HAE A 170 146
1,793 1,303
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 14. EE R EEFHN

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEH
The emoluments of each director are set out below: SEENHGMEYI T ¢
Retirement
benefit
Salariesand  Discretionary scheme
Fees allowances bonuses  contributions Total
RIER
e  HEREH B AR ECHY
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEx FEr FE FEr TEr
Year ended BE220%F
31 December 2020 12A31ALEE
Mr. Wang Faging TEERAE 87 - 28 - 115
Mr. Xu Wenjun Bmxa%sE 128 - 89 - 217
Mr. Ding Yuzhao TEslx4E S - 8 - 8
Mr. Lai Guanrong FRERL LA 34 - - _ 34
Mr. Suen Chi Wai REREE 34 - - - 34
Mr. Xu Jie RREE 34 - - - 34
317 - 125 - 442
Year ended HZ2019%
31 December 2019 12A3ALEE
Mr.Wang Faging (Note )~ T3%78 % 4 (st a) 16 - - - 16
Mr.Ding Xiaoli (Note b) T B3z % 4 (Fi#zEb) - - - - -
Mr. Xu Wenjun Bmxa%sE - 88 - 5 93
Mr. Ding Yuzhao TE8%ESE - - - - -
Mr. Lai Guanrong RBEREE 25 - - - 25
Mr. Suen Chi Wai REELE 25 - - - 25
M. Xu Jie RREE 25 - - - 25
91 88 - 5 184
Notes: P%E -
(@) Appointed on 30 August 2019. @  F20199F8 A30BEE(T -
(b)  Resigned on 30 August 2019. (b)  H2019FF8 A30H BHE ©
There were no arrangements under which a director waived FAMEBESEENENR B NE
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2019: TN ZHE (20195 « ) o
Nil).
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

(c)

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year included two (2019: one) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2019: four) individuals
are set out below:

14. EEREEFMH (&)

(b) AEBESHFMAL

FAAEBREESHMAL
FEEMEL(Q019F : —F)E
= HFMRN EXAIISTKR
Mo HER= (20194 : M%)
ATHFBESI AT -

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

US$’000 USS$'000

FEx FET

Salaries and allowances Fre MoERL 223 241
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 124 -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R K48 F| 5T 24t 2% —* 15
347 256

* Less than US$1,000

The emoluments fell within the following band:

* T2 1,000ETT
BERAFMANTHEE -

Number of individuals

AE
2020 2019
2020 & 2019
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z %= 1,000,000 7 7T 3 4

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Notes 27 and 35, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

(c)

EERNRS ZHHELNH
WEKEz=

BRERE27 R3S P I B S -
MERAFERIRNAEFERN
EAREIDAFENEANEE
XBER - XRAFRAEIANN
ARRRESERESZHEA
TERXREREFHABEAXN
BREamEMEARS  THK

BH) e
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 14. EEREEFMN (&)

(Continued)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other d BEBEUESE - EZEZER
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies EREERAZTEZANE
corporate by and connected entities with such N EEFRHMRZNE
directors #

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no ME 220200128318 1EF
loans, quasi-loans and other dealings entered into by the B ARABHEARBHIKER
Company or subsidiaries undertaking of the Company, AlNER)MENEST AT S
where applicable, in favor of directors (2019: Nil). ANFTNERMER - EERXKH

H2Z 5 (20194 « &) o

15. DIVIDEND 15. RE
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend EETEZRNBE(2019F « ) o
(2019: Nil).
16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. BIREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the EREABMNAGTEENRUATSIA
following:
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Earnings Z7
Profit for the year attributable to owners  ANA &1 #EA A fE1H & E &5 7
of the Company 8,603 6,004
‘000 ‘000
TR Tz
Number of shares RGEE
Weighted average number of TE AR AR S8R
ordinary shares 423,169 400,000
No diluted earnings per share was presented for the year ended MR EBERFETEBR - Bt
31 December 2020 (2019: Nil) as there was no potential ordinary W2 EZE2020FE 12 A31 B IEFE

share outstanding.

B EREERF (2019F : #)
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BERKRE

Office
Vessels& equipment &
dry-docking motor vehicle Total
MAREBR
MR AE Bt
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FTErx FET FET
Cost R
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1 8 207,888 59 207,947
Reclassification upon adoption  RERAE B IS RE 2R
of HKFRS 16 F16REEN DT (133,443) - (133,443)
Additions NE 33,658 68 33,726
Exchange differences b E¥E - 1 1
At 31 December 2019 and 201912 A31A R
1 January 2020 20201 A1 H 108,103 128 108,231
Additions NE 442 4 446
Write-off Paski= - (1) (1)
Exchange differences MEH ZRE - 4 4
At 31 December 2020 72020612 A31H 108,545 135 108,680
Accumulated depreciation ZFINE
At 1 January 2019 F2019F1 A1 H 23,732 25 23,757
Reclassification upon adoption RERANE B 15 R 28|
of HKFRS 16 F16HW@EHNNE (18,656) - (18,656)
Charge for the year FRHE 3,096 21 3,117
Exchange differences b =R - (1 (1)
At 31 December 2019 and R2019%F 12 A31H K
1 January 2020 2020F1 A1 H 8,172 45 8,217
Charge for the year FRHEK 5,058 21 5,079
Write-off Paskiz - (1) (1)
Exchange differences e =R - 2 2
At 31 December 2020 72020512 A31H 13,230 67 13,297
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2020 72020 12 A31H 95,315 68 95,383
At 31 December 2019 FR2019F 12 A31H 99,931 83 100,014
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17.

18.

190

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
At 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of vessels pledged
as securities for the Group’s bank loans and other loans
amounted to approximately US$63,964,000 (2019: US$66,865,000)
and approximately US$31,016,000 (2019: Nil) respectively (Note
27).

17. V¥ - BERRE (B

20208128318 - Bif{EAARE
ERITE R R E M E SRR A M A
BRTEIE D Bl A #7 63,964,000 7T (2019
% 1 66,865,0003 7T ) & #931,016,000

EL(2019%F « ) (FI5E27) »

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EFAREEE
Leased

Vessels properties Total
MM HEME st
Us$'000 USS$'000 USS$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2019 20191 H1H 114,787 199 114,986
Depreciation e (5,993) (72) (6,065)
Exchange differences e ZR8 - (3) (3)
At 31 December 2019 MR2019% 12 A31H 108,794 124 108,918
Additions NE - 143 143
Depreciation e (5,724) (134) (5,858)
Exchange differences b H, = 5E - 3 3
At 31 December 2020 2020912 A31H 103,070 136 103,206

Lease liabilities of approximately US$45,355,000 (2019:
US$56,900,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
approximately US$103,206,000 (2019: US$108,918,000) as at 31
December 2020. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the vessels that are
held by the lessor (Note 28). Except for leased vessels with
carrying amount of approximately US$103,070,000 (2019:
US$108,794,000), there is no other leased asset that was used as
security for borrowing purposes.
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#945,3550003 7T (2019 4F © 56,900,000
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 18. EAAEEE (&)
2020 2019
2020 20194
USs$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Depreciation expenses on FRAEEENTEEZR
right-of-use assets 5,858 6,065
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEERNNERAX
(included in finance costs) (Gt ARERA) 2,600 4219
Expenses relating to short-term leases HEHEERENRAX
(included in administrative expenses) GTATTHAX) 66 56
Expenses relating to leases of HHEEREEEERBNRAX
low-value assets (included in GtATTHAX)
administrative expenses) 8 9

Details of total cash outflow for leases are set out in Note 32(c).

For both years, the Group leases certain vessels and offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed terms
ranging from 1 to 5 years (2019: 1 to 5 years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

No lease of the Group includes an option to renew the lease for
an additional period after the end of the contract term.

MERS L QERBERNME
32(c) °

RREFE  AEEAMREKME
EETHMMERAE - sIUMNHEE
BHETEHR A1 ZE5F (2019F ¢ 1
F5%) o HEBRRIIR(E R EAERE
B BESERNR MG RS-
A TE R BR I BT A TS AT RS HAPR B
AEEEAAONTERETETEL
A] R BRI TR HEAPR o

AEBHHEMTBEERE QM
BBRRRIZHE -
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19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 19. FTE€FITHE
2020 2019
2020 fF 20194
Us$’000 USS'000
TET T

20.

192

Financial assets
Fair value of foreign currency

TRMEE
SNEEHIAHAFE

forward contracts 230 -
Financial liabilities - 3=R
Fair value of interest rate swap contracts ~ F| &g Hi & 49N F(E 508 286
The Group entered into certain foreign currency forward REBERITIIVE TIHERERHE
contracts and interest rate swap contracts with banks to manage ARFNEIZHEOAEEREER K
its exchange rate and interest rate exposure. =@ o
The foreign currency forward contracts are measured at FVTPL. SNER B A AR A EET A B EET
The fair value has been estimated using discounted cash flows S NEEIFHAENERHERE
that are based on forward exchange rates and contract forward S RERNITIRIE S REMET -
rates. At 31 December 2019, there was no outstanding foreign R2019F 12 A31H » WERRT

currency forward contract.

ZEESNER A o

The interest rate swap contracts are measured at FVTPL. The fair M=EEE A AR AN FEFT ABZHET
value has been estimated using discounted cash flows that are s NFEDNERAERAFMERITR

based on interest rates and discount rates.

P IRB e REMET

INVENTORIES 20. 7
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
US$’000 US$'000
FER FETT
Bunker and lubricant oil for vessels M RRR L B2 8 1,409 1,508
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EZRWFE

22,

For time charter, the Group generally receives monthly
prepayments from customers. For voyage charter, the Group
generally receives full payments within five business days after
completion of cargo loading. For CoA, the Group generally
receives full payments within three business days after
completion of cargo discharging. For demurrage claims, the
balances are normally paid within 30 days after the finalisation.
For trading of asphalt, the balances are normally paid within 30
days after the invoice date. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

FHBEAME  AEE—RIZARE
FWERENMZK - iiRAmMS &A%
E-RehrRETKEREEEB
WU R 2 EPFIE - RREBEARME -
REB RPN EREBER =ZEE %
HRAWRZIHHEBE - EREHER
B BREAEH —MRNEERIOKRNR
- RMESESME - BELH
—MREZBRBERIOKRKAZNN - &
ZEPHERREERE A&EH
BRI EREERRRE - EF
RS ER A R o

BREZHHZIINE ZRKFIER
RO

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

0 to 30 days 0&E308 1,462 2,167
Over 30 days 30H AL - 146
1,462 2313

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are
denominated in USS.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

7K 45 [ 5 8 3K I ) L8 1A 36
STEHE ©

EEMELI&?J’\IE CBERAMNR
I

2020 2019

2020 20194

US$'000 USS$'000

FERx F=T

Other receivables HibpElrig 173 1,152
Deposits and prepayments e RIEFN R 413 491
586 1,643
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23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND
CASH BALANCES

194

(a

The Group's pledged bank deposits included deposits
pledged to a bank to secure bank loans granted to the
Group (Note 27). The deposits were denominated in US$
and bore fixed interest rate of 0.15% (2019: 2.0%) per
annum, and therefore were subject to fair value interest rate
risk.

At 31 December 2020, bank balances of approximately
USS$1,660,000 (2019: USS$1,223,000) were restricted from
being used and charged over the Group’s bank loans (Note
27).

At 31 December 2020, bank balances of approximately
US$1,234,000 (2019: USS511,000) were restricted from
being used and charged over the Group’s lease liabilities

At 31 December 2020, the bank and cash balances of the
Group denominated in RMB and kept in the PRC amounted
to approximately US$147,000 (2019: US$61,000). Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.
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23. CEARTERUARRITRER
TEEER

(@)

AEEMEERBRTEREE
KB TFRITERR FAEER
TERERNER(MiE27) -
ZETFRAETE  EEE
R EFF0.15% (20194F : 2.0%)
e AEERAFERER

4 o
A

2020812 A31H » #1,660,000
% 7T (20194 : 1,223,0003 7T )
WRITHEBRZTRAEARER
AEERITERHER(H T
27) °

2020812 A31H » #1,234,000
7t (20194 : 511,0003 7T ) By
IRITEE R IR B A RIEAR
SEHEEAENE T

MR2020F12A31H » REB A
AREFELFERFEAR
1T MRS EERE) B147,000E 7T
(20194F : 61,000 TT) » AR
HiRINEAZ R B CINES
BARH) MCEEE - EE RE
BT )R -
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24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, IR
Number of
shares Amount
RAEE S5
US$'000
FET
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, 12201941 H 18
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 2019412 531 H -
(US$0.01 each) 202041 A1 B & 20204
12 A31 B (80013 T) 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 5820194 1 H1H ~ 20194
and 1 January 2020 12831 B&2020%1 A1 8 400,000,000 4,000
Issue of shares (Note) BT (M 5E) 40,000,000 400
At 31 December 2020 (US$0.01 each) 2020912 A31H
(R 0013%7T) 440,000,000 4,400
Note: On 19 May 2020, the Company entered into two subscription agreements MiaE © 2020858198 + A R]EForever

(the “Subscription Agreements”) with Forever Win Asia Trading Limited Win Asia Trading Limited X EREHE
and Profit Source HK Trading Limited (the “Subscribers”), pursuant to the S5EBRAR ( [ZEREA] ) 5]
Subscription Agreements, the Company has conditionally agreed to allot MHRERZE ([ZEREW
and issue, and the Subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe for, #l ) o REBEZEREHZ - A2A
an aggregate of 40,000,000 subscription shares (the “Subscription Shares”) EHEBRGRIERCE RET  MiER
at the subscription price of HK$1.092 per Subscription Share for an BACERHRZEAREGRRRE
aggregate cash consideration of HK$43,680,000 (equivalent to B 1.00278 7T R A ££40,000,0000% 72
approximately US$5,628,866). The subscription was completed on 3 June B ( [RERG] ) - BReR
2020. B7/43,680,0008 7L (HERH
5628,8665K7T) ° ZRAEBEEDR
20205F6 A3H 5ERK ©

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group is
in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to
have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. Based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules. As at 31
December 2020, over 25% (2019: over 25%) of the shares were in
public hands.

AEBENEAERBREREARE
BRFEKLENRNALBBBICER
B o o A B0 P T (B SR (@ 3R A K
1t -

REBAHEFENBRTH L
ME—BETHINRERNBR TR
T E TME R 25% HIRR 17 © RIEAR
NAIAHAIESHER RIBEZEEM
W AAEE 4 ERARED
TBHAZRITRE > 20204 12 A 31
B - #Bi825% (20194 : #BiE25%) &)
BB ABRALER °
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25. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AATEBEARAR

25. ARAMBARREKR HiEE B

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Note USs$’000 USS$'000
B RE FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRARIRIRE 36 55,603 55,603
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits and ~ ELfth fFE YT FRIE -
prepayments e RTA A 17 31
Due from subsidiaries YNGR ] 36 19,962 15,422
Bank and cash balances RIT IR 8 37 25
Total current assets RBEEHAE 20,016 15,478
TOTAL ASSETS EEHE 75,619 71,081
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERREE
Share capital F& AN 24 4,400 4,000
Reserves HE 25(b) 70,875 66,389
Total equity EREE 75,275 70,389
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities RBERE
Other payables and accruals H b e RIE M ERTE 229 569
Due to subsidiaries A NGRS 36 115 123
Total current liabilities RBEEHEE 344 692
TOTALEQUITY AND LIABILITIES ## R B E& % 75,619 71,081

Ro2021FE3R B EEESH
B WHETINATRERES

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2021 and
is signed on its behalf by:

Xu Wenjun Wang Faqging
38 IR
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25. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

25. KRB BRRAKREHEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AQRIREEE
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
R0 % E AT EE et
US$'000 Uss$'000 US$'000
FET FET FxE
At 1 January 2019 R 201941 A1 H 69,663 (2,535) 67,128
Loss for the year FEEE - (739) (739)
At31 December2019and R 201912 A31 B KX
1 January 2020 20201 A1 H 69,663 (3,274) 66,389
Issue of shares BITHRAD 5,229 - 5,229
Loss for the year FEEE - (743) (743)
At 31 December 2020 R2020F 12 A31H 74,892 (4,017) 70,875
26. RESERVES 26. %
(a) Group (a) &~5E
The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements AEBNHEEBSEREEHIS
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of IR e B LEMEME
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and IWHRUANREGEEEZEEHER
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
(b) Nature and purpose of reserve (b) REENEERE®N
(i) Share premium (i) BR@EE

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the

funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall in the ordinary course of business.

ERECEEEBRAF /2020 FFR

BEFREBHESAAE B
AR EERNES
AR TFTARBRE
AR REBEZDIKRE
ZBEARRBBENEE
HATEBHEERS -
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26. RESERVES (Continued)

26. @& (&)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserve (Continued)

(b) REBEVEERE M (H)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents wavier of amount due
to the controlling shareholders. As the waived amount
is in substance equivalent to a capital contribution to
the Group, hence, it has been accounted for as capital
reserve.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the cost of investment in Xin
Yuan Ocean Shipping (HK) Group Limited (“Xin Yuan
Ocean”) over the nominal value of shares of Xin Yuan
Ocean acquired pursuant to the reorganisation.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange difference arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

= ENE
CENGEEYY AR
BIAF R - HREFR B
HEE FRERAAEHE
BHE - FARIEER
ZNE

R
AREBREFERANE
R FER(FL)KEE
Rar (MEREF ] BE
BRARERIZEMAPTE
2R & F B fn 8 2 R /Y
ER -

SV R IRE

SNERMFERHEERBES
SNETS B TS SRR T E AR PR
BINEZE - IR
AR B B 7% ¥R 3R B R 4(0) i)

with the accounting policy set out in Note 4(b)(iii) to T st R RIE -
the consolidated financial statements.
27. BORROWINGS 27. &R
2020 2019
2020 20194
US$’000 USS$'000
FEx FET
Bank loans, secured RITER > HIKE 25,174 32317
Other loans, secured EmER - HiKE 15,860 8716
Loans from a related company, e —EEB A2 ERHEE)
unsecured (Note) 2,500 11,736
43,534 52,769

Note: Mr. Xu Wenjun, the director of the Company, has beneficial interests in the
relate company.
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27. BORROWINGS (Continued) 27. BR(E)
The borrowings are repayable as follows: JEEEERM T
2020 2019
2020 20194
US$’000 USS$'000
FEx FET
Within one year —E LA 12,787 27,831
More than one year, but not exceeding —F LA BETBBMRE
two years 15,087 7,379
More than two years, but not more than ~ WA H{E BB A F
five years 15,660 17,559
43,534 52,769
Less: Amount due for settlement B R 12EARNEHEESRE
within 12 months (shown B AEREEE)
under current liabilities) (12,787) (27,831)
Amount due for settlement after RI2ER B BEESRE
12 months 30,747 24,938

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are

AREBEFRNEREEATNIES

denominated in the following currencies: B :
2020 2019
2020 20194
US$’000 US$'000
FTER FET
Us$ E 30,360 36,052
SGD ¥R TT 13,174 16,717
43,534 52,769
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27. BORROWINGS (Continued) 27. BB
The effective interest rates as at 31 December were as follows: R12A3 HEBRMERMT :
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194F
US$’000 USS$’000
FEx FET
Bank loans RITER 2.90%-4.56%  4.40%-531%
Loans from a related Company kE—REEB AR ZER 4.08% 5.84%
Other loans HEmER 3.93%-4.08% 5.84%
All borrowings are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the FRERERIRFEFEZHE - Bt
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. FAEEERIRERENERAR
Bank loans were obtained for the sole purpose of the IRITEREARESEEMMMES -
construction of the vessels. At 31 December 2020, the bank loans R2020F 12 831H  RITERIUAT
were secured by the followings: 5|18 B 1R IR -
()  Mortgage over the Group’s vessels (Note 17); () AEEMMHFRE FEEE17)
(i) Corporate guarantee provided by the Company and (i) ARRRHEBRRIRENR A
subsidiaries; and BR R
(i)  Pledged bank deposits (Note 23(a)) and restricted bank (i BEEB|IRITHER(MHFE2360) &
balances (Note 23(b)). IR IR TAEER (FHEE 23(b)) ©
Other loans were obtained for the additional working capital of EMERRAAEERBAEEES
the Group. At 31 December 2020, the bank loans were secured MmEL/S - A2020F 12 A31H + R1T
by the followings: EFATIIEE (EEA
() Mortgage over the Group’s vessels (Note 17); () AEEMMHFE FEEE17)
(i) Corporate guarantee provided by the Company and (i) ARRRHEBRRIRENR A
subsidiaries; and BR R
(i) Restricted bank balances (Note 23(b)) (i) SZRRAIRTTE S (FI5E23(0))
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES

28. HE&EE

Minimum lease payments

BREHAEMNRK

2020 2019

2020 20194

Us$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Within one year —FE PN 15,620 14,411
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFRF(BIEEEMS) 32,694 49,767
48,314 64,178
Less: Future finance charges B KRR EE A (2,959) (7,278)
Present value of lease obligations HEEMTIREAE 45,355 56,900

Present value of
minimum lease payments

REHEESRRE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
US$’000 USS$'000
FEx FE
Within one year —FE A 14,184 11,635
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EERF(BREEEMF) 31,171 45,265
Present value of lease obligations HESFTRE 45,355 56,900
Less: Amount due for settlement B R 1R2EARRESEE SR
within 12 months (shown B AEREEE)
under current liabilities) (14,184) (11,635)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 7R 12 & B 12 R HisE & 458 31,171 45,065
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 28. HEEE (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group's lease liabilities are AREBHEEABRNEEMBENETE
denominated in USS. (ER0)
At 31 December 2020, the lease liabilities were secured by the R20200F12H31H HEBEMUT
followings: 5|18 B 1R -
(i)  Charges over the Group's right-of-use assets (Note 18); () AEEFAEEENRD (T
18) :
(i) Corporate guarantee provided by the Company and/or (i ARAKRHHERBIRER
subsidiaries; NEVER
(i) Restricted bank balances (Note 23(b)); and (i) PR %R 17 45 82 (B 52 23(0))
53
(iv)  Shares of subsidiaries. (v) BMEBRRHMKD -
29. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. SHNEEREGHNAE
Contract assets 2020 2019
EHEE 2020 F 20194
US$’000 US$'000
FEnx FET
Unbilled revenue — voyage charter AAAREWA —2HE K
and CoA BESY 76 373
Receivables from contracts with customers 2 & B 7 2R &5 £ Al 55 15 5%
within the scope of HKFRS 15, which HEAKRB R E LR
are included in “Trade receivables” FIE A TE S EWFE | 1,462 2313

Amounts relating to contract assets are unbilled amount resulting
from voyage charter and CoA over time. Contract assets are
transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional.
This usually occurs when the Group issues invoice to the
customer.

There were no significant changes in the contract assets balances
during the reporting period.

The amount of contract assets that is expected to be recovered
no more than one year is approximately US$76,000 (2019:
US$373,000).
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29. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACTLIABILITIES 29. B ERASYEE (&)

(Continued)

Contract liabilities 2020 2019
BHEE 2020 20194F
US$’000 USS$'000
FEx F=T

Billings in advance — voyage charter TBARARE —1BHEK
and CoA BESH 532 187

Contract liabilities relating to the advance payments made by the
customers or billing involved to the customers (whichever is
earlier) while underlying services are yet to be provided. Such
liabilities decreased as a result of decrease in advance payments
made by the customers or billing raised to the customers.

There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities
balances during the reporting period.

Movements in contract liabilities:

BRNRBELBEEPIEARREMHD
HEREENRAXFA TP HAR
BEUABREELRE) - ARNEP AN
REXMEFHAKRERYD 5
BEEMRD

BEPRABHNEEEHRRBLEEXN

2020 2019
2020 £ 2019
US$’000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
Balance at 1 January K1 A1 B &% 187 869
Decrease in contract liabilities as aresult ~ FNERFEIT AL N BEDN
of recognising revenue during the year WA BUEA W B &R D
was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year (187) (869)
Increase in contract liabilities asaresult 2N BEALTALFHAKE
of billing in advance of voyage charter BEE L a &L
and CoA 480 187
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of & FEfT RIBBUE A 4
advance payments made by customers B &1 52 -
Balance at 31 December M2 A31 Bz #er 532 187

The amount of billings in advance of performance received that
is expected to be recognised as income no more than one year is
approximately US$532,000 (2019: US$187,000).

AR BB —FRAERAEKREZ
BHRELAHAAERESE AN
532,000 7T (20194F : 187,000 JT) °
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30. TRADE PAYABLES 30. EZENRE
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, REZAHEINE FENKIER
is as follows: BT -
2020 2019
2020 20194
Us$’000 US$'000
FERx FET
0to 30 days 0Z30H 1,695 1,480
31 to 60 days 31260H 150 26
Over 60 days 60 B A E 64 414
1,909 1,920
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are AEEESEMNFIENRAEBENE
denominated in USS. JLETE ©
31. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 31. Rt ENRBERETEA
2020 2019
2020 20194F
USs$’000 US$'000
FERx FET
Receipts in advance TElFRIE 439 189
Other payables and accruals H At BRI N ST B 941 1,624
1,380 1,813
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

32. MEBERERME

CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (@) EXFBRERS
Additions to right-of-use assets during the year of FREAEEERNE K 143,000
approximately US$143,000 (2019: US$199,000) were 2 7 (20194F : 199,000 7T ) Jb
financed by lease liabilities. MEEBERN -
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) RIEEBIELXEBENER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFVNAEBEMETHES
arising from financing activities, including both cash and BENEE  BRESKIER
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities EY METBHELANAERE
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows AR RE KR ARKES R
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statements of EHeRNAEESERSRE
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. SBEAREEHIEIRER
EMBRIE-
At Additions At
1January oflease  Cash flows, Non-cash Exchange 31 December
2020 liabilities net interest  differences 2020
#2020 b bk #2020
1818 HEEE  RERE FReMR EXZE 12831R
Uss$'000 US$'000 USs$'000 Uss'000 US$'000 Uss$'000
TEn TR TER TEn TR TEn
Borrowings fE% 52,769 - (9,379) - 144 43,534
Lease liabilties HEBR 56,900 143 (11,717) 27 2 45,355
Total it 109,669 143 (21,096) 27 146 88,889
Impact on Restated
At initial balance at At
1January  application TJanuary  Cash flows, Non-cash Exchange 31 December
2019 of HKFRS 16 2019 net interest  differences 2019
BRERER Y]
BBRE  R019F
R2019F  EBIE 165 1818 Re R 2019F
1A1A k7 &R RERE  FHe#n EREE nANA
US$000 US$'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000
TET TETL TETL TETL TET TEL TEL
Borrowings & 39431 - 39431 13,127 - 21 52,769
Finance lease payables Bb&THE A 68321 (68,321) - - - - -
Lease liabilities BERR - 68,520 68520 (11,649) 2 4 56,900
Total @t 107,752 199 107,951 1478 2 215 109,669
BRCEEEFRAA /2020 FFH 205
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(c)

32. KMEBREREXRMTFT(H)

Total cash outflow for leases (¢ HEBRESRHAEE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases HESFABRSESRERNESED
comprise the following: FELAT
2020 2019
2020 20194
US$’000 USs$'000
FEx FET
Within operating cash flows BREEReRE 2,647 4,259
Within financing cash flows BREtERERE 11,717 11,649
14,364 15,908
These amounts relate to the following: ZESRETYIER MR -
2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
US$’000 USS'000
FEx FET
Lease rental paid BENEERS 14,364 15,908

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant

contingent liabilities (2019: Nil).

206

XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020

33. RAEE

MR20205 124318 » REFE #EF
AIEARHKABE(2019F : £) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE 20205 12 A31 BILFE

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 34, REBELH

The Group as lessee

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for office
premises. As at 31 December 2020, the portfolio of short-term
leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense disclosed in Note 18.

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding lease commitments
relating to these leases is approximately US$5,000 (2019:
US$14,000).

The Group as lessor

Operating leases relate to future aggregate minimum charter hire
income receivable under non-cancellable time charters. The
lessee does not have an option to purchase the vessels at the
expiry of the lease period.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

AEBERAEBA
AEBTFHRPHAYWET L CEHA
EomM20020F12A3H REHHEE
HEHEMFISEENEREERX
WEBPHEEHREEREE °

MR20205F 128318 BB EHESR
AR AREEREAELN AS5000ETT
(20194 : 14,000FETT) °

AEBEAHEA

AR THE EARER A A] R H B R R
MIARRKEESWALEBRE - &
A 48 7 HA R o B S B i AR Y
RIEIE -

SR REREENTDT

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

Us$’000 USS$'000

FTErx FET

Within one year —FE A 19,680 25,076
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRF(BIEEEMT) 5,426 20,625
25,106 45,701
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BHAL RS
(@) Inaddition to those related party transactions and balances @ MEEFETBEREREMM T

BB X5 MERIN - K
SERFNEEBEHETT

disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with

its related parties during the year:

MRS -

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194F
US$’000 USS$’000
FEx FET
Interest paid to a related company [ —fE B A RIS TR FILE
(Note) (HF5E) 176 106

Note: Mr. Xu Wenjun, the director of the Company, has beneficial interests
in the related company.

it ARREBERXIGEENRZE

BARGEE Bnkn -

(b)  The remuneration of directors and other members of key b ZFEENTEEEEBHMEKER

management during the year was as follows: FREFMOT ¢

2020 2019

2020 & 20194

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Short-term benefits %G HAtE A 698 329

Retirement benefit Scheme contributions R R 4& Il 51 &I £ 3k 1 20

699 349
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36. TEMBE AR
20206128318 TEHEARQ A

are as follows: WEET -
Percentage
Place of ownership interest/
Principal place  incorporation/ Particular of voting power/
Name of operation establishment issued share capital profitsharing  Principal activities
fiE®/
AL/ RER/
£ TEERHE AU BRTRAHE BHARLE  TEEH
Directly held:
EERE:
Virtue Glory Holdings Limited Hong Kong The British 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Investment holding
Virgin Islands of USS1 each
Virtue Glory Holdings Limited & EE e 10000 G RERE 100% REZR
1ETHERR
Indirectly held:
BiEE
Baustella Shipping (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited of HKS1 each chartering
ZHEME(FR)ERRR &R B 10000 R EREE 100% HEAMMRMIEE
BT ERR
Begstella Shipping (Hongkong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited of HKS1 each chartering
BREENB(BE)ERRE FA A 10000 R EREE 100% BEERARMHEE
BT ERR
China Union Sealand Group Limited - Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Investment holding
of HKS1 each
hHEEEERRAA Bk Bl 10000 X B R A{E 100% REER
BT E AR
Jastella Shipping (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited of HKS1 each chartering
FAEME (ER)ERRR &R B 10000 R EREE 100% FEAMMRMIEE
BT ERR
Lotstella Shipping (Hongkong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited of HKS1 each chartering
REENB(BE)ERRR  FA A 10000 R EREE 100% BEERARMHEE
BT ERR
Oasis Oriental Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Asphalt trading
of HKS1 each
RAEMNERAT &R A 10000 REREE 0% EEES
BT E AR

ERECEEEBRAF /2020 FFR
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

36. TEME QT (&)

Percentage
Place of ownership interest/
Principal place  incorporation/ Particular of voting power/
Name of operation establishment issued share capital profitsharing  Principal activities
fiE®/
AL/ RER/
8 TEERME  RUBEH BRTREHE BHARLE TEEH
Phoenix Shipping (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited of HKS1 each chartering
BEM (FR)RRAA &R B 10000 R EREE 100% FEAMMARMEEE
1BTHERR
Shun Yuen Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Investment holding
Limited of HKST each
EREE(EE)ARAF &R &R 10000 R EREE 100% REBR
1BTHERR
Xin De Yuan (Hong Kong) Shipping  Hong Kong Hong Kong 59,000,000 ordinary 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited shares of HKS1 each chartering
ERREE)MEERRE  FA 3 59,000,000 fR &A% 100% FAMMALMEHEE
HE BTN ERR
Xin Yuan Ocean Hong Kong Hong Kong 70,000,000 ordinary 100%  Vessel owning and
shares of RMB1 each chartering
[ERE= &k &R 70,000,000 B AR 100% FEAMMARMEEE
HEARE 1 TH
Lk
Xin Yuan Ship Management Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel management
(Hong Kong) Limited of HKS1 each
ERMMER (BE)ERAR  FA G 10000 R EREE 00% AAEE
BT EBR
Z8L Dolphin Shipping Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
of HKS1 each chartering
BRRBERAT EE &R 10000 X B R E{E 100% FEAMMARMEEE
1BTHERR
Bilxin Shipping Group Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore 1,000,000 ordinary 100%  Investment holding
shares of US$T each
Bilxin Shipping Group Pte. Ltd. A I 1,000000 X EREE 100% REEKR
IETHERR
Lilstella Shipping Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore 50,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
of USS1 each chartering
Lilstella Shipping Pte. Ltd. A A 50000 B REE 100% HEAMMRKEMHEE
IETHERR
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

36. TEME LT (&)

Percentage
Place of ownership interest/
Principal place  incorporation/ Particular of voting power/
Name of operation establishment issued share capital profitsharing  Principal activities
g/
AL/ RER/
8 TEEXBYE  RUME BRTREHE BHNAREA  TERHK
Orcstella Shipping Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore 50,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
of US$1 each chartering
Orcstella Shipping Pe. Ltd. g ATINE 50000 RERERE 1000 EEMARNHEE
1ETHEBR
Poestella Shipping Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore 50,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
of US$T each chartering
Poestella Shipping Pte. Ltd. g g 50000 REREE 100% HEEHMRBHEE
IETHERR
Rostella Shipping Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore 50,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
of USS1 each chartering
Rostella Shipping Pte. Ltd. A I 50000 B REE 100% HEAMMRMEMEE
[E:ok sl
Fujian Xinyuanxinlanhai Importand ~ The PRC The PRC Registered capital of 100%  Sourcing of mechanical
Export Trade Company Limited RMB50,000,000 equipment and hardware
("Xinlanhai’) product for the Group’s
(BRERNEGELNE vessels and provision of
BRAT) (Note) administrative services
to group companies
RERNESELDES T T &R 100% AREEMMRELRR
ﬁﬂ R (TER ) () AR 50000000 7T FEREHERR
REBRAREM
B RS

Note: Xinlanhai is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in the PRC. The

registered capital of Xinlanhai is RMB50,000,000 (2019: RMB30,000,000) and
RMB28,873,478 (2019: RMB18,285,568) has been paid up at 31 December

e

MEBRMRNTERINIINEEE

¥ - 2020128318 » FEEH
& A A ARS50,000,0007T (2019

2020.

The above list contains the particular of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.
None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities.

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

F 0 ARM30,0000007T) © BEHIA
R#28,873,4787C (20194 : AR
18,285,5687C) °

EREINEIZHEAEEEE B
EXBENNEBARNEFR - B
f B A B2 BT EAERE

FEA (A B /B8 ARIFRIA & AR K
e %@&ﬁmﬁikﬁﬁ
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37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@) After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the globe. The Group
is paying close attention to the development of, and the
disruption to business and economic activities caused by,
the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on the
financial position, cash flows and operating results of the
Group. Given the dynamic nature of the COVID-19 outbreak,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of its
impacts on the Group's financial position, cash flows and
operating results at the date on which these financial

statements are authorised for issue.

(b)  On 2 March 2021, the Group entered into a supplementary
agreement with a related company for the extension of the
repayment term from December 2021 to December 2022.

() On 2 March 2021, the Group entered into a finance lease
agreement of US$12,600,000 for the additional working
capital of the Group. The lease is repayable in six years,
bearing interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 3.90% per annum

and secured by the followings:

(i) charge over a vessel of the Group;

(i) corporate guarantee provided by the Company;

(iii)  restricted bank balance; and

(iv)  100% of the shares of a subsidiary

Further on 8 March 2021, the Group received US$12,411,000

from the financial institution.

212 XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020

37. EHEKEE

()

72020 FF ¥ & B COVID-19% 18
% RIREHERITIFEE
—RYERE e AEE—F
2 RS T COVID-19Z B & R
MEHEBRMEE TN
2 AT hE 8 A K BB ik
R R 2 - EERCOVID-19&Z 15T
EEE - Rt S B RERER
BEMmZHE WMEESBME
HUAEEPBARRL BHEaR

ST 4 M A 4 e B 48R
ENKEEENTE -

2021 F3H28  REBEE—
M@ ARG LT E -
EXHAB02IFNALER R
2022F 124 ©

R2021F3 A28 » REBEETL
4 %8 /512,600,000 % TR BLE M
EnE - BRASBIRMEREING
BEET ZMEARANFANE
2R3 EARBUERITRIERE
AN3.90% K FEF EFHE - WA
HITE B VEHE IR -

() ANEE—EMMOEC
(i) ARFRHEADFER
(i) XERHIRITAERR K

(v —FEMERR2 ARG
Hi#&mM202143A8H - K&E

BEWIHZEeREBIRERN
12,411,000 T °
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